
MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 

 

Wednesday, August 17, 2016 

Meeting Room 1B 

5:45 p.m. 

 
AGENDA 

1. Call to Order –John Walsh, President 

2. Consent Agenda – action item – Marilyn Wood  

a. Minutes of July 20, 2016 Board Meeting (page 1-3) 

b. Minutes of August 10, 2016 Board Work Session (page 4) 

c. Monthly Bills for Payment (page 5-11) 

d. Monthly Financial Report (page 12-39) 

e. Personnel Report (page 40-52) 

f. 2016 Board Meetings Calendar (page 53) 

3. Director’s Monthly Report – Marilyn Wood, Director (page 54-72) 

4. Old Business 

a. 2017 Budget Review – Gary Lettelleir (page 73-88) 

5. New Business – action items 

a. Approval of 2017 Budget for Advertising – Gary Lettelleir (page 89) 

b. Resolution Declaring Property Surplus – Gary Lettelleir (90) 

c. Approve Joint Agreement with American Federation of State, County 

and Municipal Employees Local 2802 ("AFSCME"), August 18, 

2016 – August 15, 2019 – Kyle Wickemeyer-Hardy, Human 

Resources Manager (page 91-111) 

d. Approve Personnel Policy Changes related to Agreement – Kyle 

Wickemeyer-Hardy, Human Resources Manager (page 112-189) 

6. Update:   Special Audiences Services and Programs – Chris Jackson 

7. Public Comment 

8. Adjournment 

 

View the Board Packet on the Library’s website: 

http://mcpl.info/library-trustees/meetings 

http://mcpl.info/library-trustees/meetings


MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 

July 20, 2016  
Meeting Room 1B 

5:45 p.m. 
 
 
Present 

Board members: Kari Esarey, David Ferguson, Valerie Merriam, Melissa Pogue, 
Fred Risinger 
 
Library staff: Steven Backs, Michael Hoerger, Gary Lettelleir, Glenn Myers, Jacob 
Saffold, Ryan Stacy, Bara Swinson, Pam Wasmer, Michael White, Kyle Wickemeyer-
Hardy, Marilyn Wood  
 
Others: Tom Bunger 
 
Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order at 5:45 p.m. by Board Vice-President Melissa Pogue.  

 

Consent Agenda 

Kari Esarey moved to approve the consent agenda; Valerie Merriam seconded her 
motion. After Library Director Marilyn Wood clarified specific items in the Board 
Packet in response to the Board’s questions, the consent agenda passed 
unanimously. 

 
Director’s Monthly Report 

Library Director Marilyn Wood presented the director’s monthly report for June. 

Items reported and discussed included: 

 Smart Investing @Your Library, a 28-month grant awarded the Library by the 

Financial Industry Regulatory (FINRA) and the American Library Association, 

concluded in June. The Library used funding from the grant to create the It’s 

Your Money Project, a personal finance education effort involving financial 

literacy programming and community outreach. Feedback from attendees and 

community partner agencies indicates the Project’s efforts was successful in 

reaching its target audience of 20-to-39-year-olds through onsite and offsite 

engagement. 

 

Old Business 

None. 

1



New Business 

Collection Development Policy. Kari Esarey moved that the new policy be 

adopted, with David Ferguson seconding the motion. Pam Wasmer, Access Services 

Strategist at the Library, submitted a revised policy for collection development. The 

proposed revision streamlines the current policy, omitting specific procedures in 

favor of a more general strategy regarding the scope, nature, and maintenance of the 

Library’s collection across all units. 

 

After a brief discussion on the proposed revision with Pam and Marilyn fielding 

specific questions by the Board, the motion passed with four members for the 

proposal and one member opposed. 

 

2017 Budget Presentation. Library Financial Officer Gary Lettelleir submitted the 

first draft of the Library’s 2017 budget and gave a presentation on specific items in 

the draft. Items Gary discussed included: 

 

The current proposal focuses on four primary budgetary concerns:  

 Maintaining current operational levels at all facilities while encouraging growth 

of audiences served.   

 Facilities management through life cycle replacement planning.    

 Providing for new services to meet needs of our growing community through  

planning for a new branch.   

 Ellettsville renovation, seeking architect proposals and beginning construction  

in 2017.  

 

These areas of focus are a response to current and changing needs of the community 

the Library serves. 

 

Slight increases in both the Monroe County population and Indiana personal income 

are expected to result in corresponding increases in funding from property tax and 

traditional State funding, which represent the two largest revenue streams for the 

Library. Accordingly, the Library’s total operating budget for 2017 is projected at 

just under $8.8 million. 

 

Gary responded to specific questions by the Board in the brief discussion that 

followed. 

 

Updates: Nonprofit Central and Indiana Room 

Steve Backs, Library Adult Audience Strategist, provided an overview of Nonprofit 

2



Central and the Indiana Room at the Main Library. Items discussed included: 

 Nonprofit Central (NPC). Originally the result of a grant by the Community 

Foundation in 2013, the Library designated NPC as a space dedicated to 

researching grant opportunities, collection materials, and programming for 

nonprofit organization staff and individuals seeking grants.  Provision of this 

information and programming continues through current staff who have 

developed expert understanding in this area. 

 

 Indiana Room. Information on local history and genealogy, as well as general 

Indiana-related and regional materials of research value, is kept in the Library’s 

Indiana Room. Following a recent internal study of the use and staffing of the 

Indiana Room, the Library plans to make adjustments to the services offered 

there. 

 

Steve fielded specific questions by the Board following his presentation. 

  

Public Comment 

None. 
 
Adjournment 

Valerie moved to adjourn, with Fred Risinger seconding the motion. After 
unanimous agreement by the Board, Melissa adjourned the meeting at 6:49 p.m.   

3



MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

WORK SESSION  
August 10, 2016 

Meeting Room 1B 
5:45 p.m. 

 
Present 
Board members: Kathy Loser, Fred Risinger, John Walsh  
 
Library staff: Keith Carter, Jane Cronkhite, Michael Hoerger, Glenn Myers, Gary 
Lettelleir, Martin O’Neill, Ryan Stacy, Kyle Wickemeyer-Hardy, Marilyn Wood  
 
Others: Jim Whitlatch 
 
Call to Order 
The work session was called to order at 5:48 p.m. by John Walsh, Board President. 

 
Review of Approval of 2017 Budget for Publication 
Library Financial Officer Gary Lettelleir submitted the Library’s proposed 2017 
budget for clarification and review before publication. After noting minor revisions 
to the current version of the budget, Gary answered specific questions by the Board. 
 
Review of Joint Agreement – AFSCME 
Human Resources Manager Kyle Wickemeyer-Hardy updated the Board on the 
recent agreement between the Library and its employee union, AFSCME Local 2802. 
Kyle reviewed the updates and changes to the current agreement that will go into 
effect August 17, for a three-year agreement. Kyle fielded specific questions from the 
Board, clarifying specific points in the agreement. 
 
Review of Employee Policy Manual Updates 
Kyle also presented the most recent proposed update to the Employee Policy 
Manual, noting specific updates and revisions to the current Manual. She also 
responded to the Board’s questions regarding the proposed changes. 
 
Public Comment 
None. 
 
Adjournment 
After a motion by Fred Risinger was seconded by Kathy Loser, at 6:15 p.m. John 
adjourned the work session. 

4



 MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 08/10/16 7:27 AM 
 Page 1 
 *Check Summary Register© 

 July 8, 2016 to August 4, 2016 

 Name Check Date Check Amt 

06600   MAINSOURCE CHECKING 
Paid Chk#  004028 ACADEMIC THERAPY  7/14/2016 $122.60 BOOKS 
Paid Chk#  004029 AMERICAN UNITED LIFE INS.  7/14/2016 $1,507.30 403b TSA-AUL W/H 
Paid Chk#  004030 AT&T (IL) 7/14/2016 $127.66 2 DEDICATED PHONE LINES 
Paid Chk#  004031 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 7/14/2016 $15,252.68 BOOKS 
Paid Chk#  004032 BANCTEC INC. 7/14/2016 $31.83 FOLDER MAINT. 
Paid Chk#  004033 BIBLIOTHECA  LLC 7/14/2016 $1,040.00 RFID PAD 
Paid Chk#  004034 BLACKMESH 7/14/2016 $650.00 MANAGED CLOUD HOSTING 
Paid Chk#  004035 B-TECH LLC 7/14/2016 $40.00 MNTHLY WEBSERVICE FEE 
Paid Chk#  004036 CENTER POINT LARGE PRINT 7/14/2016 $224.10 BOOKS 
Paid Chk#  004037 CENTURYLINK  7/14/2016 $30.50 L-D CALLS 
Paid Chk#  004038 CITY OF BLOOMINGTON  7/14/2016 $1,810.56 WATER & SEWER 
Paid Chk#  004039 DARCI HAWXHURST 7/14/2016 $893.00 TUTOR TRAINING/VITAL 
Paid Chk#  004040 DUKE ENERGY 7/14/2016 $17,790.42 ELECTRICITY 
Paid Chk#  004041 ELECTRONIC COMMERCE, INC. 7/14/2016 $1,974.15 PAYROLL SERVICES 
Paid Chk#  004042 FINDAWAY WORLD, LLC 7/14/2016 $2,782.65 NONPRINT 
Paid Chk#  004043 GALE/CENGAGE LEARNING 7/14/2016 $1,207.96 BOOKS 
Paid Chk#  004044 GRASS ROOTS PRESS 7/14/2016 $172.80 BOOKS 
Paid Chk#  004045 HFI MECHANICAL CONTRACTOR 7/14/2016 $1,699.74 BLDG REPAIR 
Paid Chk#  004046 INDIANA STATE LIBRARY 7/14/2016 $2,015.00 2ND QTR. '16 PLAC 
Paid Chk#  004047 INTERNET MINDED DESIGN AND 7/14/2016 $1,434.00 CATS WEBSITE WORK 
Paid Chk#  004048 LISA CHAMPELLI 7/14/2016 $40.61 ROCK TO READ BOOKS 
Paid Chk#  004049 MARJORIE KG SCHRADER 7/14/2016 $42.94 REFUND ON LOST ITEMS 
Paid Chk#  004050 MIDWEST PRESORT SERVICE 7/14/2016 $517.64 POSTAGE SERVICES 
Paid Chk#  004051 MIDWEST TAPE 7/14/2016 $20,276.33 E-BOOKS & NONPRINT 
Paid Chk#  004052 MONSTER TRASH 7/14/2016 $187.02 TRASH SERVICE 
Paid Chk#  004053 MORRISONS TV AND  7/14/2016 $102.00 BLDG SERVICE 
Paid Chk#  004054 NATURE'S WAY, INC. 7/14/2016 $85.00 PLANT CARE 
Paid Chk#  004055 NETWORK SERVICES COMPANY 7/14/2016 $1,522.13 CLEANING SPLS 
Paid Chk#  004056 NEW READERS PRESS 7/14/2016 $25.00 BOOKS 
Paid Chk#  004057 OCLC, INC. 7/14/2016 $3,445.60 MONTHLY OCLC SVCS 
Paid Chk#  004058 PENGUIN RANDOM HOUSE, LLC 7/14/2016 $222.35 NONPRINT 
Paid Chk#  004059 PERFECTION AUTO GLASS OF  7/14/2016 $301.60 VEHICLE REPAIR 
Paid Chk#  004060 QUILL CORPORATION 7/14/2016 $456.39 OFFICE SPLS 
Paid Chk#  004061 RECORDED BOOKS, INC. 7/14/2016 $1,032.19 NONPRINT 
Paid Chk#  004062 RICOH USA, INC. 7/14/2016 $7.96 VITAL COPIER/ADD'L COPIES 
Paid Chk#  004063 SARAH BOWMAN 7/14/2016 $2,500.00 FINAL FINRA REPORT 
Paid Chk#  004064 SMITHVILLE COMMUNICATIONS 7/14/2016 $178.99 PHONE SERVICE 
Paid Chk#  004065 STACEY M. DUNHAM 7/14/2016 $34.99 REFUND ON LOST ITEM 
Paid Chk#  004066 TELVUE CORPORATION 7/14/2016 $77,206.79 MASTER CONTROL UPGRADE/SERVERS 
Paid Chk#  004067 UNIQUE MANAGEMENT  7/14/2016 $1,109.80 COLLECTION AGENCY FEES 
Paid Chk#  004068 BLACKMESH 7/21/2016 $650.00 MONTHLY MANAGED CLOUD HOSTING 
Paid Chk#  004069 BUNGER & ROBERTSON, LLP 7/21/2016 $480.00 LEGAL SERVICES 
Paid Chk#  004070 CARMICHAEL TRUCK &  7/21/2016 $188.62 BKM REPAIR 
Paid Chk#  004071 CINTAS CORPORATION 7/21/2016 $293.40 FIRST-AID SPLS 
Paid Chk#  004072 COMCAST 7/21/2016 $29.68 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 
Paid Chk#  004073 DEMCO, INC. 7/21/2016 $416.78 OFFICE SPLS 
Paid Chk#  004074 ENGRAVING AND STAMP  7/21/2016 $13.15 NAME TAG-ASS. DIR. 
Paid Chk#  004075 INDIANA STATE LIBRARY FDTN 7/21/2016 $250.00 IN LIB. LEADERSHIP ACADEMY  
Paid Chk#  004076 MARY LORO 7/21/2016 $25.00 OUTREACH BAG CLEANING 
Paid Chk#  004077 MIDWEST PRESORT SERVICE 7/21/2016 $268.74 POSTAGE SERVICES 
Paid Chk#  004078 NAPA AUTO PARTS 7/21/2016 $26.98 DIESEL EXHAUST FLUID 
Paid Chk#  004079 NOLAN'S LAWN CARE SERVICE  7/21/2016 $358.50 LAWN CARE SERVICE 
Paid Chk#  004080 PATRICK CALLANAN 7/21/2016 $80.00 PIANO TUNING 
Paid Chk#  004081 QUILL CORPORATION 7/21/2016 $594.75 PAPER 

5



 MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 08/10/16 7:27 AM 
 Page 2 
 *Check Summary Register© 

 July 8, 2016 to August 4, 2016 

 Name Check Date Check Amt 

Paid Chk#  004082 RICOH USA, INC. 7/21/2016 $33.98 ADMIN COPIER ADD'L IMAGES 
Paid Chk#  004083 STEPHANIE HOLMAN 7/21/2016 $72.72 MILEAGE/FOR MTGS. & SPLS 
Paid Chk#  004084 WEX BANK 7/21/2016 $28.31 FUEL 
Paid Chk#  004085 WOODS ELECTRICAL  7/21/2016 $120.00 BLDG SERVICE 
Paid Chk#  004086 ADP, INC. 7/27/2016 $340.40 BACKGROUND CHECKS 
Paid Chk#  004087 AT&T (IL) 7/27/2016 $1,038.92 TELEPHONE 
Paid Chk#  004088 AUDIO TECH 7/27/2016 $199.00 NONPRINT 
Paid Chk#  004089 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 7/27/2016 $23,585.33 BOOKS 
Paid Chk#  004090 BIBLIOTHECA  LLC 7/27/2016 $2,823.90 E-BOOKS 
Paid Chk#  004091 BRENDA SEIBEL 7/27/2016 $13.65 WELLNESS PROGRAM PRIZES 
Paid Chk#  004092 CINTAS CORPORATION 7/27/2016 $52.89 FIRST-AID SPLS 
Paid Chk#  004093 DEMCO, INC. 7/27/2016 $597.84 2 OFFICE CHAIRS 
Paid Chk#  004094 FINDAWAY WORLD, LLC 7/27/2016 $152.79 A-V CATALOGING SPLS 
Paid Chk#  004095 GALE/CENGAGE LEARNING 7/27/2016 $666.67 BOOKS 
Paid Chk#  004096 ICE MILLER LLP 7/27/2016 $4,860.00 LEGAL SERVICE/'16 NEGOTIATIONS 
Paid Chk#  004097 JOSHUA WOLF 7/27/2016 $118.13 ALA CONF./FOOD 
Paid Chk#  004098 MIDWEST TAPE 7/27/2016 $9,869.93 BOOKS 
Paid Chk#  004099 OVERDRIVE, INC. 7/27/2016 $10,000.00 E-BOOKS 
Paid Chk#  004100 PENGUIN RANDOM HOUSE, LLC 7/27/2016 $805.88 NONPRINT 
Paid Chk#  004101 QUILL CORPORATION 7/27/2016 $16.24 PAPER 
Paid Chk#  004102 RECORDED BOOKS, INC. 7/27/2016 $210.60 NONPRINT 
Paid Chk#  004103 RICOH USA, INC. 7/27/2016 $66.16 ADMIN COPIER RENTAL 
Paid Chk#  004104 RICOH USA, INC. 7/27/2016 $138.92 VITAL COPIER/IMAGES 
Paid Chk#  004105 STEPHEN A. HUBBARD 7/27/2016 $25.95 REFUND ON LOST ITEM 
Paid Chk#  004106 SWEETWATER 7/27/2016 $176.72 AUDIO STUDIO MONITOR 
Paid Chk#  004107 TABCO BUSINESS FORMS, INC. 7/27/2016 $2,133.07 CIRC NOTICES/PATRON 
Paid Chk#  004108 THOMSON REUTERS - WEST 7/27/2016 $537.62 BOOKS 
Paid Chk#  004109 VECTREN ENERGY DELIVERY 7/27/2016 $53.96 NATURAL GAS 
Paid Chk#  004110 CITY OF BLOOMINGTON 7/29/2016 $10.00 ZONE 4 PARKING 
Paid Chk#  004111 ACTIVATE HEALTHCARE 8/3/2016 $4,537.47 SEPT. '16 CLINIC 
Paid Chk#  004112 AFSCME COUNCIL 62 8/3/2016 $995.24 UNION DUES W/H 
Paid Chk#  004113 AMERICAN HERITAGE LIFE INS.  8/3/2016 $347.28 AUG. '16 OTHER INSURANCES 
Paid Chk#  004114 AMERICAN UNITED LIFE INS.  8/3/2016 $1,507.30 403b TSA-AUL W/H 
Paid Chk#  004115 AT&T MOBILITY 8/3/2016 $304.55 CELL PHONES 
Paid Chk#  004116 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 8/3/2016 $1,805.70 BOOKS 
Paid Chk#  004117 BLOOMINGTON PAINT &  8/3/2016 $33.79 PAINT 
Paid Chk#  004118 B-TECH LLC 8/3/2016 $660.00 SEMI-ANNUAL SUPPRESSION INSPECTION 
Paid Chk#  004119 CARMINPARKER, P.C. 8/3/2016 $100.00 GARNISHMENT W/H 
Paid Chk#  004120 CHARDON LABORATORIES, INC. 8/3/2016 $662.00 CLOSED LOOP TWR CHEMICAL & SVC 
Paid Chk#  004121 CHASE CARD SERVICES 8/3/2016 $10,167.12 VARIOUS 
Paid Chk#  004122 CITY OF BLOOMINGTON  8/3/2016 $1,102.00 GARAGE PARKING PERMITS 
Paid Chk#  004123 DUKE ENERGY 8/3/2016 $1,834.52 ELECTRICITY 
Paid Chk#  004124 DUNCAN SUPPLY COMPANY,  8/3/2016 $17.68 BLDG SPLS 
Paid Chk#  004125 ELECTRONIC COMMERCE, INC. 8/3/2016 $3,697.20 PAYROLL SERVICES 
Paid Chk#  004126 ELLETTSVILLE TRUE VALUE 8/3/2016 $14.46 ELL. BLDG SPLS 
Paid Chk#  004127 ELLETTSVILLE UTILITIES 8/3/2016 $257.00 WATER & SEWER 
Paid Chk#  004128 FREEDOM BUSINESS  8/3/2016 $602.93 PRINT CARTRIDGES 
Paid Chk#  004129 GUARDIAN LIFE INS. CO. 8/3/2016 $8,477.76 AUG. '16 DENTAL, VISION, STD & LIFE INS. 
Paid Chk#  004130 HFI MECHANICAL CONTRACTOR 8/3/2016 $1,635.30 BLDG REPAIR 
Paid Chk#  004131 INDIANA STATE LIBRARY/ILL  8/3/2016 $925.00 ILL SERVICE 
Paid Chk#  004132 JEANNETTE LEHR 8/3/2016 $6.98 TEEN SPLS 
Paid Chk#  004133 JIM GORDON, INC 8/3/2016 $160.14 COPIER/PRINTER OVERAGE 
Paid Chk#  004134 LEGAL SHIELD 8/3/2016 $149.96 IDENTITY THEFT & LEGAL W/H 
Paid Chk#  004135 LOWE'S 8/3/2016 $232.97 BLDG SPLS 
Paid Chk#  004136 MIDWEST PRESORT SERVICE 8/3/2016 $262.17 POSTAGE SERVICE 

6



 MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 08/10/16 7:27 AM 
 Page 3 
 *Check Summary Register© 

 July 8, 2016 to August 4, 2016 

 Name Check Date Check Amt 

Paid Chk#  004137 PALS 8/3/2016 $150.00 SRP "READER TO THE RESCUE" 
Paid Chk#  004138 B,B & C POW PEST CONTROL,  8/3/2016 $95.00 PEST CONTROL 
Paid Chk#  004139 PYGMALION' S ART SUPPLIES 8/3/2016 $21.17 DISPLAY MATERIALS 
Paid Chk#  004140 SCHINDLER ELEVATOR  8/3/2016 $2,740.56 QTRLY BILLING 8/1/16-10/31/16 
Paid Chk#  004141 SIHO INSURANCE SERVICES 8/3/2016 $44,570.01 AUG. '16 HEALTH INS. 
Paid Chk#  004142 SMITHVILLE COMMUNICATIONS 8/3/2016 $1,776.00 INTERNET SERVICE 
Paid Chk#  004143 SYNCHRONY BANK/AMAZON 8/3/2016 $3,779.71 NONPRINT 
Paid Chk#  004144 THE DAILY WORLD 8/3/2016 $150.00 12 MONTH SUBSCRIPTION 
Paid Chk#  004145 TRI-STATE BEARING 8/3/2016 $468.07 BLDG SPLS 
Paid Chk#  004146 UNITED STATES TREASURY 8/3/2016 $76.00 GARNISHMENT 
Paid Chk#  004147 UNITED WAY 8/3/2016 $54.00 UNITED WAY W/H 
Paid Chk#  004148 VECTREN ENERGY DELIVERY 8/3/2016 $46.00 NATURAL GAS 
Paid Chk#  004149 WILDLIFE REMOVAL COMPANY 8/3/2016 $85.00 BAT REMOVAL/ELL 
Paid Chk#  004150 CITY OF BLOOMINGTON 8/4/2016 $23,243.00 PARKING PERMITS 
 Total Checks $340,278.50 

7



MainSource Checking Account/Check Register Total $340,278.50
 

Add:  Electronic Withdrawals  
Merchant Services-Monthly Credit Card Fees (Aug. '16) 309.14

 MainSource Checking-Monthly Service Charge (Aug. '16) 35.00
MainSource Checking-ACH Block Charge (July '16) 20.00
German-American Bank-Merchant Fees (Aug. '16) 0.00
German-American Bank-TSYS Fees/new system (Aug. '16) 391.83

 
Add: Payrolls

Vouchers 07/08/16 Payroll (ECI) 127,051.96
Electronic transfer (ECI) employee/employer taxes 48,349.43
Electronic transfer (ECI) employer "HSA" 27,895.50
Electronic transfer (ECI) employee "HSA" 2,374.96
Electronic PERF pymt. 07/12/16 19,018.88
Electronic transfer 07/12/16 (TASC) employee/employer "FSA" 248.46

Vouchers 07/22/16 Payroll (ECI) 122,823.50
Electronic transfer (ECI) employee/employer taxes 47,155.14
Electronic transfer (ECI) employer "HSA" 44.92
Electronic transfer (ECI) employee "HSA" 2,319.96
Electronic PERF pymt. 08/01/16 18,780.49
Electronic transfer 07/26/16 (TASC) employee/employer "FSA" 248.46

 

          TOTAL OF A/P AND PAYROLL CHECK REGISTERS $757,346.13

MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
CHECKING ACCOUNTS

07/08/16 - 08/04/16

8



9



10



11



Financial Report Comments 

Reports as of 07‐31‐16 

Board Meeting Date 08/17/16 

Monthly Budget Report: 

The following table compares the actual percentage of the budget used so far in the major expense categories this year compared to the 
spending guideline which is 58.3% after seven months. 

% Spending Guideline Actual % Spending

Wages and Benefits 58.3% 54.9%
Supplies 58.3% 41.6%
Other Services & Charges 58.3% 45.8%
Capital Outlay 58.3% 55.1%
Total Operating Expenditures 58.3% 52.8%

July 31, 2016

 

After seven months it looks spending is on track to come in under budget for 2016.  

 

 

 

12



2016 2015 2016 2016 2015 2016 2016 2016
JULY JULY Y-T-D BUDGET Y-T-D Y-T-D % OF % OF

ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET
REMAINING USED REMAINING

PERSONNEL SERVICES
SALARIES 307,302.29 300,814.53 2,305,726.55 4,073,258.71 2,245,551.54 1,767,532.16 56.6% 43.4%
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 105,600.36 126,937.44 777,473.24 1,528,025.18 760,184.72 750,551.94 50.9% 49.1%
OTHER WAGES 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.0% 100.0%

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 412,902.65 427,751.97 3,083,199.79 5,616,283.89 3,005,736.26 2,533,084.10 54.9% 45.1%

SUPPLIES
OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,454.61 6,783.34 25,639.09 58,400.00 25,832.07 32,760.91 43.9% 56.1%
OPERATING SUPPLIES 5,731.11 3,939.87 46,725.66 120,300.00 57,996.70 73,574.34 38.8% 61.2%
REPAIR & MAINT. SUPPLIES 920.42 4,725.93 12,903.97 26,400.00 13,035.58 13,496.03 48.9% 51.1%

TOTAL SUPPLIES 8,106.14 15,449.14 85,268.72 205,100.00 96,864.35 119,831.28 41.6% 58.4%

OTHER SERVICES & CHARGES
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 16,857.65 23,097.84 141,545.94 370,100.00 124,295.56 228,554.06 38.2% 61.8%
COMMUNICATION & TRANSPORTATION 2,521.80 5,582.05 20,846.51 86,600.00 28,010.27 65,753.49 24.1% 75.9%
PRINTING & ADVERTISING 45.00 0.00 1,282.94 7,350.00 928.68 6,067.06 17.5% 82.5%
INSURANCE 0.00 146.00 72,163.00 77,600.00 72,281.00 5,437.00 93.0% 7.0%
UTILITIES 21,900.25 26,597.09 163,078.15 386,050.00 183,648.54 222,971.85 42.2% 57.8%
REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 3,858.03 2,572.52 29,113.06 55,500.00 20,865.92 26,386.94 52.5% 47.5%
RENTALS -642.80 190.60 3,243.36 36,600.00 1,453.25 33,356.64 8.9% 91.1%
ELECTRONIC SERVICES 20,701.22 26,022.98 145,196.52 320,000.00 115,891.48 174,803.48 45.4% 54.6%
OTHER CHARGES 24,833.35 17,083.35 179,369.88 311,000.00 706,213.00 131,630.12 57.7% 42.3%

TOTAL OTHER SERVICES & CHARGES 90,074.50 101,292.43 755,839.36 1,650,800.00 1,253,587.70 894,960.64 45.8% 54.2%

CAPITAL OUTLAY
FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT 354.83 0.00 4,220.65 35,000.00 17,979.69 30,779.35 12.1% 87.9%
OTHER CAPITAL OUTLAY 72,393.39 100,121.91 538,012.04 948,700.00 589,107.98 410,687.96 56.7% 43.3%

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 72,748.22 100,121.91 542,232.69 983,700.00 607,087.67 441,467.31 55.1% 44.9%

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES 583,831.51 644,615.45 4,466,540.56 8,455,883.89 4,963,275.98 3,989,343.33 52.8% 47.2%

2015 BUDGET 8,826,029.92
% USED IN 2015 56.2%

SEVEN MONTHS = 58.3%

MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
MONTHLY SUMMARY OF BUDGET CATEGORIES

AS OF JULY 31, 2016

13



2016 2015 2016 2016 2015 2016 2016 2016
JULY JULY Y-T-D BUDGET Y-T-D Y-T-D % OF % OF

ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET
REMAINING USED REMAINING

PERSONNEL SERVICES (1000'S)
SALARIES  

1120 ADMINISTRATION/DIRECTORS 7,655.53 7,461.54 57,416.54 180,540.00 82,223.72 123,123.46 31.8% 68.2%
1130 MANAGERS/ASST. MANAGERS 80,767.51 76,201.40 604,402.13 1,052,556.87 467,062.84 448,154.74 57.4% 42.6%
1140 LIBRARIANS, EXPERTS 76,237.64 74,874.75 565,304.97 1,004,405.22 639,141.56 439,100.25 56.3% 43.7%
1150 SPECIALISTS 15,377.19 14,324.69 109,975.94 205,078.14 289,698.53 95,102.20 53.6% 46.4%
1160 ASSISTANTS/PARAPROFESSIONALS 52,997.24 51,247.55 405,792.19 706,002.18 320,951.99 300,209.99 57.5% 42.5%
1170 TECH/OPERATORS/SECRETARIES 4,500.03 4,275.02 33,783.29 56,686.50 81,487.58 22,903.21  59.6% 40.4%
1190 BUILDING SERVICES/MAINTENANCE 11,430.45 10,391.75 89,823.66 137,100.44 155,754.37 47,276.78 65.5% 34.5%
1200 BUILDING SERVICES/SECURITY 7,973.97 8,681.46 60,910.62 113,915.64 30,506.61 53,005.02 53.5% 46.5%
1280 PRODUCTION ASSISTANTS 1,322.01 1,247.00 10,030.70 32,765.46 4,585.84 22,734.76 30.6% 69.4%
1290 INFORMATION ASST/MATERIAL/SUPPORT 32,147.89 34,740.86 236,707.09 456,228.66 120,770.22 219,521.57 51.9% 48.1%
1300 SUPPORT/MATERIAL HANDLERS 15,686.67 16,215.40 122,516.30 112,831.38 49,348.46 -9,684.92 108.6% -8.6%
1320 TECHNICIANS 1,206.16 1,153.11 9,063.12 15,148.22 4,019.82 6,085.10 59.8% 40.2%

TOTAL SALARIES 307,302.29 300,814.53 2,305,726.55 4,073,258.71 2,245,551.54 1,767,532.16 56.6% 43.4%
 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
1210 EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION/FICA 18,332.43 17,951.54 137,365.62 250,062.64 133,983.18 112,697.02 54.9% 45.1%
1220 UNEMPLOYMENT CONPENSATION 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.0% 100.0%
1230 EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION/PERF 13,670.64 27,278.65 191,103.09 373,925.31 208,414.31 182,822.22 51.1% 48.9%
1235 EMPLOYEE/PERF 3,661.76 7,306.78 51,518.64 100,158.59 56,190.91 48,639.95 51.4% 48.6%
1240 EMPLOYER CONT/INSURANCE 65,648.08 70,202.21 362,911.53 735,396.22 330,261.58 372,484.69 49.3% 50.7%
1245 EMPLOYER INS/FSA 0.00 0.00 2,300.25 0.00 0.00 -2,300.25 #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
1250 EMPLOYER CONT/MEDICARE 4,287.45 4,198.26 32,274.11 58,482.42 31,334.74 26,208.31 55.2% 44.8%

 
TOTAL EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 105,600.36 126,937.44 777,473.24 1,528,025.18 760,184.72 750,551.94 50.9% 49.1%

OTHER WAGES
1310 WORKSTUDY 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.0% 100.0%
1180 TEMPORARY STAFF 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.0% 100.0%

.
TOTAL OTHER WAGES 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.0% 100.0%

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 412,902.65 427,751.97 3,083,199.79 5,616,283.89 3,005,736.26 2,533,084.10 54.9% 45.1%

SUPPLIES (2000'S)
OFFICE SUPPLIES   

2110 OFFICIAL RECORDS 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,100.00 0.00 1,100.00 0.0% 100.0%
2120 STATIONERY & PRINTING 24.50 0.00 162.75 900.00 336.84 737.25 18.1% 81.9%
2130 OFFICE SUPPLIES 406.73 862.37 3,662.05 13,200.00 3,935.37 9,537.95 27.7% 72.3%
2135 GENERAL SUPPLIES 25.00 0.00 45.00 0.00 0.00 -45.00 #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
2140 DUPLICATING 998.38 5,920.97 21,410.32 43,200.00 21,559.86 21,789.68 49.6% 50.4%
21600 PUBLIC USE SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 358.97 0.00 0.00 -358.97 #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
2150 PROMOTIONAL MATERIALS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

 
TOTAL OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,454.61 6,783.34 25,639.09 58,400.00 25,832.07 32,760.91 43.9% 56.1%

MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT

AS OF JULY 31, 2016

14



2016 2015 2016 2016 2015 2016 2016 2016
JULY JULY Y-T-D BUDGET Y-T-D Y-T-D % OF % OF

ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET
REMAINING USED REMAINING

OPERATING SUPPLIES
2210 CLEANING SUPPLIES 1,522.13 2,914.97 14,477.81 42,200.00 21,003.43 27,722.19 34.3% 65.7%
2220 FUEL, OIL, & LUBRICANTS 495.25 472.12 3,505.49 10,500.00 2,983.13 6,994.51  33.4% 66.6%
2230 CATALOGING SUPPLIES-BOOKS 1,438.17 22.51 3,238.89 7,000.00 2,702.73 3,761.11  46.3% 53.7%
2240 A/V SUPPLIES-CATALOGING 142.49 393.37 2,717.51 9,200.00 1,783.16 6,482.49 29.5% 70.5%
2250 CIRCULATION SUPPLIES 2,133.07 46.54 16,107.46 32,500.00 18,802.78 16,392.54 49.6% 50.4%
2260 LIGHT BULBS 0.00 90.36 4,305.97 10,000.00 7,782.29 5,694.03 43.1% 56.9%
2280 UNIFORMS 0.00 0.00 1,849.57 1,900.00  1,352.01 50.43 97.3% 2.7%
2290 DISPLAY/EXHIBIT SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 522.96 7,000.00 1,587.17 6,477.04  7.5% 92.5%

TOTAL OPERATING SUPPLIES 5,731.11 3,939.87 46,725.66 120,300.00 57,996.70 73,574.34 38.8% 61.2%

REPAIR & MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES
2300 IT SUPPLIES 219.85 1,052.91 1,662.16 5,000.00 3,396.74 3,337.84  33.2% 66.8%
2310 BUILDING MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 700.57 3,673.02 10,978.00 21,000.00 9,525.43 10,022.00 52.3% 47.7%
2320 PAINT & PAINTING SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 263.81 400.00 113.41 136.19 66.0% 34.0%
2340 OTHER REPAIR & BINDING 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

 
TOTAL REPAIR & MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 920.42 4,725.93 12,903.97 26,400.00 13,035.58 13,496.03 48.9% 51.1%

TOTAL SUPPLIES 8,106.14 15,449.14 85,268.72 205,100.00 96,864.35 119,831.28 41.6% 58.4%

OTHER SERVICES/CHARGES (3000'S)
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

3004 MISC. UNAPPROPRIATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
3110 CONSULTING SERVICES 0.00 0.00 772.50 11,000.00 1,593.75 10,227.50 7.0% 93.0%
3120 ENGINEERING/ARCHITECTURAL 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.0% 100.0%
3130 LEGAL SERVICES 5,680.40 1,165.83 16,014.11 15,000.00 5,142.76 -1,014.11 106.8% -6.8%
3140 BUILDING SERVICES 987.52 3,203.60 16,235.62 40,000.00 18,575.71 23,764.38 40.6% 59.4%
3150 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 1,003.77 8,841.43 40,019.81 155,600.00 29,795.26 115,580.19 25.7% 74.3%
3160 COMPUTER SERVICES (OCLC) 5,221.60 5,148.67 36,550.69 70,500.00 36,656.20 33,949.31 51.8% 48.2%
3170 ADMIN/ACCOUNTING SERVICES 2,854.56 3,207.86 23,602.86 47,000.00 23,044.88 23,397.14 50.2% 49.8%
3175 COLLECTION AGENCY SERVICES 1,109.80 1,530.45 8,350.35 21,000.00 9,487.00 12,649.65 39.8% 60.2%

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 16,857.65 23,097.84 141,545.94 370,100.00 124,295.56 228,554.06 38.2% 61.8%
 

COMMUNICATION & TRANSPORTATION
3210 TELEPHONE 1,376.07 3,218.08 11,419.30 33,600.00 13,639.49 22,180.70 34.0% 66.0%
3215 CABLE TV 8.90 6.62 62.30 0.00 39.72 -62.30 #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
3220 POSTAGE 1,064.11 1,432.35 9,182.38 22,000.00 9,450.58 12,817.62  41.7% 58.3%
3230 TRAVEL EXPENSE 72.72 0.00 84.53 10,000.00 2,618.16 9,915.47 0.8% 99.2%
3240 PROFESSIONAL MTG. (OFF-SITE) 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 285.00 10,000.00 0.0% 100.0%
3250 CONTINUTING ED. (0N-SITE) 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.0% 100.0%
32501 ENCUMBERED CONTINU. ED.(0N-SITE) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
3260 FREIGHT & DELIVERY 0.00 925.00 98.00 1,000.00 1,977.32 902.00 9.8% 90.2%

TOTAL COMMUNICATION & TRANSPORTATION 2,521.80 5,582.05 20,846.51 86,600.00 28,010.27 65,753.49 24.1% 75.9%

MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT

AS OF JULY 31, 2016

15



2016 2015 2016 2016 2015 2016 2016 2016
JULY JULY Y-T-D BUDGET Y-T-D Y-T-D % OF % OF

ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET
 REMAINING USED REMAINING

PRINTING & ADVERTISING  
3310 ADVERTISING & PUBLICATION 0.00 0.00 599.39 2,350.00 538.92 1,750.61 25.5% 74.5%
3320 PRINTING 45.00 0.00 683.55 5,000.00 389.76 4,316.45  13.7% 86.3%

TOTAL PRINTING & ADVERTISING 45.00 0.00 1,282.94 7,350.00 928.68 6,067.06 17.5% 82.5%

INSURANCE
3410 OFFICIAL BOND 0.00 0.00 586.00 600.00 450.00 14.00 97.7% 2.3%
3420 OTHER INSURANCE 0.00 146.00 71,577.00 77,000.00 71,831.00 5,423.00  93.0% 7.0%

TOTAL INSURANCE 0.00 146.00 72,163.00 77,600.00 72,281.00 5,437.00 93.0% 7.0%

UTILITIES
3510 GAS 152.02 102.60 1,735.56 4,950.00 2,334.15 3,214.44 35.1% 64.9%
3520 ELECTRICITY 19,692.22 24,562.45 150,802.88 354,000.00 171,239.65 203,197.12 42.6% 57.4%
3530 WATER 2,056.01 1,932.04 10,539.71 27,100.00 10,074.74 16,560.29 38.9% 61.1%

TOTAL UTILITIES 21,900.25 26,597.09 163,078.15 386,050.00 183,648.54 222,971.85 42.2% 57.8%

REPAIR & MAINTENANCE  
3610 BUILDING REPAIR 1,699.74 0.00 21,784.11 28,000.00 11,096.37 6,215.89 77.8% 22.2%
3630 OTHER EQUIP/FURNITURE REPAIRS 454.64 882.00 1,083.78 16,000.00 3,182.82 14,916.22 6.8% 93.2%
3640 VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 1,703.65 1,475.05 5,876.45 10,000.00 5,977.72 4,123.55 58.8% 41.2%
3650 MATERIAL BINDING/REPAIR SERV. 0.00 215.47 368.72 1,500.00 609.01 1,131.28 24.6% 75.4%

TOTAL REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 3,858.03 2,572.52 29,113.06 55,500.00 20,865.92 26,386.94 52.5% 47.5%

RENTALS  
3710 REAL ESTATE RENTAL/PARKING -642.80 190.60  3,168.36 36,600.00 1,453.25 33,431.64 8.7% 91.3%
3720 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
3730 EVENTS-BOOTH & EQUIP. RENTAL 0.00 0.00 75.00 0.00 0.00 -75.00 #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

TOTAL RENTALS -642.80 190.60 3,243.36 36,600.00 1,453.25 33,356.64 8.9% 91.1%

ELECTRONIC SERVICES
38450 DATABASES SERVICES 0.00 9,495.74 72,569.19 175,000.00 79,649.98 102,430.81 41.5% 58.5%
38460 E-BOOKS SERVICES 20,701.22 16,527.24 72,627.33 145,000.00 36,241.50 72,372.67 50.1% 49.9%

TOTAL ELECTRONIC SERVICES 20,701.22 26,022.98 145,196.52 320,000.00 115,891.48 174,803.48 45.4% 54.6%

OTHER CHARGES
3910 DUES/INSTITUTIONAL 0.00 0.00 5,536.53 8,000.00 5,546.65 2,463.47 69.2% 30.8%
3920 INTEREST/TEMPORARY LOAN 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.0% 100.0%
3940 TRANSFER TO LIRF 24,833.35 17,083.35 173,833.35 298,000.00 699,583.35 124,166.65 58.3% 41.7%
3945 TRANSFER TO ANOTHER FUND (R.DAY) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
3950 EDUCATIONAL SERV/LICENSING 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 1,083.00 3,000.00 0.0% 100.0%

TOTAL OTHER CHARGES 24,833.35 17,083.35 179,369.88 311,000.00 706,213.00 131,630.12 57.7% 42.3%

TOTAL OTHER SERVICES/CHARGES 90,074.50 101,292.43 755,839.36 1,650,800.00 1,253,587.70 894,960.64 45.8% 54.2%

MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

AS OF JULY 31, 2016
MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT

16



2016 2015 2016 2016 2015 2016 2016 2016
 JULY JULY Y-T-D BUDGET Y-T-D Y-T-D % OF % OF

ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET
 REMAINING USED REMAINING

CAPITAL OUTLAY (4000'S)
FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT  

4410 FURNITURE 0.00 0.00 1,412.03 10,000.00 6,672.76 8,587.97  14.1% 85.9%
4430 OTHER EQUIPMENT 354.83 0.00 2,458.62 20,000.00 9,699.98 17,541.38  12.3% 87.7%
4440 LAND & BUILDINGS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
4445 BUILDING RENOVATIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 1,606.95 5,000.00 0.0% 100.0%
4460 IS EQUIPMENT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00  #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
4465 IS SOFTWARE 0.00 0.00 350.00 0.00 0.00 -350.00 #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
4470 EQUIPMENT - CATS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
4475 SOFTWARE - CATS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

TOTAL FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT 354.83 0.00 4,220.65 35,000.00 17,979.69 30,779.35 12.1% 87.9%

OTHER CAPITAL OUTLAY
4510 BOOKS  44,418.14 59,741.65 350,084.27 562,700.00 364,148.59 212,615.73 62.2% 37.8%
4520 PERIODICIALS & NEWSPAPERS  19.97 420.97 5,106.47 43,000.00 8,756.85 37,893.53 11.9% 88.1%
4530 NONPRINT MATERIALS 27,955.28 39,959.29 182,821.30 343,000.00 216,202.54 160,178.70 53.3% 46.7%

TOTAL OTHER CAPITAL OUTLAY 72,393.39 100,121.91 538,012.04 948,700.00 589,107.98 410,687.96 56.7% 43.3%

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 72,748.22 100,121.91 542,232.69 983,700.00 607,087.67 441,467.31 55.1% 44.9%

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES 583,831.51 644,615.45 4,466,540.56 8,455,883.89 4,963,275.98 3,989,343.33 52.8% 47.2%

AS OF JULY 31, 2016

MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT

17



 MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 08/09/16 3:08 PM 
 Page 1 
 Operating Budget & Expenditure Report 
  January 1, 2016 to July 31, 2016 
 7 months = 58.3% 

              2016 
   2016         2016 2016 YTD  %YTD 
 Object Object Descr Budget Jan. Feb.  Mar. Apr. May June July YTD Amt Balance Budget 
 11200 ADMINISTRATION  $180,540.00 $7,655.55 $7,655.54 $7,655.54 $11,483.30 $7,655.54 $7,655.54 $7,655.53 $57,416.54 $123,123.46 31.80% 
 11300 MANAGERS/ASST.  $1,052,556.87 $95,390.01 $77,080.34 $77,080.35 $115,620.57 $77,897.38 $80,565.97 $80,767.51 $604,402.13 $448,154.74 57.42% 
 11400 LIBRARIANS, EXPERTS $1,004,405.22 $81,017.15 $73,375.70 $73,424.65 $111,548.36 $75,525.82 $74,175.65 $76,237.64 $565,304.97 $439,100.25 56.28% 
 11500 SPECIALISTS $205,078.14 $14,465.46 $14,650.95 $14,642.79 $21,865.61 $14,439.32 $14,534.62 $15,377.19 $109,975.94 $95,102.20 53.63% 
 11600 ASSISTANTS/PARAPRO $706,002.18 $53,622.40 $54,673.48 $54,022.10 $82,419.55 $52,912.13 $55,145.29 $52,997.24 $405,792.19 $300,209.99 57.48% 
 11700 TECH/OPERATORS/SEC $56,686.50 $4,507.42 $4,503.69 $4,511.06 $6,761.05 $4,500.02 $4,500.02 $4,500.03 $33,783.29 $22,903.21 59.60% 
 11800 TEMPORAY STAFF $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 0.00% 
 11900 BUILDING  $137,100.44 $12,420.02 $12,146.53 $11,987.99 $17,957.94 $11,933.22 $11,947.51 $11,430.45 $89,823.66 $47,276.78 65.52% 
 12000 BUILDING  $113,915.64 $8,025.24 $8,106.36 $8,273.86 $12,244.61 $8,218.82 $8,067.76 $7,973.97 $60,910.62 $53,005.02 53.47% 
 12100 FICA/EMPLOYER  $250,062.64 $19,563.93 $18,175.45 $18,211.00 $26,898.81 $18,036.23 $18,147.77 $18,332.43 $137,365.62 $112,697.02 54.93% 
 12200 UNEMPLOYMENT  $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 0.00% 
 12300 PERF/EMPLOYER  $373,925.31 $29,722.11 $26,908.79 $26,567.35 $26,430.68 $27,256.88 $40,546.64 $13,670.64 $191,103.09 $182,822.22 51.11% 
 12350 PERF/EMPLOYEE  $100,158.59 $7,961.30 $7,207.71 $7,116.26 $7,409.98 $7,300.92 $10,860.71 $3,661.76 $51,518.64 $48,639.95 51.44% 
 12400 INS/EMPLOYER  $735,396.22 $117,283.58 $41,316.79 $49,296.34 $4,041.78 $41,160.26 $44,164.70 $65,648.08 $362,911.53 $372,484.69 49.35% 
 12450 EMPLOYER INS./FSA $0.00 $0.00 $2,300.25 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,300.25 -$2,300.25 0.00% 
 12500 MEDICARE/EMPLOYER  $58,482.42 $4,575.34 $4,250.78 $4,259.08 $6,439.09 $4,218.17 $4,244.20 $4,287.45 $32,274.11 $26,208.31 55.19% 
 12800 PRODUCTION  $32,765.46 $1,322.01 $1,325.31 $1,355.05 $2,049.10 $1,335.22 $1,322.00 $1,322.01 $10,030.70 $22,734.76 30.61% 
 12900 INFORMATION  $456,228.66 $31,842.21 $32,482.17 $33,258.23 $45,339.55 $32,371.66 $29,265.38 $32,147.89 $236,707.09 $219,521.57 51.88% 
 13000 SUPPORT/MATERIAL  $112,831.38 $15,978.15 $17,416.27 $17,879.89 $24,237.22 $14,928.24 $16,389.86 $15,686.67 $122,516.30 -$9,684.92 108.58% 
 13100 WORK STUDY $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 0.00% 
 13200 TECHNICIANS $15,148.22 $1,217.44 $1,209.92 $1,206.16 $1,807.36 $1,206.16 $1,209.92 $1,206.16 $9,063.12 $6,085.10 59.83% 
 21100 OFFICIAL RECORDS $1,100.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,100.00 0.00% 
 21200 STATIONERY/BUS.  $900.00 $0.00 $0.00 $138.25 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $24.50 $162.75 $737.25 18.08% 
 21300 OFFICE SUPPLIES $13,200.00 $578.50 $323.83 $1,206.32 $292.99 $105.22 $748.46 $406.73 $3,662.05 $9,537.95 27.74% 
 21350 GENERAL SUPPLIES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20.00 $25.00 $45.00 -$45.00 0.00% 
 21400 DUPLICATING $43,200.00 $1,573.58 $1,832.16 $5,423.90 $3,917.59 $1,805.90 $5,858.81 $998.38 $21,410.32 $21,789.68 49.56% 
 21600 PUBLIC USE SUPPLIES $0.00 $119.97 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $239.00 $0.00 $0.00 $358.97 -$358.97 0.00% 
 22100 CLEANING SUPPLIES $42,200.00 $2,894.43 $2,604.49 $3,104.49 $1,512.76 $0.00 $2,839.51 $1,522.13 $14,477.81 $27,722.19 34.31% 

18



 08/09/16 3:08 PM 
 Page 2 
              2016 
   2016         2016 2016 YTD  %YTD 
 Object Object Descr Budget Jan. Feb.  Mar. Apr. May June July YTD Amt Balance Budget 
 22200 FUEL/OIL/LUBRICANTS $10,500.00 $305.67 $200.78 $323.71 $331.81 $290.44 $1,557.83 $495.25 $3,505.49 $6,994.51 33.39% 
 22300 CATALOGING  $7,000.00 $206.75 $472.00 $121.72 $823.17 $177.08 $0.00 $1,438.17 $3,238.89 $3,761.11 46.27% 
 22400 A/V  $9,200.00 $0.00 $481.68 $105.04 $883.24 $1,090.01 $15.05 $142.49 $2,717.51 $6,482.49 29.54% 
 22500 CIRCULATION  $32,500.00 $3,249.00 $0.00 $1,005.39 $0.00 $9,720.00 $0.00 $2,133.07 $16,107.46 $16,392.54 49.56% 
 22600 LIGHT BULBS $10,000.00 $213.58 $1,212.59 $2,445.60 $0.00 $0.00 $434.20 $0.00 $4,305.97 $5,694.03 43.06% 
 22800 UNIFORMS $1,900.00 $0.00 $0.00 $255.50 $1,391.32 $0.00 $202.75 $0.00 $1,849.57 $50.43 97.35% 
 22900 DISPLAY/EXHIBITS  $7,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $432.28 $0.00 $0.00 $90.68 $0.00 $522.96 $6,477.04 7.47% 
 23000 IT SUPPLIES $5,000.00 $0.00 $35.00 $235.23 $388.22 $449.66 $334.20 $219.85 $1,662.16 $3,337.84 33.24% 
 23100 BUILDING MATERIAL  $21,000.00 $2,465.84 $889.49 $1,252.58 $1,996.82 $594.73 $3,077.97 $700.57 $10,978.00 $10,022.00 52.28% 
 23200 PAINT/PAINTING  $400.00 $0.00 $0.00 $263.81 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $263.81 $136.19 65.95% 
 31100 CONSULTING SERVICES $11,000.00 $0.00 $105.00 $667.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $772.50 $10,227.50 7.02% 
 31200 ENGINEERING/ARCHITE $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 0.00% 
 31300 LEGAL SERVICES $15,000.00 $622.98 $240.00 $323.09 $1,038.80 $540.00 $7,568.84 $5,680.40 $16,014.11 -$1,014.11 106.76% 
 31400 BUILDING SERVICES $40,000.00 $2,229.42 $4,437.62 $2,923.02 $422.02 $366.02 $4,870.00 $987.52 $16,235.62 $23,764.38 40.59% 
 31500 MAINTENANCE  $155,600.00 $2,091.55 $19,460.77 $4,593.21 $872.31 $4,912.53 $7,085.67 $1,003.77 $40,019.81 $115,580.19 25.72% 
 31600 COMPUTER SERVICES $70,500.00 $5,221.60 $5,221.09 $5,221.60 $5,221.60 $5,221.60 $5,221.60 $5,221.60 $36,550.69 $33,949.31 51.84% 
 31700 ADMIN/ACCOUNTING  $47,000.00 $3,357.70 $5,593.87 $3,255.33 $3,987.02 $1,673.93 $2,880.45 $2,854.56 $23,602.86 $23,397.14 50.22% 
 31750 COLLECTION AGENCY  $21,000.00 $1,109.80 $1,244.05 $1,378.30 $1,047.15 $1,065.05 $1,396.20 $1,109.80 $8,350.35 $12,649.65 39.76% 
 32100 TELEPHONE $33,600.00 $1,467.41 $1,934.87 $1,669.61 $1,664.45 $1,467.43 $1,839.46 $1,376.07 $11,419.30 $22,180.70 33.99% 
 32150 CABLE TV SERVICE $0.00 $8.90 $8.90 $8.90 $8.90 $8.90 $8.90 $8.90 $62.30 -$62.30 0.00% 
 32200 POSTAGE $22,000.00 $1,215.04 $1,238.89 $1,262.55 $1,202.19 $798.40 $2,401.20 $1,064.11 $9,182.38 $12,817.62 41.74% 
 32300 TRAVEL EXPENSE $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11.81 $0.00 $0.00 $72.72 $84.53 $9,915.47 0.85% 
 32400 PROFESSIONAL  $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 0.00% 
 32500 CONTINUING  $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 0.00% 
 32600 FREIGHT/DELIVERY $1,000.00 $0.00 $70.45 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $27.55 $0.00 $98.00 $902.00 9.80% 
 33100 ADVERTISING/PUBLICA $2,350.00 $0.00 $402.47 $46.92 $0.00 $0.00 $150.00 $0.00 $599.39 $1,750.61 25.51% 
 33200 PRINTING SERVICES $5,000.00 $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 $45.00 $413.55 $45.00 $45.00 $683.55 $4,316.45 13.67% 
 34100 OFFICIAL BOND INS. $600.00 $0.00 $150.00 $436.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $586.00 $14.00 97.67% 
 34200 OTHER INSURANCE $77,000.00 $0.00 $71,578.00 $0.00 $2,372.00 -$2,373.00 $0.00 $0.00 $71,577.00 $5,423.00 92.96% 
 35100 GAS $4,950.00 $301.44 $456.38 $346.12 $214.93 $165.56 $99.11 $152.02 $1,735.56 $3,214.44 35.06% 
 35200 ELECTRICITY $354,000.00 $21,834.03 $22,354.28 $23,051.33 $22,446.50 $21,033.91 $20,390.61 $19,692.22 $150,802.88 $203,197.12 42.60% 
 35300 WATER $27,100.00 $1,354.05 $1,995.01 $408.12 $1,479.88 $1,628.95 $1,617.69 $2,056.01 $10,539.71 $16,560.29 38.89% 

19



 08/09/16 3:08 PM 
 Page 3 
              2016 
   2016         2016 2016 YTD  %YTD 
 Object Object Descr Budget Jan. Feb.  Mar. Apr. May June July YTD Amt Balance Budget 
 36100 BUILDING REPAIRS $28,000.00 $150.00 $3,582.03 $620.00 $7,597.72 $1,772.83 $6,361.79 $1,699.74 $21,784.11 $6,215.89 77.80% 
 36300 OTHER  $16,000.00 $104.90 $478.46 $45.78 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $454.64 $1,083.78 $14,916.22 6.77% 
 36400 VEHICLE  $10,000.00 $893.71 $432.20 $97.20 $1,299.50 $1,450.19 $0.00 $1,703.65 $5,876.45 $4,123.55 58.76% 
 36500 MATERIALS  $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $125.17 $0.00 $243.55 $0.00 $368.72 $1,131.28 24.58% 
 37100 REAL ESTATE  $36,600.00 $1,451.06 $634.25 $409.76 $100.75 $763.26 $452.08 -$642.80 $3,168.36 $33,431.64 8.66% 
 37300 EVENTS-BOOTH  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $75.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $75.00 -$75.00 0.00% 
 38450 DATABASES $175,000.00 $2,700.00 $642.18 $615.00 $33,471.01 $31,876.00 $3,265.00 $0.00 $72,569.19 $102,430.81 41.47% 
 38460 E-BOOKS $145,000.00 $13,185.98 $5,000.13 $4,945.84 $8,635.21 $9,844.51 $10,314.44 $20,701.22 $72,627.33 $72,372.67 50.09% 
 39100 DUES/INSTITUTIONAL $8,000.00 $4,506.53 $0.00 $780.00 $250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,536.53 $2,463.47 69.21% 
 39200 INTEREST/TEMPORARY  $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 0.00% 
 39400 TRANSFER TO LIRF $298,000.00 $24,833.35 $24,833.33 $24,833.33 $24,833.33 $24,833.33 $24,833.33 $24,833.35 $173,833.35 $124,166.65 58.33% 
 39500 EDUCATIONAL/LICENSI $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 0.00% 
 44100 FURNITURE $10,000.00 $1,412.03 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,412.03 $8,587.97 14.12% 
 44300 OTHER EQUIPMENT $20,000.00 $389.97 $1,713.82 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $354.83 $2,458.62 $17,541.38 12.29% 
 44450 BUILDING RENOVATION $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 0.00% 
 44650 IT SOFTWARE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $350.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $350.00 -$350.00 0.00% 
 45100 BOOKS $562,700.00 $69,429.78 $41,945.00 $51,086.60 $41,439.98 $45,438.75 $56,326.02 $44,418.14 $350,084.27 $212,615.73 62.22% 
 45200 PERIODICALS/NEWSPA $43,000.00 $1,241.24 $43.95 $987.90 $427.78 -$420.00 $2,805.63 $19.97 $5,106.47 $37,893.53 11.88% 
 45300 NONPRINT MATERIALS $343,000.00 $42,095.11 $18,702.54 $20,795.60 $17,247.91 $24,241.29 $31,783.57 $27,955.28 $182,821.30 $160,178.70 53.30% 
 $8,455,883.89 $721,429.22 $647,382.59 $578,265.13 $713,630.40 $592,091.02 $629,910.69 $583,831.51 $4,466,540.56 $3,989,343.33 52.82% 

20



 MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 08/09/16 3:03 PM 
 Page 1 
 LIRF Budget & Expenditure Report 
 January 1, 2016 to July 31, 2016 
 7 months = 58.3% 

             2016 2016 
   2016         YTD YTD  %YTD 
 Object Object Descr Budget Jan. Feb.  Mar. Apr. May June July Amount Balance Budget 
 36100 BUILDING REPAIRS $100,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 0.00% 
 44100 FURNITURE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $383.89 $458.85 $842.74 -$842.74 0.00% 
 44300 OTHER EQUIPMENT $100,000.00 $0.00 $825.59 $0.00 $32.74 $0.00 $0.00 $208.95 $1,067.28 $98,932.72 1.07% 
 44450 BUILDING  $150,000.00 $0.00 $7,662.20 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,662.20 $142,337.80 5.11% 
 44600 IT EQUIPMENT $0.00 $15.45 $99.96 $498.95 $893.52 $108.99 $0.00 $245.66 $1,862.53 -$1,862.53 0.00% 
 44650 IT SOFTWARE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,333.37 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.99 $3,373.36 -$3,373.36 0.00% 
 $350,000.00 $15.45 $8,587.75 $3,832.32 $926.26 $108.99 $383.89 $953.45 $14,808.11 $335,191.89 4.23% 

21



 MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 08/09/16 2:58 PM 
 Page 1 
 Debt Service Budget & Expenditures Report 
 January 1, 2016 to July 31, 2016 
 7 months = 58.3% 

            2016 2016 
  Object 2016        2016 YTD  %YTD 
 Object Descr Budget Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May June July YTD Amt Balance Budget 
 37100 REAL ESTATE  $730,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $349,826.67 $0.00 $349,826.67 $380,173.33 47.92% 
 39200 INTEREST/TEMPO $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 39250 PAYMENT ON  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 39450 TRANSFER TO  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 $730,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $349,826.67 $0.00 $349,826.67 $380,173.33 47.92% 

22



 MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 08/09/16 2:52 PM 
 Page 1 
 Rainy Day Budget & Expenditures Report 
 January 1, 2016 to July 31, 2016 
 7 months = 58.3% 

            2016 2016 
   2016        2016 YTD %YTD 
 Object Object Descr Budget Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May June July YTD Amt Balance Budget 
 31100 CONSULTING SERVICES $20,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 0.00% 
 31200 ENGINEERING/ARCHITE $20,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 0.00% 
 31300 LEGAL SERVICES $20,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 0.00% 
 36100 BUILDING REPAIRS $49,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $49,500.00 0.00% 
 44100 FURNITURE $50,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 0.00% 
 44300 OTHER EQUIPMENT $50,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 0.00% 
 44450 BUILDING RENOVATION $115,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $115,000.00 0.00% 
 $324,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $324,500.00 0.00% 

23



 MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 08/09/16 5:03 PM 
 Page 1 
 Special Revenue Budget & Expenditure Report 
 January 1, 2016 to July 31, 2016 
 7 months = 58.3% 

             2016 2016 
   2016         YTD YTD  %YTD 
 Object Object Descr Budget Jan. Feb.  Mar. Apr. May June July Amount Balance Budget 
 11300 MANAGERS/ASST.  $155,480.13 $12,077.85 $12,077.87 $12,077.87 $18,116.79 $12,077.87 $12,077.87 $12,077.85 $90,583.97 $64,896.16 58.26% 
 11700 TECH/OPERATORS/SECRE $59,733.65 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $59,733.65 0.00% 
 11800 TEMPORAY STAFF $11,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,000.00 0.00% 
 12100 FICA/EMPLOYER  $22,962.91 $1,642.34 $1,601.96 $1,630.75 $2,483.48 $1,669.09 $1,658.79 $1,666.95 $12,353.36 $10,609.55 53.80% 
 12300 PERF/EMPLOYER  $27,436.13 $2,153.70 $2,097.07 $2,099.01 $2,155.97 $2,163.32 $3,234.11 $1,076.85 $14,980.03 $12,456.10 54.60% 
 12350 PERF/EMPLOYEE CONTRIB. $7,348.97 $576.88 $561.71 $562.23 $577.48 $579.46 $866.26 $288.44 $4,012.46 $3,336.51 54.60% 
 12400 INS/EMPLOYER  $52,691.51 $10,128.84 $2,619.93 $3,798.06 $381.30 $3,162.93 $3,206.69 $6,856.55 $30,154.30 $22,537.21 57.23% 
 12500 MEDICARE/EMPLOYER  $5,000.00 $384.09 $374.66 $381.38 $580.82 $390.36 $387.94 $389.85 $2,889.10 $2,110.90 57.78% 
 12800 PRODUCTION ASSISTANTS $0.00 $9,399.29 $8,826.93 $8,973.24 $14,412.67 $10,813.33 $10,628.09 $10,637.18 $73,690.73 -$73,690.73 0.00% 
 12900 INFORMATION  $0.00 $3,076.57 $3,009.22 $3,351.86 $4,726.24 $2,154.96 $2,216.28 $2,292.20 $20,827.33 -$20,827.33 0.00% 
 13100 WORK STUDY $100.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 0.00% 
 13200 TECHNICIANS $155,155.77 $2,935.53 $2,935.50 $2,935.50 $4,413.04 $2,986.87 $2,935.52 $2,935.52 $22,077.48 $133,078.29 14.23% 
 21200 STATIONERY/BUS. CARDS $100.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 0.00% 
 21300 OFFICE SUPPLIES $600.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $600.00 0.00% 
 21400 DUPLICATING $700.00 $0.00 $0.00 $53.53 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $53.53 $646.47 7.65% 
 22200 FUEL/OIL/LUBRICANTS $1,000.00 $19.45 $16.09 $0.00 $34.94 $0.00 $17.55 $28.31 $116.34 $883.66 11.63% 
 22700 VIDEO TAPE/MEDIA  $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,261.17 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,261.17 -$261.17 105.22% 
 23000 IT SUPPLIES $1,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $92.56 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $92.56 $1,107.44 7.71% 
 23500 VIDEO MATERIALS/CATS $10,000.00 $132.93 $1,136.50 $380.92 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,650.35 $8,349.65 16.50% 
 31100 CONSULTING SERVICES $10,000.00 $1,284.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,092.00 $0.00 $3,850.00 $1,434.00 $7,660.00 $2,340.00 76.60% 
 31300 LEGAL SERVICES $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $62.98 $0.00 $62.98 $437.02 12.60% 
 31500 MAINTENANCE  $500.00 $50.00 $50.00 $50.00 $3,108.85 $50.00 $50.00 $50.00 $3,408.85 -$2,908.85 681.77% 
 31600 COMPUTER SERVICES $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 0.00% 
 31650 DIGITIZATION SERVICES $11,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,000.00 0.00% 
 31700 ADMIN/ACCOUNTING  $100.00 $28.06 $5.80 $8.34 $8.01 $32.36 $18.53 $5.23 $106.33 -$6.33 106.33% 
 32100 TELEPHONE $3,000.00 $0.00 $316.12 $159.06 $204.02 $0.00 $372.66 $0.00 $1,051.86 $1,948.14 35.06% 
 32150 CABLE TV SERVICE $200.00 $20.78 $20.78 $20.78 $20.78 $20.78 $20.78 $20.78 $145.46 $54.54 72.73% 
 32200 POSTAGE $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 0.00% 

24



 08/09/16 5:03 PM 
 Page 2 
             2016 2016 
   2016         YTD YTD  %YTD 
 Object Object Descr Budget Jan. Feb.  Mar. Apr. May June July Amount Balance Budget 
 32300 TRAVEL EXPENSE $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 0.00% 
 32400 PROFESSIONAL MTG/OFF  $800.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $800.00 0.00% 
 32600 FREIGHT/DELIVERY $200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 0.00% 
 36300 OTHER EQUIP/FURNITURE $6,000.00 $1,550.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,550.00 $4,450.00 25.83% 
 37100 REAL ESTATE  $4,000.00 -$78.16 -$78.16 -$78.16 -$104.36 -$81.04 -$83.92 -$76.80 -$580.60 $4,580.60 -14.52% 
 39100 DUES/INSTITUTIONAL $2,000.00 $0.00 $1,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $350.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,550.00 $450.00 77.50% 
 39500 EDUCATIONAL/LICENSIN $200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 0.00% 
 39600 COMMUNITY NEWS  $12,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 50.00% 
 44100 FURNITURE $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 0.00% 
 44700 EQUIPMENT - CATS $45,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $77,206.79 $77,206.79 -$32,206.79 171.57% 
 $615,509.07 $45,382.15 $39,771.98 $41,758.10 $52,212.03 $39,370.29 $41,520.13 $116,889.70 $376,904.38 $238,604.69 61.23% 

25



 MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 08/09/16 2:31 PM 
 Page 1 
 Gen. Obligation Bond Budget & Expenditure 2016 
 January 1, 2016 to July 31, 2016 
 7 months = 58.3% 
             2016 2016 
   2016         YTD YTD  %YTD 
 Object Object Descr Budget Jan. Feb.  Mar. Apr. May June July Amount Balance Budget 
 31400 BUILDING SERVICES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,800.00 $0.00 $1,800.00 -$1,800.00 0.00% 
 31500 MAINTENANCE  $0.00 $0.00 $1,300.00 $650.00 $0.00 $1,300.00 $0.00 $1,300.00 $4,550.00 -$4,550.00 0.00% 
 31700 ADMIN/ACCOUNTING $0.00 $250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $250.00 -$250.00 0.00% 
 36300 OTHER  $0.00 $2,039.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,039.00 -$2,039.00 0.00% 
 44300 OTHER EQUIPMENT $0.00 $0.00 $501.94 $0.00 $8,147.44 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,649.38 -$8,649.38 0.00% 
 44452 BLDG LONG-TERM  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,770.92 $0.00 $3,770.92 -$3,770.92 0.00% 
 44600 IT EQUIPMENT $0.00 $0.00 $945.00 $551.90 $366.57 $10,461.15 $0.00 $1,040.00 $13,364.62 -$13,364.62 0.00% 
 44602 IT EQUIP. LONG- $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,011.00 $4,002.50 $1,224.00 $0.00 $16,237.50 -$16,237.50 0.00% 
 44650 IT SOFTWARE $0.00 $0.00 $415.00 $36.39 $0.00 $123.95 $19.99 $0.00 $595.33 -$595.33 0.00% 
 44700 EQUIPMENT - CATS $0.00 $0.00 $2,403.39 $11,730.00 $2,682.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $16,815.39 -$16,815.39 0.00% 
 $0.00 $2,289.00 $5,565.33 $12,968.29 $22,207.01 $15,887.60 $6,814.91 $2,340.00 $68,072.14 -$68,072.14 0.00% 

26



 MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 08/09/16 12:08 PM 
 Page 1 
 Expenditure Summary compared to last year 
 2016 compared to 2015:  Period Ending July 
    July 2016  July 2015 %Last YR 
 Fund Fund Descr 2016 Budget 2016 Amt YTD Amt 2015 Budget 2015 Amt YTD Amt YTD Diff 
 001 OPERATING $8,455,883.89 $583,831.51 $4,466,540.56 $8,826,029.92 $644,615.45 $4,963,275.98 -10.01% 
 002 JAIL $0.00 $857.65 $3,882.03 $0.00 $0.00 $1,156.63 235.63% 
 003 CLEARING $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $16,173.32 -100.00% 
 004 GIFT  $0.00 $13.65 $586.79 $0.00 $120.44 $5,274.40 -88.87% 
 005 PLAC $0.00 $2,015.00 $6,630.00 $0.00 $2,145.00 $7,285.00 -8.99% 
 006 RETIREES $0.00 $0.00 $529.50 $0.00 $202.79 $2,237.27 -76.33% 
 007 LIRF $350,000.00 $953.45 $14,808.11 $350,000.00 $4,379.23 $159,743.38 -90.73% 
 008 DEBT SERVICE $730,000.00 $0.00 $349,826.67 $620,000.00 $0.00 $307,383.75 13.81% 
 009 RAINY DAY $324,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $400,000.00 $0.00 $207,745.73 -100.00% 
 010 PAYROLL $0.00 $336,350.68 $2,557,913.39 $0.00 $335,698.16 $2,488,833.69 2.78% 
 011 INVESTMENT-GIFT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 012 TEEN COUNCIL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 015 LSTA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 016 GIFT-RESTRICED $0.00 $7,895.32 $66,097.08 $0.00 $8,283.13 $52,665.72 25.50% 
 017 LEVY EXCESS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,168.74 $1,168.74 -100.00% 
 018 IN KIND  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 019 GIFT- $0.00 $10,798.92 $72,904.89 $0.00 $10,339.11 $51,547.77 41.43% 
 020 SPECIAL REVENUE $615,509.07 $116,889.70 $376,904.38 $675,103.04 $50,807.66 $284,863.87 32.31% 
 021 CAPITAL PROJECTS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 022 GATES  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 023 LSTA-CIVIL WAR $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 024 FINRA GRANT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $385.94 -100.00% 
 025 LSTA-SMITHVILLE  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 026 G O BOND $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $372,296.00 $66,758.13 $246,444.04 -100.00% 
 027 COMMUNITY FDTN $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $900.00 $6,750.00 -100.00% 
 028 FINRA 2014 $0.00 $3,271.82 $39,308.76 $0.00 $2,316.89 $20,019.07 96.36% 
 029 GO BOND 2016 $0.00 $2,340.00 $68,072.14 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 $10,475,892.96 $1,065,217.70 $8,024,004.30 $11,243,428.96 $1,128,734.73 $8,822,954.30 -9.06% 

27



 MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 08/09/16 11:13 AM 
 Page 1 
 Revenue Totals Budget Forms (all funds) 

            2016 
 Source 2016 YTD        2016 2016 YTD  % of 
 Descr Budget Jan Feb Mar  April May  June July  YTD Amt Balance Budget 
Fund 001 OPERATING 
 PROPERTY  $5,598,164.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,139,834.31 $0.00 $3,139,834.31 $2,458,329.69 56.09% 
 INTANGIBLES TAX $17,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,957.16 $0.00 $9,957.16 $7,042.84 58.57% 
 LICENSE EXCISE TAX $300,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $183,356.07 $0.00 $183,356.07 $116,643.93 61.12% 
 COUNTY OPTION  $2,026,293.00 $168,857.75 $168,857.75 $168,857.75 $168,857.75 $168,857.75 $168,857.75 $168,857.75 $1,182,004.25 $844,288.75 58.33% 
 COMMERCIAL  $44,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $21,262.87 $0.00 $0.00 $21,262.87 $22,737.13 48.32% 
 US FORESTRY FUND $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 ELL  $0.00 $244.20 $636.20 $550.30 $516.83 $505.90 $417.00 $306.10 $3,176.53 -$3,176.53 0.00% 
 LOST/DAMAGED $0.00 $2,041.03 $1,567.24 $1,596.40 $1,532.84 $1,347.88 $1,548.20 $1,620.58 $11,254.17 -$11,254.17 0.00% 
 FINES $150,000.00 $12,533.38 $12,431.33 $13,879.44 $9,931.93 $12,286.62 $11,151.99 $9,186.56 $81,401.25 $68,598.75 54.26% 
 COLLECTION  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 BLGTN COPIERS &  $12,500.00 $1,212.90 $1,191.43 $1,270.90 $1,113.91 $1,095.32 $1,198.70 $1,496.75 $8,579.91 $3,920.09 68.64% 
 MISCELLANEOUS  $0.00 -$0.01 $33.50 $63.75 $4,154.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,251.24 -$4,251.24 0.00% 
 PUBLIC LIBRARY  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 MEETING ROOM  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 GARNISHMENT FEES  $0.00 $6.52 $4.17 $3.52 $5.28 $3.52 $3.52 $8.74 $35.27 -$35.27 0.00% 
 E-RATE RECEIPTS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 PLAC DISTRIBUTION $12,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18,305.74 $0.00 $18,305.74 -$5,805.74 146.45% 
 REALESTATE  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 STATE  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 READER PRINTER  $0.00 $23.80 $47.20 $36.55 $617.16 $27.20 $30.15 $27.90 $809.96 -$809.96 0.00% 
 OBITS $0.00 $102.00 $105.10 $123.00 $136.00 $90.00 $105.00 $142.00 $803.10 -$803.10 0.00% 
 COIN TELEPHONE  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 INTEREST FROM  $4,000.00 $2,009.48 $1,776.30 $1,924.23 $1,716.45 $1,871.94 $1,977.51 $2,668.86 $13,944.77 -$9,944.77 348.62% 
 TEMPORARY LOANS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 INVESTMENT  $0.00 $213.72 $220.86 $220.87 $206.64 $928.53 $214.44 $390.73 $2,395.79 -$2,395.79 0.00% 
 CABLE ACCESS FEES  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 CABLE ACCESS FEES  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 CABLE ACCESS FEES  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 RENT INCOME $4,000.00 $0.00 $1,800.00 $300.00 $0.00 $225.00 $0.00 $1,800.00 $4,125.00 -$125.00 103.13% 

28



 08/09/16 11:13 AM 
 Page 2 
            2016 
 Source 2016 YTD        2016 2016 YTD  % of 
 Descr Budget Jan Feb Mar  April May  June July  YTD Amt Balance Budget 
 LSTA INKIND GRANT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
Fund 001 OPERATING $8,168,457.00 $187,244.77 $188,671.08 $188,826.71 $188,788.79 $208,502.53 $3,536,957.54 $186,505.97 $4,685,497.39 $3,482,959.61 57.36% 
Fund 002 JAIL 
 RECEIPTS $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 -$6,000.00 0.00% 
Fund 002 JAIL $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 -$6,000.00 0.00% 
Fund 003 CLEARING 
 CONFERENCE/RECEI $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 MISCELLANEOUS  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 REALESTATE  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 YMCA RECEIPTS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 PHONE  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 MCPLF CC RECEIPTS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 MCPLF RECEIPTS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 ILL FINES/FEES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 REIMBURSEMENT/CL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 INSURANCE/COBRA  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 FEMA/CLEARING FUND $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 INSURANCE/CLAIMS- $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
Fund 003 CLEARING $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
Fund 004 GIFT UNRESTRICTED 
 MISCELLANEOUS  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 INTEREST FROM  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 TRANSFER FROM  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 UNRESTRICTED GIFT $0.00 $219.74 $154.04 $79.95 $230.61 $698.02 $169.57 $688.82 $2,240.75 -$2,240.75 0.00% 
 INTEREST/DIVIDEND  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
Fund 004 GIFT  $0.00 $219.74 $154.04 $79.95 $230.61 $698.02 $169.57 $688.82 $2,240.75 -$2,240.75 0.00% 
Fund 005 PLAC 
 PUBLIC LIBRARY  $0.00 $1,105.00 $845.00 $585.00 $325.00 $650.00 $1,040.00 $910.00 $5,460.00 -$5,460.00 0.00% 
Fund 005 PLAC $0.00 $1,105.00 $845.00 $585.00 $325.00 $650.00 $1,040.00 $910.00 $5,460.00 -$5,460.00 0.00% 
Fund 006 RETIREES 
 RETIREES  $0.00 $82.25 $94.25 $88.25 $88.25 $88.25 $87.55 $0.00 $528.80 -$528.80 0.00% 

29



 08/09/16 11:13 AM 
 Page 3 
            2016 
 Source 2016 YTD        2016 2016 YTD  % of 
 Descr Budget Jan Feb Mar  April May  June July  YTD Amt Balance Budget 
Fund 006 RETIREES $0.00 $82.25 $94.25 $88.25 $88.25 $88.25 $87.55 $0.00 $528.80 -$528.80 0.00% 
Fund 007 LIRF 
 MISCELLANEOUS  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 LIRF RECEIPTS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $149,000.00 $0.00 $149,000.00 -$149,000.00 0.00% 
 INTEREST FROM  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 TEMPORARY LOANS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 TRANSFER FROM  $298,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $298,000.00 0.00% 
 RENT INCOME $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
Fund 007 LIRF $298,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $149,000.00 $0.00 $149,000.00 $149,000.00 50.00% 
Fund 008 DEBT SERVICE 
 PROPERTY  $700,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $392,119.89 $0.00 $392,119.89 $307,880.11 56.02% 
 INTANGIBLES TAX $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,237.28 $0.00 $1,237.28 $262.72 82.49% 
 LICENSE EXCISE TAX $28,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $22,783.90 $0.00 $22,783.90 $5,216.10 81.37% 
 COMMERCIAL  $3,700.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,642.13 $0.00 $0.00 $2,642.13 $1,057.87 71.41% 
 US FORESTRY FUND $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 MISCELLANEOUS  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 INTEREST FROM  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 TEMPORARY LOANS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 RECEIPTS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 TRANSFER FROM  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
Fund 008 DEBT  $733,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,642.13 $416,141.07 $0.00 $418,783.20 $314,416.80 57.12% 
Fund 009 RAINY DAY 
 COUNTY OPTION  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $601,198.19 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $601,198.19 -$601,198.19 0.00% 
 INTEREST FROM  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 MCPL OPERATING  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 TRANSFER FROM  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
Fund 009 RAINY DAY $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $601,198.19 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $601,198.19 -$601,198.19 0.00% 
Fund 010 PAYROLL 
 GROSS PAYROLL $0.00 $361,749.10 $338,362.00 $339,442.72 $505,099.94 $337,738.68 $339,306.87 $339,902.50 $2,561,601.81 -$2,561,601.81 0.00% 
Fund 010 PAYROLL $0.00 $361,749.10 $338,362.00 $339,442.72 $505,099.94 $337,738.68 $339,306.87 $339,902.50 $2,561,601.81 -$2,561,601.81 0.00% 
Fund 013 PETTY CASH 

30



 08/09/16 11:13 AM 
 Page 4 
            2016 
 Source 2016 YTD        2016 2016 YTD  % of 
 Descr Budget Jan Feb Mar  April May  June July  YTD Amt Balance Budget 
 RECEIPTS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
Fund 013 PETTY CASH $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
Fund 014 CHANGE 
 RECEIPTS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
Fund 014 CHANGE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
Fund 016 GIFT-RESTRICED 
 MISCELLANEOUS  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 INTEREST FROM  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 RECEIPTS $0.00 $0.00 $11,717.08 $0.00 $11,980.81 $11,905.04 $0.00 $0.00 $35,602.93 -$35,602.93 0.00% 
 TRANSFER FROM  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 RESTRICED GIFT $0.00 $850.00 $1,454.42 $320.00 $0.00 $519.48 $13,077.74 $3,990.00 $20,211.64 -$20,211.64 0.00% 
 INTEREST/DIVIDEND  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
Fund 016 GIFT- $0.00 $850.00 $13,171.50 $320.00 $11,980.81 $12,424.52 $13,077.74 $3,990.00 $55,814.57 -$55,814.57 0.00% 
Fund 019 GIFT-FOUNDATION 
 MISCELLANEOUS  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 RESTRICED GIFT $0.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $22,500.00 $62,081.20 $0.00 $0.00 $99,581.20 -$99,581.20 0.00% 
Fund 019 GIFT- $0.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $22,500.00 $62,081.20 $0.00 $0.00 $99,581.20 -$99,581.20 0.00% 
Fund 020 SPECIAL REVENUE 
 MISCELLANEOUS  $0.00 $940.00 $150.00 $210.00 $220.00 $970.00 $530.00 $140.00 $3,160.00 -$3,160.00 0.00% 
 CABLE ACCESS FEES  $429,391.00 $0.00 $107,347.75 $0.00 $107,347.75 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $214,695.50 $214,695.50 50.00% 
 CABLE ACCESS FEES  $245,527.00 $0.00 $60,381.75 $0.00 $60,381.75 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $120,763.50 $124,763.50 49.19% 
 CABLE ACCESS FEES  $14,874.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,718.50 $0.00 $0.00 $3,718.50 $0.00 $7,437.00 $7,437.00 50.00% 
 CONTRACT- $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
Fund 020 SPECIAL  $689,792.00 $940.00 $167,879.50 $3,928.50 $167,949.50 $970.00 $4,248.50 $140.00 $346,056.00 $343,736.00 50.17% 
Fund 021 CAPITAL PROJECTS 
 PROPERTY  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 INTANGIBLES TAX $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 LICENSE EXCISE TAX $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 COMMERCIAL  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 INTEREST FROM  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 TEMPORARY LOANS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 

31



 08/09/16 11:13 AM 
 Page 5 
            2016 
 Source 2016 YTD        2016 2016 YTD  % of 
 Descr Budget Jan Feb Mar  April May  June July  YTD Amt Balance Budget 
Fund 021 CAPITAL  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
Fund 024 FINRA GRANT 
 RECEIPTS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
Fund 024 FINRA GRANT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
Fund 026 G O BOND 
 BOND SALE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
Fund 026 G O BOND $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
Fund 027 COMMUNITY FDTN GRANT 
 RECEIPTS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
Fund 027  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
Fund 028 FINRA 2014 
 RECEIPTS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 TRANSFER FROM  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
Fund 028 FINRA 2014 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
Fund 029 GO BOND 2016 
 RECEIPTS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
Fund 029 GO BOND  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 
 $9,889,449.00 $567,190.86 $715,177.37 $533,271.13 $1,498,161.0 $625,795.33 $4,460,028.84 $532,137.29 $8,931,761.91 $957,687.09 90.32% 

32



 MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 08/09/16 11:23 AM 
 Page 1 
 Cash Balances by fund 
 Current Period: July 2016 

         
   MTD MTD     
 FUND Descr 07/01/16 Debit Credit 07/31/16  Bal Sht Descr Act Status 
 OPERATING $12,870.96 $7,787.40 $15,012.73 $5,645.63 ONB/MONROE BANK CHECKING Active 
 OPERATING $14,725.29 $6,930.77 $17,817.30 $3,838.76 GERMAN AMER./UNITED  Active 
 OPERATING $3,674.89 $795.98 $0.00 $4,470.87 GERMAN AMER./MONEY MKT Active 
 OPERATING -$23,810.45 $652,401.51 $559,841.43 $68,749.63 MAINSOURCE CHECKING Active 
 OPERATING $2,359,148.78 $1,872.88 $450,000.00 $1,911,021.66 MAINSOURCE SAVINGS Active 
 OPERATING $2,628.32 $390.73 $0.00 $3,019.05 INVESTMENT CD s Active 
Fund 001 OPERATING $2,369,237.79 $670,179.27 $1,042,671.46 $1,996,745.60 
 JAIL $2,975.62 $0.00 $857.65 $2,117.97 MAINSOURCE CHECKING Active 
Fund 002 JAIL $2,975.62 $0.00 $857.65 $2,117.97 
 GIFT UNRESTRICTED $786.69 $686.82 $1,418.53 $54.98 ONB/MONROE BANK CHECKING Active 
 GIFT UNRESTRICTED $3.00 $2.00 $3.00 $2.00 GERMAN AMER./UNITED  Active 
 GIFT UNRESTRICTED $16,335.86 $1,421.53 $13.65 $17,743.74 MAINSOURCE CHECKING Active 
Fund 004 GIFT UNRESTRICTED $17,125.55 $2,110.35 $1,435.18 $17,800.72 
 PLAC $1,105.00 $845.00 $1,560.00 $390.00 GERMAN AMER./UNITED  Active 
 PLAC $585.00 $1,950.00 $2,015.00 $520.00 MAINSOURCE CHECKING Active 
Fund 005 PLAC $1,690.00 $2,795.00 $3,575.00 $910.00 
 LIRF $400,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $400,000.00 GERMAN AMER./MONEY MKT Active 
 LIRF $44,237.04 $100,000.00 $953.45 $143,283.59 MAINSOURCE CHECKING Active 
 LIRF $900,708.56 $0.00 $0.00 $900,708.56 MAINSOURCE SAVINGS Active 
 LIRF $600,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $600,000.00 INVESTMENT CD s Active 
 LIRF $0.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 -$100,000.00 MONEY TRANSFERS Active 
Fund 007 LIRF $1,944,945.60 $100,000.00 $100,953.45 $1,943,992.15 
 DEBT SERVICE $92,650.84 $0.00 $0.00 $92,650.84 MAINSOURCE SAVINGS Active 
Fund 008 DEBT SERVICE $92,650.84 $0.00 $0.00 $92,650.84 
 RAINY DAY $600,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $600,000.00 GERMAN AMER./MONEY MKT Active 
 RAINY DAY $20,384.18 $0.00 $0.00 $20,384.18 MAINSOURCE CHECKING Active 
 RAINY DAY $1,016,269.19 $0.00 $0.00 $1,016,269.19 MAINSOURCE SAVINGS Active 
Fund 009 RAINY DAY $1,636,653.37 $0.00 $0.00 $1,636,653.37 
 PAYROLL $8,773.02 $339,902.50 $336,350.68 $12,324.84 MAINSOURCE CHECKING Active 
Fund 010 PAYROLL $8,773.02 $339,902.50 $336,350.68 $12,324.84 
 GIFT-RESTRICED $17,379.04 $3,990.00 $17,379.04 $3,990.00 ONB/MONROE BANK CHECKING Active 
 GIFT-RESTRICED $66,030.10 $17,436.98 $7,953.26 $75,513.82 MAINSOURCE CHECKING Active 
Fund 016 GIFT-RESTRICED $83,409.14 $21,426.98 $25,332.30 $79,503.82 

33



 08/09/16 11:23 AM 
 Page 2 
         
   MTD MTD     
 FUND Descr 07/01/16 Debit Credit 07/31/16  Bal Sht Descr Act Status 
 GIFT-FOUNDATION $1,579.81 $62,081.20 $10,798.92 $52,862.09 MAINSOURCE CHECKING Active 
Fund 019 GIFT-FOUNDATION $1,579.81 $62,081.20 $10,798.92 $52,862.09 
 SPECIAL REVENUE $723.89 $140.00 $776.84 $87.05 GERMAN AMER./UNITED  Active 
 SPECIAL REVENUE $71,679.98 $4,576.91 $116,971.27 -$40,714.38 MAINSOURCE CHECKING Active 
 SPECIAL REVENUE $525,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 $425,000.00 MAINSOURCE SAVINGS Active 
 SPECIAL REVENUE $0.00 $104,490.11 $4,490.11 $100,000.00 MONEY TRANSFERS Active 
Fund 020 SPECIAL REVENUE $597,403.87 $109,207.02 $222,238.22 $484,372.67 
 GO BOND 2016 $1,000,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000,000.00 GERMAN AMER./MONEY MKT Active 
 GO BOND 2016 $46,491.09 $0.00 $2,340.00 $44,151.09 MAINSOURCE CHECKING Active 
 GO BOND 2016 $832,105.60 $0.00 $0.00 $832,105.60 MAINSOURCE SAVINGS Active 
Fund 029 GO BOND 2016 $1,878,596.69 $0.00 $2,340.00 $1,876,256.69 
 $8,635,041.30 $1,307,702.32 $1,746,552.86 $8,196,190.76 

34



 MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 08/09/16 8:36 AM 
 Page 1 
 *Check Reconciliation© 
 ONB MONROE CHECKING 
 06300 ONB/MONROE 
 July 2016 

 Account Summary 
 Beginning Balance on 7/1/2016 $97,161.39  
 +   $12,529.22  
 -  Payments (Checks and Withdrawals) $100,000.00  

 Ending Balance as of  7/31/2016 $9,690.61 

 Check Book  
 Active G 001-06300 OPERATING $5,645.63 
 Active G 002-06300 JAIL $0.00 
 Active G 003-06300 CLEARING $0.00 
 Active G 004-06300 GIFT UNRESTRICTED $54.98 
 Active G 005-06300 PLAC $0.00 
 Active G 006-06300 RETIREES $0.00 
 Active G 007-06300 LIRF $0.00 
 Active G 008-06300 DEBT SERVICE $0.00 
 Active G 012-06300 TEEN COUNCIL $0.00 
 Active G 015-06300 LSTA $0.00 
 Active G 016-06300 GIFT-RESTRICED $3,990.00 
 Active G 019-06300 GIFT-FOUNDATION $0.00 
 Active G 020-06300 SPECIAL REVENUE $0.00 
 Active G 024-06300 FINRA GRANT $0.00 
 Active G 027-06300 COMMUNITY FDTN  $0.00 
 Active G 028-06300 FINRA 2014 $0.00 
 Cash Balance $9,690.61 
 Beginng Balance $97,161.39 
 +  Total Deposits $12,529.22 
 -  Checks Written $100,000.00 
 Check Book  $9,690.61 
 Difference $0.00 
  

35



 MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 08/09/16 8:54 AM 
 Page 1 
 *Check Reconciliation© 
 GERMAN-AMER/UNITED C 
 06400 GER AME/UC 
 July 2016 

 Account Summary 
 Beginning Balance on 7/1/2016 $16,557.18  
 +   $7,912.54  
 -  Payments (Checks and Withdrawals) $20,151.91  

 Ending Balance as of  7/29/2016 $4,317.81 

 Check Book  
 Active G 001-06400 OPERATING $3,838.76 
 Active G 003-06400 CLEARING $0.00 
 Active G 004-06400 GIFT UNRESTRICTED $2.00 
 Active G 005-06400 PLAC $390.00 
 Active G 016-06400 GIFT-RESTRICED $0.00 
 Active G 020-06400 SPECIAL REVENUE $87.05 
 Cash Balance $4,317.81 
 Beginng Balance $16,557.18 
 +  Total Deposits $7,912.54 
 -  Checks Written $20,151.91 
 Check Book  $4,317.81 
 Difference $0.00 
  

36



 MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 08/09/16 9:04 AM 
 Page 1 
 *Check Reconciliation© 
 GERMAN AMER./MONEY M 
 06410 GERMAN/MM 
 July 2016 

 Account Summary 
 Beginning Balance on 7/1/2016 $2,003,674.89  
 +   $795.98  
 -  Payments (Checks and Withdrawals) $0.00  

 Ending Balance as of  7/29/2016 $2,004,470.87 

 Check Book  
 Active G 001-06410 OPERATING $4,470.87 
 Active G 007-06410 LIRF $400,000.00 
 Active G 009-06410 RAINY DAY $600,000.00 
 Active G 029-06410 GO BOND 2016 $1,000,000.00 
 Cash Balance $2,004,470.87 
 Beginng Balance $2,003,674.89 
 +  Total Deposits $795.98 
 -  Checks Written $0.00 
 Check Book  $2,004,470.87 
 Difference $0.0 

37



 MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 08/09/16 9:48 AM 
 Page 1 
 *Check Reconciliation© 
 MAINSOURCE CHECKING 
 06600 MAINSO CKG 
 July 2016 

 Account Summary 
 Beginning Balance on 7/1/2016 $324,123.22  
 +   $838,969.57  
 -  Payments (Checks and Withdrawals) $705,729.40  

 Ending Balance as of  7/31/2016 $457,363.39 

 Check Book  
 Active G 001-06600 OPERATING $68,749.63 
 Active G 002-06600 JAIL $2,117.97 
 Active G 003-06600 CLEARING $0.00 
 Active G 004-06600 GIFT UNRESTRICTED $17,743.74 
 Active G 005-06600 PLAC $520.00 
 Active G 006-06600 RETIREES $0.00 
 Active G 007-06600 LIRF $143,283.59 
 Active G 008-06600 DEBT SERVICE $0.00 
 Active G 009-06600 RAINY DAY $20,384.18 
 Active G 010-06600 PAYROLL $12,324.84 
 Active G 016-06600 GIFT-RESTRICED $75,513.82 
 Active G 017-06600 LEVY EXCESS $0.00 
 Active G 019-06600 GIFT-FOUNDATION $52,862.09 
 Active G 020-06600 SPECIAL REVENUE -$40,714.38 
 Active G 024-06600 FINRA GRANT $0.00 
 Active G 026-06600 G O BOND $0.00 
 Active G 027-06600 COMMUNITY FDTN  $0.00 
 Active G 028-06600 FINRA 2014 $0.00 
 Active G 029-06600 GO BOND 2016 $44,151.09 
 Cash Balance $396,936.57 
 Beginng Balance $324,123.22 
 +  Total Deposits $838,969.57 
 -  Checks Written $766,156.22 
 Check Book  $396,936.57 
 O/S Checks $60,426.82 
  

38



 MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 08/09/16 9:12 AM 
 Page 1 
 *Check Reconciliation© 
 MAINSOURCE SAVINGS 
 06610 MAINSO SAV 
 July 2016 

 Account Summary 
 Beginning Balance on 7/1/2016 $5,725,882.97    
 +   $1,872.88  
 -  Payments (Checks and Withdrawals) $550,000.00  

 Ending Balance as of  7/31/2016 $5,177,755.85 

 Check Book  
 Active G 001-06610 OPERATING $1,911,021.66 
 Active G 002-06610 JAIL $0.00 
 Active G 003-06610 CLEARING $0.00 
 Active G 004-06610 GIFT UNRESTRICTED $0.00 
 Active G 005-06610 PLAC $0.00 
 Active G 006-06610 RETIREES $0.00 
 Active G 007-06610 LIRF $900,708.56 
 Active G 008-06610 DEBT SERVICE $92,650.84 
 Active G 009-06610 RAINY DAY $1,016,269.19 
 Active G 010-06610 PAYROLL $0.00 
 Active G 016-06610 GIFT-RESTRICED $0.00 
 Active G 019-06610 GIFT-FOUNDATION $0.00 
 Active G 020-06610 SPECIAL REVENUE $425,000.00 
 Active G 024-06610 FINRA GRANT $0.00 
 Active G 026-06610 G O BOND $0.00 
 Active G 027-06610 COMMUNITY FDTN  $0.00 
 Active G 028-06610 FINRA 2014 $0.00 
 Active G 029-06610 GO BOND 2016 $832,105.60 
 Cash Balance $5,177,755.85 
 Beginng Balance $5,725,882.97 
 +  Total Deposits $1,872.88 
 -  Checks Written $550,000.00 
 Check Book  $5,177,755.85 
 Difference $0.00 
  

39



TO:  Monroe County Public Library – Board of Trustees 
FROM:  Kyle Wickemeyer-Hardy, Human Resources Manager 
RE:  Personnel Report 
DATE:  August 17, 2016 
 
 
 
Beginning Employment 

 Casey Muyskens-Toth, CATS, Master Control Operator, Pay Grade 3, 20 hours per week effective July 
5, 2016. 

 Butch Miller, Building Services-Security, Security Technician, Pay Grade 5, 20 hours per week 
effective July 28, 2016. 

 Jane Cronkhite, Administration, Associate Director, Pay Grade 11, 37.5 hours per week effective 
August 1, 2016. 

 Seth James, Customer Service, Information Assistant, Pay Grade 3, 20 hours per week effective 
August 8, 2016. 

 Michael “Cole” Champion, Customer Service, Information Assistant, Pay Grade 3, 20 hours per week 
effective August 8, 2016. 

 Victoria Englert, Access & Content Services, Material Handler, Pay Grade 1, 15-18 hours per week 
effective August 8, 2016. 

 Ashley Hinshaw, Access & Content Services, Material Handler, Pay Grade 1, 15-18 hours per week 
effective August 8, 2016. 

 Kimberly Smith, Access & Content Services, Material Handler, Pay Grade 1, 15-18 hours per week 
effective August 8, 2016. 

 

 

Ending Employment 

 David Simpson, Building Services, Custodian, Pay Grade 3, 25 hours per week, effective July 06, 
2016. 

 Kristina Wiltsee, Customer Service, Senior Information Assistant, Pay Grade 6, 20 hours per week, 
effective July 25, 2016. 

 Jonah Wilson, Access & Content Services, Material Handler, Pay Grade 1, 15-18 hours per week, 
effective July 30, 2016.  

 Andrew Funkhouser, CATS, Production Assistant, Pay Grade 4, 25 hours per week, effective August 
5, 2016. 

 Jacob Saffold, CATS, Production Assistant, Pay Grade 4, 25 hours per week effective August 4, 2016. 

 Trae Carroll, Access & Content Services, Senior Materials Handler, Pay Grade 3, 25 hours per week 
effective July 31, 2016. 

 

Job Changes  

 Deanna Crane, Building Services, Custodian, Pay Grade 3, from 20 hours per week to 25 hours per 
week, effective July 25, 2016. 

40



Active Library Employees

As of 07-8-2016

Operating Funds

Operating Funds First Name Last Name Gross Pay Hours Count

1 AC Services Operating Miriam Boyken 207.00 15
2 AC Services Operating Joseph Camacho-Roy 225.00 15
3 AC Services Operating Lindsey Catinella 216.00 15
4 AC Services Operating Paul Duszynski 270.00 15
5 AC Services Operating Andrew Fak 270.00 15
6 AC Services Operating Logan Farlee 324.00 15
7 AC Services Operating Sarah Feid 202.50 15
8 AC Services Operating Cynthia Garrison 296.64 15
9 AC Services Operating Mary Heaps 272.25 15
10 AC Services Operating Logan Holmes 326.52 15
11 AC Services Operating Israel Horton 337.50 15
12 AC Services Operating Claire Jenness 288.00 15
13 AC Services Operating Sara Jennings 324.00 15
14 AC Services Operating Deborah Lang 346.50 15
15 AC Services Operating Sarah Long 162.00 15
16 AC Services Operating Michelle Meyers 270.86 15
17 AC Services Operating Juliann Nelson 324.00 15
18 AC Services Operating Princess Ostine 207.00 15
19 AC Services Operating Brigid Phillips 288.00 15
20 AC Services Operating Elizabeth Polley 318.58 15
21 AC Services Operating Emily Purcell 274.50 15
22 AC Services Operating Rebecca Ray 324.00 15
23 AC Services Operating Riley Reynolds 288.00 15
24 AC Services Operating Kacey Ross 324.00 15
25 AC Services Operating Brandon Seals 216.00 15
26 AC Services Operating Karen Smith 281.25 15
27 AC Services Operating Roger Stremming II 220.50 15
28 AC Services Operating Alicia Thomas 324.00 15
29 AC Services Operating Jonah Wilson 324.00 15 29.00

30 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Cynthia Balzer 710.17 20
31 BS Security/Protect Operating Ashley Barrett 556.40 20
32 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Emily Buis 624.88 20
33 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Marion Clark 601.20 20
34 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Rachel Clausman 1,973.59 20
35 BL Service/Maintenance Oper Deanna Crane 470.12 20
36 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Katelynn Dockerty 467.20 20
37 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Jennifer Festa 478.88 20
38 BS Security/Protect Operating Ross Jackson 574.80 20
39 BL Service/Maintenance Oper Clare Miller 467.20 20

40 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Daniel Mounlio 886.77 20
41 IT Technicians Operating Cody Mullis 601.20 20
42 CA Technician Oper Addison Rogers 662.43 20
43 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Ann Segraves 851.20 20
44 BS Security/Protect Operating James Sims 563.36 20
45 CM Support Operating William Weaver 510.80 20

F:\Admin\HR\Marla_Pam_Kyle\ACTIVE EE Reports\Activity Reports\Board PEPP Reports\07-08-2016 PEPP Report 141



Active Library Employees

As of 07-8-2016

Operating Funds First Name Last Name Gross Pay Hours Count

46 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Kristina Wiltsee 601.21 20 17.00

47 AC Services Operating Trae Carroll 584.00 25
48 AC Services Operating Kenneth Carter 584.00 25
49 AC Services Operating Craig Clark 584.00 25
50 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper William Ellis 624.00 25
51 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Edwin Fallwell 639.03 25
52 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Elizabeth French 826.65 25
53 CA Technician Special Oper Andrew Funkhouser 661.01 25
54 AC Services Operating Evan Gornik 584.00 25
55 AC Services Operating Arielle Hacker 584.00 25
56 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Amy Hamilton 751.50 25
57 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Ian Hoagland 607.36 25
58 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Daniel Hosler 789.08 25
59 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Lillian Jenness 595.68 25
60 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Amanda Johnson 626.50 25
61 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Christina Jones 1,044.67 25
62 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Jack Kovaleski 766.53 25
63 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Audra Loudenbarger 608.50 25
64 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Doris Lynch 1,255.02 25
65 BL Service/Maintenance Oper David Simpson 587.23 25
66 BL Service/Maintenance Oper Cherryl Tincher 695.05 25 20.00

67 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Tracy Lenn 960.00 30
68 CM Special/Asst/Para Oper Erin Tobey 496.48 30 2.00

69 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Ellen Arnholter 1,908.08 37.5
70 SA Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Steven Backs 2,666.17 37.5
71 IT Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Ned Baugh 2,246.10 37.5
72 BL Service/Maintenance Oper Terri Bell 1,278.86 37.5
73 AC Librarians, Experts Oper Melissa Bruecks 1,434.43 37.5
74 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Michael Campbell 896.26 37.5
75 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Keith Carter 1,619.86 37.5
76 SC Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Lisa Champelli 2,019.87 37.5
77 BL Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Jeremiah Chandler 2,002.24 37.5
78 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Jared Cheek 1,127.58 37.5
79 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Burl Cooper 1,245.33 37.5
80 AC Librarians, Experts Oper D'Arcy Danielson 1,882.80 37.5
81 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Luann Dillon 1,705.33 37.5
82 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Aubrey Dunnuck 1,192.98 37.5
83 AC Specialist/Asst/Para Oper Susan Fallwell 1,149.81 37.5
84 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Mary Frasier 2,134.06 37.5
85 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Christine Friesel 2,105.01 37.5
86 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Rebecca Fyolek 1,434.31 37.5
87 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Alejandria Galarza 1,434.08 37.5
88 BS Security/Protect Operating Dana Geldhof 1,208.04 37.5
89 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Joshua Gesten 1,127.62 37.5
90 EG Librarians, Experts Oper James Gossman 1,929.31 37.5
91 AD Specialist/Asst/Para Oper Marla Gray 1,356.43 37.5

F:\Admin\HR\Marla_Pam_Kyle\ACTIVE EE Reports\Activity Reports\Board PEPP Reports\07-08-2016 PEPP Report 242



Active Library Employees

As of 07-8-2016

Operating Funds First Name Last Name Gross Pay Hours Count

92 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Elizabeth Gray 1,552.09 37.5
93 CM Librarians, Experts Oper Paula Gray-Overtoom 1,782.82 37.5
94 AC Librarians, Experts Oper Cheryl Green 1,945.76 37.5
95 BL Service/Maintenance Oper Ronald Greene 936.00 37.5
96 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Shawn Henline 1,630.59 37.5
97 CM Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Michael Hoerger 2,041.54 37.5
98 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Jennifer Hoffman 1,434.43 37.5
99 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Stephanie Holman 2,076.97 37.5

100 SP Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Christopher Hosler 1,856.65 37.5
101 SS Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Christopher Jackson 2,459.81 37.5
102 BS Security/Protect Operating Michael Johnson 1,117.92 37.5
103 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Kelly Jordan 1,127.67 37.5
104 AC Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Jennifer Kellams 1,697.31 37.5
105 BL Service/Maintenance Oper Bruce Kelly 1,470.62 37.5
106 AD Specialist/Asst/Para Oper Merriel Kern 1,392.82 37.5
107 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Julia Kinser 1,436.72 37.5
108 IT Specialist/Asst/Para Oper Joseph Langfitt 1,498.41 37.5
109 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Jeannette Lehr 1,434.43 37.5
110 AD Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Gary Lettelleir 2,422.51 37.5
111 CS Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Mary Loro 1,707.99 37.5
112 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Jacqueline Lovings 1,535.95 37.5
113 ST Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Kevin MacDowell 1,991.73 37.5
114 BL Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Jason Matney 1,618.02 37.5
115 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper John Meador 964.80 37.5
116 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Amber Mestre 1,127.47 37.5
117 BL Service/Maintenance Oper John Mosora 1,447.15 37.5
118 CS Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Michele Needham 2,559.44 37.5
119 AC Librarians, Experts Oper Martha Odya 1,743.85 37.5
120 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Polly OShea 1,533.04 37.5
121 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Samuel Ott 1,127.50 37.5
122 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Roberta Overman 1,662.12 37.5
123 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Jonathon Paull 876.00 37.5
124 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper M Brandon Rome 1,236.39 37.5
125 AC Librarians, Experts Oper Jane Ruddick 1,658.25 37.5
126 AD Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Susan Sater 2,171.55 37.5
127 IT Librarians Experts Oper Vanessa Schwegman 1,714.41 37.5
128 AD Support Operating Brenda Seibel 1,070.16 37.5
129 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Andrew Slater 1,150.87 37.5
130 AC Specialist/Asst/Para Oper Christine Sneed 1,127.51 37.5
131 CM Special/Asst/Para Oper Ryan Stacy 1,424.19 37.5
132 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Kathleen Starks-Dyer 1,459.74 37.5
133 SD Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Barbara Swinson 2,410.59 37.5
134 EG Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Bethany Terry 1,657.42 37.5
135 AC Services Operating Timothy Thompson 933.00 37.5
136 AD Tech/Oper/Secretaries Oper Pamela Wallace 1,104.10 37.5
137 AC Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Pamela Wasmer 2,353.16 37.5
138 AC Specialist/Asst/Para Oper Pamela White 1,648.58 37.5

F:\Admin\HR\Marla_Pam_Kyle\ACTIVE EE Reports\Activity Reports\Board PEPP Reports\07-08-2016 PEPP Report 343



Active Library Employees

As of 07-8-2016

Operating Funds First Name Last Name Gross Pay Hours Count

139 AD Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Kyle Wickemeyer-Hardy 2,352.05 37.5

140 EG Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Joshua Wolf 2,319.78 37.5

141 AD Director/Assoc Operating Marilyn Wood 3,857.53 37.5

142 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Leanne Zdravecky 1,135.39 37.5 74.00

Sub Total Operating Funds $156,207.66 4110.00 142.00

Special/GiftFunds

Special Funds First Name Last Name Gross Hours Count

1 S CA Technician Oper Joshua Brewer 490.56 20
2 S CA Technician Oper Nathan Kroeger 516.84 20 2.00

3 S CA Technician Special Oper Eric Ayotte 650.36 25
4 S CA Technician Special Oper Clinton Lake 649.50 25
5 S CA Technician Special Oper Glenn Myers 634.50 25
6 S CA Technician Special Oper Jacob Saffold 634.50 25
7 S CA Technician Special Oper Nathan Wrigley 671.01 25 5.00

8 S FL Support Operating Michael Burns 854.40 30 1.00

9 S CA Technician Special Oper Michael Adams 1,022.41 37.5
10 S CA Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Martin O`Neill 1,734.59 37.5
11 S FL Office Coordinator¸ Exper Mary Jean Regoli 1,438.35 37.5
12 S CA Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Adam Stillwell 1,776.11 37.5
13 S CA Technician Oper Robert Stockwell 1,469.01 37.5
14 S CA Technician Special Oper David Walter 1,063.76 37.5
15 S CA Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Michael White 2,559.45 37.5 7.00

Sub Total Special/Gift Funds $16,165.35 457.50 15.00

TOTAL All EE's ALL Funds $172,373 4567.50 15.00

157.00

F:\Admin\HR\Marla_Pam_Kyle\ACTIVE EE Reports\Activity Reports\Board PEPP Reports\07-08-2016 PEPP Report 444



Active Library Employees

As of 07-22-2016

Operating Funds

Operating Funds First Name Last Name

1 AC Services Operating Miriam Boyken
2 AC Services Operating Joseph Camacho-Roy
3 AC Services Operating Lindsey Catinella
4 AC Services Operating Paul Duszynski
5 AC Services Operating Andrew Fak
6 AC Services Operating Logan Farlee
7 AC Services Operating Cynthia Garrison
8 AC Services Operating Mary Heaps
9 AC Services Operating Logan Holmes

10 AC Services Operating Israel Horton
11 AC Services Operating Claire Jenness
12 AC Services Operating Sara Jennings
13 AC Services Operating Deborah Lang
14 AC Services Operating Sarah Long
15 AC Services Operating Michelle Meyers
16 AC Services Operating Juliann Nelson
17 AC Services Operating Brigid Phillips
18 AC Services Operating Elizabeth Polley
19 AC Services Operating Emily Purcell
20 AC Services Operating Rebecca Ray
21 AC Services Operating Riley Reynolds
22 AC Services Operating Kacey Ross
23 AC Services Operating Brandon Seals
24 AC Services Operating Karen Smith
25 AC Services Operating Roger Stremming II
26 AC Services Operating Alicia Thomas
27 AC Services Operating Jonah Wilson
28 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Cynthia Balzer
29 BS Security/Protect Operating Ashley Barrett
30 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Emily Buis
31 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Marion Clark
32 BL Service/Maintenance Oper Deanna Crane
33 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Katelynn Dockerty
34 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Jennifer Festa
35 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Melissa Fielman
36 BS Security/Protect Operating Ross Jackson
37 BL Service/Maintenance Oper Clare Miller
38 IT Technicians Operating Cody Mullis
39 CA Technician Oper Addison Rogers

40 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Ann Segraves
41 BS Security/Protect Operating James Sims
42 CM Support Operating William Weaver
43 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Kristina Wiltsee
44 AC Services Operating Trae Carroll
45 AC Services Operating Kenneth Carter

F:\Admin\HR\Marla_Pam_Kyle\ACTIVE EE Reports\Activity Reports\Board PEPP Reports\07-22-2016 PEPP Report 145



Active Library Employees

As of 07-22-2016

Operating Funds First Name Last Name

46 AC Services Operating Craig Clark
47 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper William Ellis
48 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Edwin Fallwell
49 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Elizabeth French
50 CA Technician Special Oper Andrew Funkhouser
51 AC Services Operating Evan Gornik
52 AC Services Operating Arielle Hacker
53 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Amy Hamilton
54 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Ian Hoagland
55 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Daniel Hosler
56 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Lillian Jenness
57 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Amanda Johnson
58 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Christina Jones
59 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Jack Kovaleski
60 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Audra Loudenbarger
61 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Doris Lynch
62 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Daniel Mounlio
63 BL Service/Maintenance Oper David Simpson
64 BL Service/Maintenance Oper Cherryl Tincher
65 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Tracy Lenn
66 CM Special/Asst/Para Oper Erin Tobey
67 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Ellen Arnholter
68 SA Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Steven Backs
69 IT Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Ned Baugh
70 BL Service/Maintenance Oper Terri Bell
71 AC Librarians, Experts Oper Melissa Bruecks
72 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Michael Campbell
73 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Keith Carter
74 SC Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Lisa Champelli
75 BL Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Jeremiah Chandler
76 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Jared Cheek
77 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Burl Cooper
78 AC Librarians, Experts Oper D'Arcy Danielson
79 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Luann Dillon
80 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Aubrey Dunnuck
81 AC Specialist/Asst/Para Oper Susan Fallwell
82 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Mary Frasier
83 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Christine Friesel
84 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Rebecca Fyolek
85 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Alejandria Galarza
86 BS Security/Protect Operating Dana Geldhof
87 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Joshua Gesten
88 EG Librarians, Experts Oper James Gossman
89 AD Specialist/Asst/Para Oper Marla Gray
90 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Elizabeth Gray
91 CM Librarians, Experts Oper Paula Gray-Overtoom

F:\Admin\HR\Marla_Pam_Kyle\ACTIVE EE Reports\Activity Reports\Board PEPP Reports\07-22-2016 PEPP Report 246



Active Library Employees

As of 07-22-2016

Operating Funds First Name Last Name

92 AC Librarians, Experts Oper Cheryl Green
93 BL Service/Maintenance Oper Ronald Greene
94 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Shawn Henline
95 CM Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Michael Hoerger
96 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Jennifer Hoffman
97 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Stephanie Holman
98 SP Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Christopher Hosler
99 SS Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Christopher Jackson
100 BS Security/Protect Operating Michael Johnson
101 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Kelly Jordan
102 AC Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Jennifer Kellams
103 BL Service/Maintenance Oper Bruce Kelly
104 AD Specialist/Asst/Para Oper Merriel Kern
105 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Julia Kinser
106 IT Specialist/Asst/Para Oper Joseph Langfitt
107 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Jeannette Lehr
108 AD Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Gary Lettelleir
109 CS Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Mary Loro
110 ST Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Kevin MacDowell
111 BL Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Jason Matney
112 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper John Meador
113 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Amber Mestre
114 BL Service/Maintenance Oper John Mosora
115 CS Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Michele Needham
116 AC Librarians, Experts Oper Martha Odya
117 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Polly OShea
118 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Samuel Ott
119 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Roberta Overman
120 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Jonathon Paull
121 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper M Brandon Rome
122 AC Librarians, Experts Oper Jane Ruddick
123 AD Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Susan Sater
124 IT Librarians Experts Oper Vanessa Schwegman
125 AD Support Operating Brenda Seibel
126 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Andrew Slater
127 AC Specialist/Asst/Para Oper Christine Sneed
128 CM Special/Asst/Para Oper Ryan Stacy
129 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Kathleen Starks-Dyer
130 SD Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Barbara Swinson
131 EG Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Bethany Terry
132 AC Services Operating Timothy Thompson
133 AD Tech/Oper/Secretaries Oper Pamela Wallace
134 AC Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Pamela Wasmer
135 AC Specialist/Asst/Para Oper Pamela White

F:\Admin\HR\Marla_Pam_Kyle\ACTIVE EE Reports\Activity Reports\Board PEPP Reports\07-22-2016 PEPP Report 347



Active Library Employees

As of 07-22-2016

Operating Funds First Name Last Name

136 AD Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Kyle Wickemeyer-Hardy
137 EG Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Joshua Wolf
138 AD Director/Assoc Operating Marilyn Wood

139 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Leanne Zdravecky

Sub Total Operating Funds $151,991.01 4047.50

Special/GiftFunds

Special Funds First Name Last Name

1 S CA Technician Oper Joshua Brewer
2 S CA Technician Oper Nathan Kroeger
3 S CA Technician Oper Casey Muyskens-Toth
4 S CA Technician Special Oper Eric Ayotte
5 S CA Technician Special Oper Clinton Lake
6 S CA Technician Special Oper Glenn Myers
7 S CA Technician Special Oper Jacob Saffold
8 S CA Technician Special Oper Nathan Wrigley
9 S FL Support Operating Michael Burns

10 S CA Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Martin ONeill
11 S CA Technician Special Oper Michael Adams
12 S FL Office Coordinator¸ Exper Mary Jean Regoli
13 S CA Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Adam Stillwell
14 S CA Technician Oper Robert Stockwell
15 S CA Technician Special Oper David Walter
16 S CA Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Michael White

Sub Total Special/Gift Funds $16,455.71 477.50

TOTAL All EE's ALL Funds $168,447 4525.00

F:\Admin\HR\Marla_Pam_Kyle\ACTIVE EE Reports\Activity Reports\Board PEPP Reports\07-22-2016 PEPP Report 448



Active Library Employees

As of 08-05-2016

Operating Funds

Operating Funds First Name Last Name

1 AC Services Operating Miriam Boyken
2 AC Services Operating Joseph Camacho-Roy
3 AC Services Operating Lindsey Catinella
4 AC Services Operating Paul Duszynski
5 AC Services Operating Andrew Fak
6 AC Services Operating Logan Farlee
7 AC Services Operating Cynthia Garrison
8 AC Services Operating Mary Heaps
9 AC Services Operating Logan Holmes

10 AC Services Operating Israel Horton
11 AC Services Operating Claire Jenness
12 AC Services Operating Sara Jennings
13 AC Services Operating Deborah Lang
14 AC Services Operating Sarah Long
15 AC Services Operating Michelle Meyers
16 AC Services Operating Juliann Nelson
17 AC Services Operating Brigid Phillips
18 AC Services Operating Elizabeth Polley
19 AC Services Operating Emily Purcell
20 AC Services Operating Rebecca Ray
21 AC Services Operating Riley Reynolds
22 AC Services Operating Kacey Ross
23 AC Services Operating Brandon Seals
24 AC Services Operating Karen Smith
25 AC Services Operating Roger Stremming II
26 AC Services Operating Alicia Thomas
27 AC Services Operating Jonah Wilson
28 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Cynthia Balzer
29 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Emily Buis
30 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Marion Clark
31 BL Service/Maintenance Oper Deanna Crane
32 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Katelynn Dockerty
33 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Jennifer Festa
34 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Melissa Fielman
35 BS Security/Protect Operating Ross Jackson
36 BL Service/Maintenance Oper Clare Miller
37 IT Technicians Operating Cody Mullis
38 CA Technician Oper Addison Rogers
39 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Ann Segraves
40 BS Security/Protect Operating James Sims
41 CM Support Operating William Weaver
42 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Kristina Wiltsee
43 AC Services Operating Trae Carroll
44 AC Services Operating Kenneth Carter
45 AC Services Operating Craig Clark

F:\Admin\HR\Marla_Pam_Kyle\ACTIVE EE Reports\Activity Reports\Board PEPP Reports\08-05-2016 PEPP Report 149



Active Library Employees

As of 08-05-2016

Operating Funds First Name Last Name

46 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper William Ellis
47 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Edwin Fallwell
48 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Elizabeth French
49 CA Technician Special Oper Andrew Funkhouser
50 AC Services Operating Evan Gornik
51 AC Services Operating Arielle Hacker
52 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Amy Hamilton
53 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Ian Hoagland
54 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Daniel Hosler
55 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Lillian Jenness
56 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Amanda Johnson
57 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Christina Jones
58 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Jack Kovaleski
59 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Audra Loudenbarger
60 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Doris Lynch
61 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Daniel Mounlio
62 BL Service/Maintenance Oper Cherryl Tincher
63 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Tracy Lenn
64 CM Special/Asst/Para Oper Erin Tobey
65 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Ellen Arnholter
66 SA Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Steven Backs
67 IT Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Ned Baugh
68 BL Service/Maintenance Oper Terri Bell
69 AC Librarians, Experts Oper Melissa Bruecks
70 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Michael Campbell
71 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Keith Carter
72 SC Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Lisa Champelli
73 BL Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Jeremiah Chandler
74 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Jared Cheek
75 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Burl Cooper
76 AC Librarians, Experts Oper D'Arcy Danielson
77 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Luann Dillon
78 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Aubrey Dunnuck
79 AC Specialist/Asst/Para Oper Susan Fallwell
80 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Mary Frasier
81 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Christine Friesel
82 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Rebecca Fyolek
83 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Alejandria Galarza
84 BS Security/Protect Operating Dana Geldhof
85 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Joshua Gesten
86 EG Librarians, Experts Oper James Gossman
87 AD Specialist/Asst/Para Oper Marla Gray
88 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Elizabeth Gray
89 CM Librarians, Experts Oper Paula Gray-Overtoom
90 AC Librarians, Experts Oper Cheryl Green
91 BL Service/Maintenance Oper Ronald Greene

F:\Admin\HR\Marla_Pam_Kyle\ACTIVE EE Reports\Activity Reports\Board PEPP Reports\08-05-2016 PEPP Report 250



Active Library Employees

As of 08-05-2016

Operating Funds First Name Last Name

92 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Shawn Henline
93 CM Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Michael Hoerger
94 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Jennifer Hoffman
95 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Stephanie Holman
96 SP Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Christopher Hosler
97 SS Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Christopher Jackson
98 BS Security/Protect Operating Michael Johnson
99 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Kelly Jordan
100 AC Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Jennifer Kellams
101 BL Service/Maintenance Oper Bruce Kelly
102 AD Specialist/Asst/Para Oper Merriel Kern
103 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Julia Kinser
104 IT Specialist/Asst/Para Oper Joseph Langfitt
105 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Jeannette Lehr
106 AD Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Gary Lettelleir
107 CS Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Mary Loro
108 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Jacqueline Lovings
109 ST Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Kevin MacDowell
110 BL Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Jason Matney
111 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper John Meador
112 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Amber Mestre
113 BL Service/Maintenance Oper John Mosora
114 CS Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Michele Needham
115 AC Librarians, Experts Oper Martha Odya
116 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Polly OShea
117 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Samuel Ott
118 EG Librarians, Experts Oper Roberta Overman
119 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Jonathon Paull
120 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper M Brandon Rome
121 AC Librarians, Experts Oper Jane Ruddick
122 AD Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Susan Sater
123 IT Librarians Experts Oper Vanessa Schwegman
124 AD Support Operating Brenda Seibel
125 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Andrew Slater
126 AC Specialist/Asst/Para Oper Christine Sneed
127 CM Special/Asst/Para Oper Ryan Stacy
128 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Kathleen Starks-Dyer
129 SD Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Barbara Swinson
130 EG Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Bethany Terry
131 AC Services Operating Timothy Thompson
132 AD Tech/Oper/Secretaries Oper Pamela Wallace
133 AC Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Pamela Wasmer
134 AC Specialist/Asst/Para Oper Pamela White

F:\Admin\HR\Marla_Pam_Kyle\ACTIVE EE Reports\Activity Reports\Board PEPP Reports\08-05-2016 PEPP Report 351



Active Library Employees

As of 08-05-2016

Operating Funds First Name Last Name

135 AD Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Kyle Wickemeyer-Hardy
136 EG Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Joshua Wolf
137 AD Director/Assoc Operating Marilyn Wood
138 CS Special/Asst/Para Oper Leanne Zdravecky

Sub Total Operating Funds $153,904.52 4040.00

Special/GiftFunds

Special Funds First Name Last Name

1 S CA Technician Oper Joshua Brewer
2 S CA Technician Oper Nathan Kroeger
3 S CA Technician Oper Casey Muyskens-Toth
4 S CA Technician Special Oper Eric Ayotte
5 S CA Technician Special Oper Clinton Lake
6 S CA Technician Special Oper Glenn Myers
7 S CA Technician Special Oper Jacob Saffold
8 S CA Technician Special Oper Nathan Wrigley
9 S FL Support Operating Michael Burns

10 S CA Technician Special Oper Michael Adams
11 S CA Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Martin O`Neill
12 S FL Office Coordinator¸ Exper Mary Jean Regoli
13 S CA Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Adam Stillwell
14 S CA Technician Oper Robert Stockwell
15 S CA Technician Special Oper David Walter
16 S CA Manager/Asst/Strat Oper Michael White

Sub Total Special/Gift Funds $16,695.84 477.50

TOTAL All EE's ALL Funds $170,600 4517.50

F:\Admin\HR\Marla_Pam_Kyle\ACTIVE EE Reports\Activity Reports\Board PEPP Reports\08-05-2016 PEPP Report 452



 2016 BOARD OF TRUSTEE'S CALENDER

All meetings in Room 1B unless otherwise noted

Month Date Meeting Type Potential Topics

January 13 Work Session

January 20 Board Meeting

Budget line-item transfers; officer slate approved; Conflict of 

Interest forms; Annual Report; El Centro Contract; Update:  Friends 

of the Library

January 20 Board of Finance Review Investment Report and Policy

February 10

Work Session in 

Rm 2A

February 17

Board Meeting in 

Rm 2A

Election of Board Officers; review Internet and Computer Use Policy, 

Update:  Customer Service

March 9

Work Session in 

Rm 2A

March 23

Board Meeting in 

Rm 2A Review Long Range Strategic Plan; Update:  Teen Services

April 13 Work Session

April 20 Board Meeting Update:   

May 11 Work Session

May 18 Board Meeting Update:  Children's Services

June 8 Work Session

June 15

Board Meeting at 

Ellettsville
Update:   Programming and Branch Services

July 13 Work Session

July 20 Board Meeting

Draft 2017 Budget; Update: Non-profit Central and Indiana Room 

Program, Collection Development Policy

August 10 Work Session

August 17 Board Meeting

Revise 2017 Budget, Approve 2017 Budget for advertising; Review 

Management Labor Agreement; Update:  Special Audience Services

September 14 Work Session

September 21 Board Meeting 2017  Budget; Update:   Building Services

September 21 Public Hearing Public Hearing on 2017  Budget

October 12 Work Session

October 19 Board Meeting

Adopt 2017 Budget as recommended by County Council; Update: 

CATS 

November 9 Work Session

November 16 Board Meeting Approve 2017 employee insurance package;  Update:  VITAL

December 7 Work Session

December 14 Board Meeting

Approve 2017 salary schedule, Holiday & Closing Schedule, Pay 

Schedule(dates), director's salary; CATS contracts, Fines and Fees 

schedule; Update:  Communications & Marketing

Revised June 15, 2016

53



Director’s Report  July 2016 

 
 

 
 
Every day the Library welcomes thousands of visitors into its doors. In July, the Library averaged 
2,790 visits per day. A snapshot of customer activity is highlighted below: 

 

 
 
While people visit the Library for a myriad of reasons, one thing they have in common is being a 
beneficiary of the Library. Every day thousands of books, movies, and music are accessed and 
borrowed for free. Hundreds of community organizations and study groups take advantage of free 
access to meeting rooms and study spaces. The Library’s expert staff provide free access to literacy 
services, age-appropriate learning spaces, and curated programs meeting community needs. And 
hundreds more benefit by having free access to technology, from basic computer use to our popular 
audio and video studios in Level Up. A sample of the value impact of these free services is 
highlighted below: 
 

 
1 

                                                           
1 Value calculator and description can be found at end of report.  

143,339 

71,307 

12,662 

210,956 

83,708 

 -  50,000  100,000  150,000  200,000  250,000

Monroe County Residents

All Card Holders

Unique Customers (Polaris Checkout)

Circulation

Visits

Snapshot of Customer Activities
July 2016

$6,130.50 

$644,483.00 

$150,529.50 

$374,070.00 

$69,411.00 

$16,725.00 

$750.00 

$6,275.00 

Computer Use (Hours)

Adult Print  (No Renewals)

Adult DVD  (No Renewals)

Children's Print  (No Renewals)

Program Attendance

Meeting Room Use

Auditorium Use

Audio Recording Studio (Hours)

Sample of Value Impact - July 2016
Total $1,268,374.00

54



Director’s Report  July 2016 

 
 

 
The community receives benefits from the Library without entering our doors as well. Outside the 
Library, the community takes advantage of free access to online resources, online learning 
opportunities, and on-site programming. The Library also delivers services and access to our 
collections to area day cares, senior and assisted living facilities, homebound patrons, and the 
county jail. 
 

 

 
GOAL 1: Strengthen 21st century literacy skills 

 
 

 

 

1A. Strengthen early literacy skills 

 

 Parents and caregivers learn best practices 
for developing early literacy skills in young 
children during preschool storytimes and 
programs for infants and toddlers. 
Librarians regularly model early literacy 
behaviors, promoting the importance of 
reading to, talking and singing with 
children.  Librarian Mary Frasier has been 
projecting the Library’s Every Child Ready to 
Read web pages during programs and 
showing parents how to find online the 
music and lyrics she shares in the programs. 
Several parents have made favorable 

comments about this, and one mother told 
Mary she uses the songs to distract her 
baby when they have to do things he 
doesn't enjoy, like bathing or changing his 
clothes.  Attendance at preschool and baby 
programs remained high this month. (53 
people attended the “Tuneful Twos” 
session, and Mary reports: parents actually 
groaned when I said we would not meet 
again until August!) We usually drop back 
to a single session of infant toddler 
programs during the summer since 
attendance typically drops, but because 

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Program Attendance - Children's

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

55



Director’s Report  July 2016 

 
 

movement and movement programs 
especially benefit from having a smaller 
group size, Mary will consider offering two 
morning sessions of this program next 
summer. Starting in September the Library 

will offer additional evening programs for 
young children, and continue to look for 
ways to repeat popular programs at 
different times during the week.  

 

1B. Support basic literacy skills 

 

 Enrollment in the Summer Reading Program 
is highest in June, but participation remains 
strong through July with some children just 
coming in to get their Summer Reading 
gameboard, while many more are claiming 
their final prize. A more detailed report on 
Summer Reading participation will be 
available by end of August with 
participation by age and grade level at 
various schools and survey responses from 
parents. Feedback received from parents so 
far has been overwhelmingly positive with 
parents noting how the program helps 
motivate their children to read during the 
summer. Comments have included: 
o “Children read a lot, they meet with 

very friendly people, and learn about 
many things.” 

o “My 3rd grader is behind in reading – 
she goes to tutoring all year long – this 
program makes it less like work.” 

o “[SRP provides] extra summer 
excitement – and it got us here more 
regularly which they love” 

o “The activities were great; we could live 
at the Library we love it so much!” 

o Many parents have expressed a desire 
for a “Challenge” version of the 
Summer Reading Program for children 
who are already avid readers. While we 
recommend that avid readers make the 
game more challenging by waiting to 
earn a point until they have read two 
books, we will consider other ways to 
meet needs of families looking to 
extend summer reading activities.  

 

Children 
enjoyed 
responding to 
questions 
featured on 
postcards 
throughout 

the summer, as one of our drop-in 
activities.  

 In addition to serving needs of children and 
families coming to the Library for Summer 
Reading activities, staff made effort to serve 
children at locations outside of the Library.  
o With the support of the volunteer 

Librarian at the Banneker Center, six 
children at Banneker Center Summer 
Camp completed the Summer Reading 
game and received a prize book.  

o Children’s Strategist Lisa Champelli 
visited with children and families at 
various locations in Bloomington and 
Ellettsville area where children receive 
free lunches provided by Community 
Kitchen.  Children ranged in age from 
infants to teens. Lisa will talk with other 
Library staff and with coordinators of 
Community Kitchen’s summer lunch 
program about the possibility of 
scheduling times next summer when 
Library staff can be present at a lunch 
site and offer more literacy activities for 
children to do before/after lunch. These 
activities could be advertised to families 
along with the schedule of lunch times.  

o Intern Librarian Hannah Carter joined 
Librarian Mary Frasier when she visited 
children attending the MCCSC Summer 
School at Fairview. Children enjoyed a 
program of participatory stories, joining 

56



Director’s Report  July 2016 

 
 

in on the repeated refrains and singing 
and moving to the song: My Aunt Came 
Back. Several children asked Hannah for 
instructions on how to make the 
origami organ she folded during one of 
her stories.  

 Some special programs for children this 
month, included:  
o “Game On” -  an open-ended gaming 

program featuring a variety of board 
games, led by Librarian Alex Galarza 
and SIA Sam Ott. Aimed at 7-12 year 
olds, this program has proven to be a 
great intergenerational program, too. 
Many families stay and play together 
while also inviting other children to join 
their game.  

o “Book Club” at the Ellettsville Branch 
featuring the graphic novel Babymouse 
Goes for the Gold. The theme of this 
book - that Babymouse needs to be 
active - was a nice match for the 
summer reading theme. Librarian 
Stephanie Holman led children in a 
discussion of the characters, plot, and 
their favorite parts. Participants also 
learned more about graphic novels and 
how to make their own comics. A 
majority of boys attended this program. 
At the conclusion, one boy asked:  
"when is the next book club?" 

o The movie Zootopia was wildly popular. 
The all-ages audience, including about 
12 special needs adults from Life 
Designs and their three counselors, 
filled the Auditorium to capacity.  
Anticipating that this recent release 
would be popular, the Library 
scheduled a special showing for Girls Inc 
Campers during their Animal Week, and 
introduced the movie with a short 
concert of storytelling featuring animal 

folktales. Campers from Kid City also 
attended the movie portion of this 
program. 

o Percy Jackson's “Hero Camp” also was a 
popular favorite. Librarians Christina 
Jones and Alex Galarza designed this 
multi-activity program to build 
community among fans of the Percy 
Jackson series of stories by Rick 
Riordan.  

 Working with a VITAL tutor gives learners 
confidence to practice their skills and try 
new experiences. This month, VITAL tutor 
Mary Strow reports: “(My learner) and her 
family have joined the Monroe County 
YMCA and are hoping to talk to English-
speaking people there. Also, she has begun 
to talk with the mother of one of her son’s 
friends when they accompany their children 
at a playground. (My learner) and her 
husband bring their children to the MCPL 
Children’s collection and events.”    
Each tutor and learner work together at 
their own pace. Here is a snapshot of what 
they have achieved so far in 2016: 

 
o 11 learners have advanced a level in a 

series or book 
o Three passed their driver’s tests 
o Three entered continuing education or 

job training 
o Six gained employment or a better job 
o Three improved employability skills 
o Five became more involved in their 

children’s education 
o Two became more involved in the 

community 
o 12 achieved personal goals, including 

finding housing, using a dictionary, 
independently selecting reading 
material, gaining confidence in math, 
and much more.  

 
 

57



Director’s Report  July 2016 

 
 

 
 
 

1C. Serve as a community resource for digital literacy 

 

 Programs like “Maker Lab”, “Girls Sound It 
Out” Podcast, “BTown Teens”, and “Adobe 
Lightroom Workshop”, were new or 
continuing staples in the Level Up and 
Ground Floor lineup in July and reached 
audiences of all ages.   

 Jeannette Lehr visited Wonderlab for their 
First Friday Science of Art series with the 

Library’s new virtual reality headset.  
Families and visitors of all ages tried it out 
and were happy to learn they would soon 
be able to use it at the Library.  Meanwhile, 
teens are working together with staff to 
make the technology available for Library 
visitors to experience and potentially be 
inspired to create their own apps or games.   

 
 

 
 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Program Attendance - All Age Programs

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Public Computing - Hours

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

58



Director’s Report  July 2016 

 
 

1D. Support digital creativity 

 

 One of the “Radical Fun” programs featured 
iPads loaded with the Green Screen by Do 
Ink app and plenty of kid-friendly popular 
backgrounds (like Finding Dory, Pokémon, 
Minecraft, etc.). Children learned how to 
work the app and how green screens 
worked. They also talked with Librarian Alex 
about how film makers can use green 

screen and how they used this technology 
when moving BB-8 in the new Star Wars 
movie. In addition to using green 
backgrounds with the app, children also 
wore green capes and had fun filming each 
other while wearing the green capes, and 
experimenting with disappearing heads and 
limbs.  

 
 

1E. Maintain collections to meet current needs, adding new formats and removing obsolete 
formats 

 
 The Ground Floor added a circulating maker 

collection for teens to use while in the 
space.  Since the collection became 
available teens have checked out Legos, 

Littlebits, Makey Makeys, and other maker 
kits to experiment with.  Beginning in 
August, one maker kit will be featured each 
month.   

 

 
 
 

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Collection - Items Added

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

59



Director’s Report  July 2016 

 
 

 
*This does not include items used in-house but not checked out, which might include microfilm, 

reference, or other material. 
 
 

 
*This number is actually higher when patron categories like “Jail” are included.  

 

0

50000

100000

150000

200000

250000

300000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Monthly Circulation

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

July 2015,
13,267 

12,697 12,299 12,507 12,290 
11,663 12,044 11,918 12,440 11,949 12,427 

13,159 

July 2016
12,662 

 -

 2,000

 4,000

 6,000

 8,000

 10,000

 12,000

 14,000

Total Unique Patrons Checking out Material

July 2015 August 2015 September October November December January

February March April May  June Juiy 2016

60



Director’s Report  July 2016 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

GOAL 2: Provide shared access to the world’s information for free 

 

2A. Provide programs for teens and adults 

 

 The Library distributed a record number of 
Program Guides this summer. Nearly 4,500 

Program Guides were picked up by the 
community in May, June, and July.  

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

Adult Coll Children's Coll DVDs CDs Downloadables Other

Circulation:  Percentage of Total Circulation for 
Each Collection

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 YTD

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Circulation - Drive Up

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

61



Director’s Report  July 2016 

 
 

 The Library partnered with I.U. Center on 
Education and Lifelong Learning and the 
Indiana Resource Center on Autism to 
present Camp Yes, And, a week long 
workshop for teens on the autism 
spectrum.  Using the Main Library’s 
auditorium, teachers and students used 
theatrical improv as a means to develop 
social communication skills.  A reaction 
from one the participants: “The camp 
experience has made it easier for me to 
communicate with my peers. I think I will be 
able to stay on topic more when I have 
conversations. I also will be using the tools I 
learned in Camp Yes And. I had a very fun 
time meeting new people. I hope I go to this 
camp next year.”  And from one of the 
teachers: “I have additional materials in my 
‘bag of tricks’ now. I feel I'll be more 
observant of language and social dynamics, 
giving me extra opportunities to help the 
students expand in those areas. Several 
times this week, I found myself wishing I 
was more like [the students]. They are 
brilliant, courageous, and compassionate, 
topped with a sense of humor. I knew that, 
but didn't realize the magnitude. I believe I 
have a whole new level of respect for 
them.” 

 Eight women were joined by Dory Lynch 
and Luann Dillon to discuss and share 
impressions of the book All the Light We 
Cannot See by Anthony Doerr at the 
Ellettsville Branch Bookclub. Everyone 
enjoyed the book and some had read it 
twice. People shared their own stories and 
remembrances of WW II in the European 
theater. They also made many critical 
points on the reason for the success of the 
book. One new person attended to get 
ideas for her personal at home book club. 

She was directed to the program for Book 
Club Groupies at the Main branch.  

 Sixteen ladies discussed the book The Flying 
Circus by Indiana author Susan Crandall at 
“BooksPlus” at the Main Library. Everyone 
enjoyed reading the book. Some disagreed 
with the character development and felt 
the most unlikable characters were the 
women. A few people shared memories of 
pilots who performed stunts at local small 
airports, and that it was a treat to just go to 
the airport to watch the planes take off and 
land.  

 17 people attended the “Fiction Workshop” 
led by novelist Annette Openlander.  
Attendees shared the genres they wrote in 
as well as examples of what they thought 
were good beginnings of novels, followed 
by examples from less effective ones. 
Annette provided an outline of what the 
first page must do, as well as what the first 
chapter does. She gave concrete examples, 
and took questions. Attendees received 
links to the PowerPoint presentation as well 
as a bibliography of books about writing. 
They also received a list of open writer 
groups in the area. Afterwards, one person 
wrote, "I came hoping it would motivate me 
to write. And it did." Another said she 
would apply what she learned "immediately 
to a story I am reworking." 

 Whiskey Tango Foxtrot was the feature for 
New Movie Monday with 59 attendees in 
the audience for this popular showing.  
Attendees even clapped after the film and 
several stopped to remark about how much 
they liked it.  

 127 teens participated in the Summer 
Reading Program at the Main Library, the 
Ellettsville Branch, and on the Bookmobile.   

 

 

 

62



Director’s Report  July 2016 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

2B. Increase community awareness of and engagement with the library 

 

 MCPL was recognized as a community 
partner by the Monroe County Community 
School Corporation for the 2015-2016 
school year. We thank MCCSC for featuring 
a link to the Children’s Summer Reading 
program on their home page! 

 The Library received a lot of free, great 
press due to the partnership with the 
Middle Coast Film Festival. The Library 
hosted two movie showings for children 
that were the initial events for the weekend 
film festival. 

 

School Visits

One Year Party

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Program Attendance - Teens

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Program Attendance - Adults

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

63



Director’s Report  July 2016 

 
 

 

 

2C. Strengthen services for nonprofit organizations 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

  

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Programs Produced by CATS Staff
Government Meetings, Community Events, PSA's

2013 2014 2015 2016

Level Up and 
Study Rooms 

Open

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Total Public Meeting Room Reservations

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

64



Director’s Report  July 2016 

 
 

2D. Continually refresh web content and improve usability based on principles of user-
centered design 

 

 The Communications and Marketing Unit 
continues work on updating the backend of 
the website. This behind the scenes work is 
being done to upgrade the software that 
runs the website and to setup the website 
to be more flexible and current in the 

future. The first major change will come in 
October, when the website’s current layout 
will be converted to responsive design, 
meaning web pages will detect the visitor's 
screen size and orientation and change the 
layout accordingly. 

 
 

 
 

  

65



Director’s Report  July 2016 

 
 

GOAL 3: Provide high quality, personalized customer service. 
 

 
 
 

 
 

2014 Initial Year 
for Library Cards 

in the Schools

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

New Accounts Added

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Number of Kids Earning Waived fees Through 
Read it Off

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

66



Director’s Report  July 2016 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

3A. Provide quality customer service to increasingly diverse audiences 

 
 Stonecroft Health Campus and Garden Villa 

are new stops of the Library’s Van Service, 
bringing the total number of stops to eight.  
Focusing on assisted living facilities whose 
residents might not have the mobility to 
navigate the Bookmobile’s steps, our Van 
Service transports carts of books that are 

rolled inside to a lobby or meeting room.  
Users browse the carts, and we also bring 
specific titles by request. The other stops on 
the schedule are Edgewood Village, Golden 
Living, Hearthstone Health Campus, 
Patterson Pointe, Providence Place, and 

0-9
7%

10-19
18%

20-29
23%

30-39
18%

40-49
11%

50-59
9%

60-69
8%

70-79
4%

80+
2%

Library Card Holders by Age
July 2016
Total: 71,656+

 0-9 10-19 20-29 30-39 40-49 50-59 60-69 70-79 80+

+ does not include customer records deleted during the month

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Visits - Total

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

67



Director’s Report  July 2016 

 
 

Redbud Hills, where Library staff visit each 
on a bi-weekly basis. 

 Indiana Room Regular Ed Hitchcock has 
spent the last few months researching 
Revolutionary War veteran James Bryant, 
originally of Virginia, buried in Spencer, 
1853. Mr. Hitchcock is a member of the 
Daniel Guthrie Chapter of the Sons of the 
American Revolution, Bedford, Indiana. He 
is finishing up a project to bring a marker to 
Mr. Bryant’s grave, commemorating his 

service in the war. The service will take 
place the Sunday, August 14th. 

 CATS invited all local candidates to 
participate in “Candidates on Demand”.  
Since 1999, CATS has provided free studio 
production time, cable time, Internet 
streaming and archiving of short statements 
from all local candidates.  These 3-5 minute 
sessions will be taped in August and 
September and will be available for public 
viewing and downloading from the first 
week of October until the general election.   

 

 

GOAL 4: Optimize stewardship of library resources 

4A. Recruit and retain quality employees 

 
 The Library was awarded a scholarship of 

$3,990 for librarians Alejandria Galarza, and  
Jennifer Hoffman to attend the 
Harwood/ALA Public Innovators Lab in 

Atlanta, GA in October. Two members of the 
Leadership Team have already received this 
training which will help us turn outwards to 
involve the community in the planning of our 
services and programs.  

 
 

 
 

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Employee Hours Worked Per Month

2013 2014 2015 2016

68



Director’s Report  July 2016 

 
 

 
 

 

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Employee Wages Per Month

2013 2014 2015 2016

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Total Volunteers

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

69



Director’s Report  July 2016 

 
 

 

 

4C. Maintain library facilities 

 

 Building Services staff completed evaluation 
of drainage in the stairwell outside the Teen 
area.  Recent flash flooding has been 

problematic and water has entered the 
building.  Repairs are planned for 
September.   

 

4D. Improve stewardship of library assets and records 

 
 Christine Friesel and Bara Swinson attended 

the Indiana Archives and Records 

Administration workshop on Public Record 
Retention.   

 
 

 
 

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Volunteers - Hours Worked

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

 -

 50,000

 100,000

 150,000

 200,000

 250,000

 300,000

 350,000

 400,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Total Electric Use (Both Main and Ell)

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

70



Director’s Report  July 2016 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

   

 
  

 -

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

 25,000

 30,000

 35,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Total Electric Cost (Both Main and Ell)

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

71



Director’s Report  July 2016 

 
 

Monroe County Public Library's Value Calculator 

Explanations of Values   

   

Library Service 
 Value of 

Service  Based On 

Adult Books Borrowed (Excluding Renewals)  $           23.00  
School Library Journal: Average of 
2015/2016 price  

Children Books Borrowed (Excludng Renewals)  $           10.00  
School Library Journal: Average of 
2015/2016 price  

Adult DVD's Borrowed  (Excluding Renewals)  $             4.50  Redbox 3 Day Rental price  

Meeting Room Use (Per Reservation)  $           75.00  MCPL Fee Schedule  

Auditorium Use (Per Reservation)  $        150.00  MCPL Fee Schedule  

Program Attendance   $           17.00  

Average of programs offered 
by Community Agencies1 

Computer Use (Per Hour)  $             0.50  
Economic Impact of Libraries 2007 
Indiana Business Research Center 

Audio Recording Studio (Per Hour)  $           25.00  

Estimate adjusted for no 
engineer.   Average of 
Community Studios2 

1Including:  WonderLab, Ivy Tech:  Life Long Learning/Kid City, Parks and Rec, Older American Center 
2Including:  Russian Recording Studio, Rewind, and Morrison Recording Studio 

 

72

http://www.slj.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/03/AvgPrice_chart2016-rev.jpg
http://www.slj.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/03/AvgPrice_chart2016-rev.jpg
http://www.slj.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/03/AvgPrice_chart2016-rev.jpg
http://www.slj.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/03/AvgPrice_chart2016-rev.jpg
https://redbox.custhelp.com/app/answers/detail/a_id/623/related/1
http://mcpl.info/geninfo/fee-schedule
http://mcpl.info/geninfo/fee-schedule
http://www.ibrc.indiana.edu/studies/EconomicImpactOfLibraries_2007.pdf
http://www.ibrc.indiana.edu/studies/EconomicImpactOfLibraries_2007.pdf


     
 

Monroe County Public Library 
2017 Budget  

 
We met with our DLGF representative on August 11. We were advised to increase our operating budget by about $60,000 and reduce our Debt fund 
budget by $11,500. It is complicated because the Gateway system still has some flaws related to how tax cap credits are entered. We made the 
adjustment and increased the estimated LIRF transfer. By doing this we get the advertised totals to the amounts recommended by our DLGF 
representative. 
 
Updated from July budget narrative 
 
Following our current strategic initiatives, the financial plan for 2017 considers both the community’s needs for library services now and into the 
future. The 2017 budget plan has the following primary areas of focus: 

 Maintaining current operational levels at all facilities while encouraging growth of audiences served. 
 Facilities management through life cycle replacement planning. 
 Providing for new services to meet needs of our growing community through planning for a new branch. 
 Ellettsville renovation, seeking architect proposals and beginning construction in 2017. 

 
 
Here is a comparison of the Operating Fund projected 2017 spending budget vs. the 2016 spending budget: 
 

2016  2017 %
increase

Wages and Benefits 5,616,284                             5,799,572                             3.26%
Supplies 205,100                                198,350                                 ‐3.29%
Other Services & Charges 1,337,800                             1,392,400                             4.08%
LIRF Transfer 298,000                                426,978                                 43.28%
Capital Outlay 998,700                                1,019,500                             2.08%
Total Operating Expenditures 8,455,884                             8,836,800                             4.50%

Operating Fund Spending Budget

 
 
Wage and Benefit Assumptions 

73



     
 

Wages and benefits account for 66% of the 2017 budget. We have estimated a raise increase of about 3% for this first draft of the budget. We have 
estimated a 15% increase for the employer contribution to health insurance. The final decision about the wage increase percent will be made in 
December 2016, after we confirm health insurance costs for 2017. 
 
2017 Revenue Summary 
The total Operating Fund revenue projection for 2017 is about $8,190,000, an increase of about .6% compared to 2016 revenue projections. The 
property tax revenue projection is based on an increase of 3.8% ‐ the 2017 AVGQ. The Local Income Tax estimate is based on 90% of the 2016 COIT. 
We should receive the final 2017 COIT figure soon. The other revenue lines which include fines, fees, and miscellaneous state tax revenue make up 
about 6% of the annual total operating fund revenue and they are based on the 2016 projections. (See Worksheet A.) 
Budgeted Deficit – Expected Surplus 
Each year the Library maximizes budgeted revenue and spending authority by making annual increases in the operating fund as high as the AVGQ will 
allow.  Budgeting at this level helps reduce the possibility of going back to the County Council for an additional appropriation should there be a 
spending need.  We have been fortunate in the past few years and these higher than needed budgeted spending amounts have allowed the Library to 
accumulate funds for goals outside our normal operating expenses.    
 
Over the past three budget years the budgeted spending has been higher than the budgeted revenue resulting in a projected deficit in each of those 
overall budgets. The budgeted deficit for 2015 was projected at about $244,000. The actual results for 2015 were much better though and we ended 
with a surplus of about $535,000 which has been earmarked mostly for spending for the new branch and the Ellettsville renovation. The budgeted 
deficit for 2016 is about $350,000 but I am projecting that we will end up with a surplus of at least $200,000.   For 2017 the budgeted spending is about 
$430,000 higher than budgeted revenue.  We anticipate 2017 surpluses will follow previous years. 
 
Revenue in other Funds 
The Library received a surprise windfall amounting to about $600,000 in additional COIT revenue for 2016. We were directed to account for the 
unplanned revenue in the Rainy Day Fund. The windfall will be part of the reserve balance we are building for facility projects. 
 
Minimum Cash Reserve Balance 
The library’s minimum cash reserves are at about $3 million which is about 30% of the total spending budget. We are using a guideline of one million 
dollars as the minimum cash reserves in each of these three funds ‐ Operating, Rainy Day, and LIRF funds.  

New Branch Allocation – projected balance 
Projected 12‐31‐16 balance ‐ $2,118,000 
Plus ‐ 2017 LIRF transfer ‐ $376,000 
Plus ‐ Estimated 2016 surplus ‐ $200,000 

74



     
 

Plus estimated 2019 bond allocation ‐ $1,245,000 (board approval request in January 2018 – bond sale December 2018) 
Total estimated funds for New Branch end of 2017 plus the next bond allocation ‐ $3,939,000  
 
Accompanying Documents 
Worksheet A shows estimated revenue, expense, and cash balances, by fund.   
Worksheet B includes line item expenditures for all four funds.   
Worksheet C shows line item expenditures in the Operating Fund budget, compared to previous years.  
Worksheet D provides narrative information about each fund and items that changed significantly.  

75



2017 Budget ‐ estimated revenue, expense, and cash balances

Worksheet A
2016 Budget after 

1782 2017 Estimates 

Asses. Val. 6,605,505,317      6,718,593,869       
INCOME

Property Tax 2017 ‐ growth quotient  = 1.038
Property Tax  5,581,652$            5,799,004              
County Option Income Tax 2,026,293$            1,823,664$            
Commercial Vehicle Excise Tax 42,508$                  42,510$                 
Financial Institutions Tax 18,918$                  18,023$                 
License Excise 291,702$               323,852$               
Fines/Fees 150,000$               150,000$               
Other ‐ meeting rooms/interest 8,000$                    8,000$                    
Copier fees 12,500$                  12,500$                 
Other ‐ PLAC 12,500$                  12,500$                 

TOTAL 8,144,073$            8,190,053$            
EXPENSES

Personnel Services 5,616,284$            5,799,572$            
Supplies 205,100$               198,350$               
Other Services/Charges 1,635,800$            1,392,400$            
LIRF xfer w/ tax cap adj 48,022 426,978$               
Capital  998,700$               1,019,500$            

TOTAL before encumbrance $8,455,884 $8,836,800
Encumbrance (646,747)$              

$8,455,884
FUND BALANCE

Beginning 1,752,955$            1,752,955$            

Income less exp. (646,747)$              
Ending balance 1,752,955$            1,106,208$            

Operating Fund

Worksheet A 76



Worksheet A
2016 Budget after 

1782 2017 Estimates 

INCOME
Property Tax 693,578$               688,500$               
Circuit Breaker (718)$                     
Commercial Vehicle Excise Tax 5,282                     5,300                      
Financial Institutions Tax 2,351                     2,300                      
License Excise 36,247                   36,000                    

TOTAL 736,740$               732,100$               
EXPENSES

Bond Payment 696,527$               688,500$               
FUND BALANCE

Beginning 23,694$                  23,694$                 
Income less exp. 43,600$                 
Ending balance 23,694$                  67,294$                 

INCOME
Transfer 298,000$               426,978$               

EXPENSES
Other Services/Charges 100,000$               125,000$               
Capital  250,000$               400,000$               

TOTAL $350,000 $525,000
FUND BALANCE

Beginning 1,809,800$            2,107,800$            
xfer ‐  298,000$              
Renov/eq
Total 2,107,800$            2,107,800$            

Debt Service Fund

Library Improvement Reserve Fund

Worksheet A 77



Worksheet A
2016 Budget after 

1782 2017 Estimates 

INCOME Transfer ‐ repay
EXPENSES

Other Services/Charges 109,500$               85,000$                 
Additional Appropriation
Capital  215,000$               65,000$                 

TOTAL $324,500 $150,000
FUND BALANCE

Beginning 1,035,455$            1,635,455$            
COIT distribution 600,000$              
Renov
Total 1,635,455$            1,635,455$            

Rainy Day Fund

Worksheet A 78



2017 2017 2017 2017 2017

2017 BUDGET OPERATING LIRF RAINY DAY DEBT TOTAL
SERVICE FUNDS

PERSONNEL SERVICES 
SALARIES

1120 ADMINISTRATION 187,508       
1130 MANAGERS 1,036,770    
1140 LIBRARIANS, EXPERTS 1,099,735    
1150 SPECIALISTS 217,914       
1160 ASSISTANTS-PARAPROFESSIONALS 719,285       
1170 TECH / SECRETARIES 60,450         
1180 -see "Other Wages" below
1190 BUILDING SERVICES-MAINT. 159,101       
1200 BUILDING SERVICES-SECURITY 107,838       
1280 PRODUCTION ASSISTANTS 17,836         
1290 INFO ASST. / MATERIAL SUPPORT 428,875       
1300 MATERIAL HANDLER 221,000       
1320 TECHNICIANS 16,151       

TOTAL SALARIES 4,272,463  -                 -                   4,272,463    

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
1210 EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION/FICA 265,943       
1220 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 10,000         
1230 EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION/PERF 377,098       
1235 EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTION/PERF 101,008       
1240 EMPLOYER CONT/INSURANCE 697,564       
1250 EMPLOYER CONT/MEDICARE 62,196       

TOTAL EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 1,513,809  -                 1,513,809    

OTHER WAGES
1310 WORKSTUDY 3,300           
1180 TEMPORARY STAFF 10,000         
1350 STIPEND -                 

TOTAL OTHER WAGES 13,300       13,300         

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES (1000s) 5,799,572    -                   5,799,572      

Worksheet B
79



2017 2017 2017 2017 2017

2017 BUDGET OPERATING LIRF RAINY DAY DEBT TOTAL
SERVICE FUNDS

SUPPLIES (2000s)
OFFICE SUPPLIES

2110 OFFICIAL RECORDS 1,100           
2120 STATIONERY & PRINTING 550              
2130 OFFICE SUPPLIES 11,500         
2140 DUPLICATING 44,400         
2150 PROMOTIONAL MATERIALS -                 

TOTAL OFFICE SUPPLIES 57,550       -                 57,550         

OPERATING SUPPLIES
2210 CLEANING SUPPLIES 40,000         
2220 FUEL, OIL, & LUBRICANTS 9,000           
2230 CATALOGING SUPPLIES 6,000           
2240 AUDIO VISUAL SUPPLIES 6,000           
2250 CIRCULATION SUPPLIES 32,500         
2260 LIGHT BULBS 12,000         
2270 RECORDING MATERIALS - CATS -                   
2280 UNIFORMS 1,900           
2290 DISPLAY/EXHIBIT SUPPLIES 4,000           

TOTAL OPERATING SUPPLIES 111,400         -                    111,400       

REPAIR & MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES
2300 IS SUPPLIES 6,500           
2310 BUILDING MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 22,000         
2315 ENERGY AUDIT SUPPLIES -                   
2320 PAINT & PAINTING SUPPLIES 900              
2340 OTHER REPAIR & BINDING -                   
2350 RECORDING EQUIP SUPPLIES - CATS -                 

TOTAL REPAIR & MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 29,400       29,400         

TOTAL SUPPLIES (2000s) 198,350       -                   198,350         

OTHER SERVICES/CHARGES (3000s)
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

3110 CONSULTING SERVICES 39,000         20,000       

Worksheet B
80



2017 2017 2017 2017 2017

2017 BUDGET OPERATING LIRF RAINY DAY DEBT TOTAL
SERVICE FUNDS

3120 ENGINEERING/ARCHITECTURAL 7,000           20,000       
3130 LEGAL SERVICES 15,500         20,000       
3140 BUILDING SERVICES 40,000         
3150 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 170,500       
3160 OCLC & COMPUTER SERVICES 72,500         
3170 ADMIN/ACCOUNTING SERVICES 51,000         
3175 COLLECTION AGENCY SERVICE 18,000       

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 413,500     -                 60,000       473,500       

COMMUNICATION & TRANSPORTATION
3210 TELEPHONE 31,300         
3220 POSTAGE 19,000         
3230 TRAVEL EXPENSE 10,000         
3240 PROFESSIONAL MEETINGS 10,000         
3250 CONTINUING EDUCATION 10,000         
3260 FREIGHT & DELIVERY 1,000         

TOTAL COMMUNICATION & TRANSPORTATION 81,300       81,300         

PRINTING & ADVERTISING
3310 ADVERTISING & PUBLICATION 2,850           
3320 PRINTING 5,000         

TOTAL PRINTING & ADVERTISING 7,850         7,850           

INSURANCE
3410 OFFICIAL BOND 600              
3420 OTHER INSURANCE 80,500       

TOTAL INSURANCE 81,100       81,100         

UTILITIES
3510 GAS 4,450           
3520 ELECTRICITY 332,000       
3530 WATER 26,300       

TOTAL UTILITIES 362,750     362,750       

REPAIR & MAINTENANCE
3610 BUILDING REPAIR 29,000         125,000    25,000       

Worksheet B
81



2017 2017 2017 2017 2017

2017 BUDGET OPERATING LIRF RAINY DAY DEBT TOTAL
SERVICE FUNDS

3630 OTHER REPAIR 16,000         
3640 VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 12,500         
3650 MATERIALS BINDING/REPAIR 1,500         

TOTAL REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 59,000       125,000    25,000       209,000       

RENTALS
3710 REAL ESTATE RENTAL/BOND PMT. 32,900         688,500         
3720 EQUIPMENT RENTAL -                 

TOTAL RENTALS 32,900       688,500       721,400       

OTHER CHARGES
3845 ELEC. RECOURCES-DATABASES 190,000       
3846 E-BOOKS 150,000       
3910 DUES/INSTITUTIONAL 7,500           
3920 INTEREST/TEMPORARY LOAN 2,000           
3930 TAXES & ASSESSMENTS -                   
3940 TRANSFER TO LIRF 426,978       
3945 TRANSFER TO RAINY DAY -                   
3950 EDUCATIONAL LICENSING/SERVICES 4,500         

TOTAL OTHER CHARGES 780,978     780,978       

TOTAL OTHER SERVICES/CHARGES (3000s) 1,819,378    125,000      85,000         688,500         2,717,878      

CAPITAL OUTLAY (4000s)
FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT

4410 FURNITURE 10,000         25,000      25,000       
4420 AUDIO VISUAL EQUIPMENT -                   
4430 OTHER EQUIPMENT 19,000         125,000    25,000       
4440 LAND & BUILDINGS -                   
4450 BUILDING RENOVATION - 5,000           250,000    15,000       
4460 IS EQUIPMENT -                   
4465 IS SOFTWARE -                   
4470 EQUIPMENT - CATS -                   
4475 SOFTWARE - CATS -                 

TOTAL FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT 34,000       400,000    65,000       499,000       

Worksheet B
82



2017 2017 2017 2017 2017

2017 BUDGET OPERATING LIRF RAINY DAY DEBT TOTAL
SERVICE FUNDS

OTHER CAPITAL OUTLAY
4510 BOOKS 582,000       
4520 PERIODICIALS & NEWSPAPERS 43,000         
4530 NONPRINT MATERIALS 340,000       
to get to 15% 20,500         
4540 ELECTRONIC RESOURCES -                 

TOTAL OTHER CAPITAL OUTLAY 985,500     985,500       

15.00%
TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 1,019,500    400,000      65,000         1,484,500      

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2017 8,836,800    525,000      150,000       688,500         10,200,300    

TOTAL BUDGET 2016 8,455,884 350,000      324,500       730,000         9,860,384      
Increase from 2015 4.50% 50.00% -53.78% -5.68% 3.45%

Worksheet B
83



Worksheet C 2017 2016 2015 2014
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL

PERSONNEL SERVICES (1000'S)
SALARIES

1120 ADMINISTRATION 187,508             180,540             123,262             187,268             
1130 MANAGERS 1,036,770          1,052,557          902,239             616,208             
1140 LIBRARIANS, EXPERTS 1,099,735          1,004,405          1,043,051          1,191,262          
1150 SPECIALISTS 217,914             205,078             369,085             780,042             
1160 ASSISTANTS-PARAPROFESSIONALS 719,285             706,002             596,084             468,598             
1170 TECH / SECRETARIES 60,450               56,687               105,021             229,230             
1180 -see "Other Wages" below
1190 BUILDING SERVICES-MAINT. 159,101             137,100             216,767             376,170             
1200 BUILDING SERVICES-SECURITY 107,838             113,916             71,000               
1280 PRODUCTION ASSISTANTS 17,836               32,765               11,557               
1290 INFO ASST. / MATERIAL SUPPORT 428,875             456,229             306,637             
1300 MATERIAL HANDLER 221,000             112,831             142,310             
1320 TECHNICIANS 16,151               15,148               9,753                 

TOTAL SALARIES 4,272,463          4,073,259          3,896,766          3,848,778          

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
1210 EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION/FICA 265,943             250,063             232,449             228,078             
1220 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 10,000               10,000               
1230 EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION/PERF 377,098             373,925             357,313             355,157             
1235 EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTION/PERF 101,008             100,159             95,921               95,407               
1240 EMPLOYER CONT/INSURANCE 697,564             735,396             551,867             692,328             
1250 EMPLOYER CONT/MEDICARE 62,196               58,482               54,363               53,341               

TOTAL EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 1,513,809          1,528,025          1,291,913          1,424,309          

OTHER WAGES
1310 WORKSTUDY 3,300                 5,000                 1,994                 2,555                 
1180 TEMPORARY STAFF 10,000               10,000               -                     1,359                 
1350 STIPEND/RECLASSIFICATION

TOTAL OTHER WAGES 13,300               15,000               1,994                 3,913                 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 5,799,572          5,616,284          5,190,673          5,277,001          

2017 BUDGET COMPARISON

Worksheet C 84



Worksheet C 2017 2016 2015 2014
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL

65.63% 66.42% 63.12% 70.26%

SUPPLIES (2000'S)
OFFICE SUPPLIES     

2110 OFFICIAL RECORDS 1,100                 1,100                 46                      908                    
2120 STATIONERY & PRINTING 550                    900                    517                    73                      
2130 OFFICE SUPPLIES 11,500               12,200               6,633                 6,602                 
2140 DUPLICATING 44,400               44,200               42,493               30,218               
2150 PROMOTIONAL MATERIALS 200                    

TOTAL OFFICE SUPPLIES 57,550               58,400               49,688               38,001               

OPERATING SUPPLIES
2210 CLEANING SUPPLIES 40,000               42,200               31,808               38,429               
2220 FUEL, OIL, & LUBRICANTS 9,000                 10,500               5,358                 8,077                 
2230 CATALOGING SUPPLIES-BOOKS 6,000                 7,000                 4,510                 4,346                 
2240 A/V SUPPLIES-CATALOGING 6,000                 9,200                 4,602                 3,966                 
2250 CIRCULATION SUPPLIES 32,500               32,500               29,351               27,131               
2260 LIGHT BULBS 12,000               10,000               8,508                 10,573               
2270 VIDEOTAPE - CATS
2280 UNIFORMS 1,900                 1,900                 1,352                 1,838                 
2290 DISPLAY/EXHIBIT SUPPLIES 4,000                 7,000                 1,646                 2,230                 

TOTAL OPERATING SUPPLIES 111,400             120,300             87,134               96,590               

REPAIR & MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES
2300 IS SUPPLIES 6,500                 5,000                 5,647                 2,415                 
2310 BUILDING MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 22,000               21,000               19,059               15,247               
2315 ENERGY AUDIT MATERIALS
2320 PAINT & PAINTING SUPPLIES 900                    400                    898                    287                    
2340 OTHER REPAIR & BINDING
2350 VIDEO MATERIALS - CATS

TOTAL REPAIR & MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 29,400               26,400               25,604               17,949               

TOTAL SUPPLIES 198,350             205,100             162,426             152,540             

Worksheet C 85



Worksheet C 2017 2016 2015 2014
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL

OTHER SERVICES/CHARGES (3000'S)
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

3110 CONSULTING SERVICES 39,000               11,000               2,308                 12,763               
3120 ENGINEERING/ARCHITECTURAL 7,000                 10,000               -                     10,000               
3130 LEGAL SERVICES 15,500               15,000               12,912               7,851                 
3140 BUILDING SERVICES 40,000               40,000               30,660               33,283               
3150 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 170,500             155,600             138,169             116,985             
3160 COMPUTER SERVICES (OCLC) 72,500               70,500               62,047               60,247               
3170 ADMIN/ACCOUNTING SERVICES 51,000               47,000               41,865               39,289               
3175 COLLECTION AGENCY SERVICES 18,000               21,000               17,112               15,822               

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 413,500             370,100             305,073             296,240             

COMMUNICATION & TRANSPORTATION
3210 TELEPHONE 31,300               33,600               21,981               28,302               
3220 POSTAGE 19,000               22,000               15,945               16,652               
3230 TRAVEL EXPENSE 10,000               10,000               2,719                 3,406                 
3240 PROFESSIONAL MTG. (OFF-SITE) 10,000               10,000               2,612                 1,423                 
3250 CONTINUTING ED. (0N-SITE) 10,000               10,000               1,246                 
3260 FREIGHT & DELIVERY 1,000                 1,000                 2,064                 17                      

TOTAL COMMUNICATION & TRANSPORTATION 81,300               86,600               45,322               51,046               

PRINTING & ADVERTISING
3310 ADVERTISING & PUBLICATION 2,850                 2,350                 1,948                 3,400                 
3320 PRINTING 5,000                 5,000                 860                    1,331                 

TOTAL PRINTING & ADVERTISING 7,850                 7,350                 2,808                 4,731                 

INSURANCE
3410 OFFICIAL BOND 600                    600                    450                    450                    
3420 OTHER INSURANCE 80,500               77,000               71,831               71,658               

TOTAL INSURANCE 81,100               77,600               72,281               72,108               

UTILITIES
3510 GAS 4,450                 4,950                 2,916                 2,624                 
3520 ELECTRICITY 332,000             354,000             280,803             334,672             

Worksheet C 86



Worksheet C 2017 2016 2015 2014
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL

3530 WATER 26,300               27,100               21,582               20,904               

TOTAL UTILITIES 362,750             386,050             305,300             358,200             

REPAIR & MAINTENANCE
3610 BUILDING REPAIR 29,000               28,000               32,752               22,433               
3630 OTHER EQUIP/FURNITURE REPAIRS 16,000               16,000               5,635                 4,168                 
3640 VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 12,500               10,000               11,455               5,187                 
3650 MATERIAL BINDING/REPAIR SERV. 1,500                 1,500                 932                    739                    

TOTAL REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 59,000               55,500               50,774               32,527               

RENTALS
3710 REAL ESTATE RENTAL/BOND PMT. 32,900               35,600               23,290               31,438               
3720 EQUIPMENT RENTAL

TOTAL RENTALS 32,900               35,600               23,290               31,438               

OTHER CHARGES
3845 ELEC. RECOURCES-DATABASES 190,000             175,000             143,414             146,331             
3846 E-BOOKS 150,000             145,000             131,298             118,738             
3910 DUES/INSTITUTIONAL 7,500                 8,000                 5,617                 7,671                 
1004 MISCELLANEOUS
3920 INTEREST/TEMPORARY LOAN 2,000                 2,000                 -                     -                     
3930 TAXES & ASSESSMENTS
3940 TRANSFER TO LIRF 426,978             298,000             785,000             -                     
3945 TRANSFER TO RAINY DAY
3950 EDUCATIONAL SERV/LICENSING 4,500                 4,000                 3,688                 3,155                 

TOTAL OTHER CHARGES 780,978             632,000             1,069,017          275,896             

TOTAL OTHER SERVICES/CHARGES 1,819,378          1,650,800          1,873,866          1,122,186          

CAPITAL OUTLAY (4000'S)
FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT

4410 FURNITURE 10,000               10,000               16,574               1,788                 
44105 ENCUMBERED FURNITURE
4420 AUDIO VISUAL EQUIPMENT

Worksheet C 87



Worksheet C 2017 2016 2015 2014
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL

4430 OTHER EQUIPMENT 19,000               20,000               16,453               17,279               
4440 LAND & BUILDINGS
4450 BUILDING RENOVATIONS 5,000                 5,000                 1,607                 4,529                 
4460 IS EQUIPMENT
4465 IS SOFTWARE
4470 EQUIPMENT - CATS
4475 SOFTWARE - CATS

TOTAL FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT 34,000               35,000               34,634               23,596               

OTHER CAPITAL OUTLAY
4510 BOOKS 582,000             562,700             570,167             549,042             
4520 PERIODICIALS & NEWSPAPERS 43,000               43,000               42,548               38,856               
4530 NONPRINT MATERIALS 340,000             343,000             348,739             347,662             
to get to 15% 20,500               -                     -                     
4540 ELECTRONIC RESOURCES -                     -                     -                     -                     

TOTAL OTHER CAPITAL OUTLAY 985,500             948,700             961,455             935,560             
15.00% 15.00% 15.03% 15.99%

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 1,019,500          983,700             996,088             959,155             

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES 8,836,800        8,455,884          8,223,054        7,510,882        

Worksheet C 88



NOTICE TO TAXPAYERS

Prescribed by the Department of Local Government Finance
Approved by the State Board of Accounts

       Budget Form No. 3 (Rev. 2015)
 Print

8/11/2016 3:57:53 PM

 Public Hearing Date
Wednesday, September 
21, 2016  Adoption Meeting Date

Wednesday, October 19, 
2016

 Public Hearing Time 5:45 PM  Adoption Meeting Time 5:45 PM

 Public Hearing Location 303 E. Kirkwood Ave  Adoption Meeting Location 303 E. Kirkwood Ave

 Estimated Civil Max Levy $5,799,004

Property Tax Cap Credit 
Estimate $48,022

1
Fund Name

2
Budget Estimate

3
Maximum Estimated 
Funds to be Raised 

(including appeals and 
levies exempt from 

maximum levy 
limitations)

4
Excessive Levy 

Appeals

5
Current Tax Levy

0061-RAINY DAY $150,000 $0 $0 $0

0101-GENERAL $8,836,800 $5,799,004 $0 $5,581,652

0180-DEBT SERVICE $688,500 $688,500 $0 $693,578

2011-LIBRARY IMPROVEMENT 
RESERVE

$525,000 $0 $0 $0

Totals $10,200,300 $6,487,504 $0 $6,275,230

Complete details of budget estimates by fund and/or department may be seen by visiting the office of this unit of government at 
303 E. Kirkwood Ave.

Notice is hereby given to taxpayers of MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY, Monroe County, Indiana that the proper officers 
of Monroe County Public Library will conduct a public hearing on the year 2017 budget. Following this meeting, any ten or 
more taxpayers may object to a budget, tax rate, or tax levy by filing an objection petition with the proper officers of Monroe
County Public Library not more than seven days after the hearing. The objection petition must identify the provisions of the 
budget, tax rate, or tax levy to which taxpayers object. If a petition is filed, Monroe County Public Library shall adopt with the 
budget a finding concerning the objections in the petition and testimony presented. Following the aforementioned hearing, the 
proper officers of Monroe County Public Library will meet to adopt the following budget:

The Notice to Taxpayers is available online at www.budgetnotices.in.gov or by calling (888) 739-9826.

89



 

 

MONROE COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PROPERTY SURPLUS 

 
WHEREAS, the equipment listed below is no longer needed by the library, and 
 
WHEREAS, the library has the authority to sell, transfer, demolish, or junk the items 
under IC 5-22-22-6 Public or private sale or transfer without advertising or IC 5-22-22-8 
Worthless property,  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of Monroe County 
Public Library declares the following item(s) surplus and authorizes disposition of the 
items. 
 
Local Tag Description  Year
401204 AUTOMATION SYSTEM/VIDEO & DIGITAL SERVER 2009  
 
ADOPTED THIS 17th  DAY OF AUGUST, 2016 
 
                                    AYE                                                               NAY 
 
 
_____________________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
_____________________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
_____________________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
_____________________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
_____________________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
_____________________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
_____________________________________ ______________________________ 

90



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Joint Submission Approval by 

The Board of Trustees of the Monroe County Library 
 

 

 

August 21 17, 20132016 

 

 

 

On Behalf of 

The Monroe County Public Library ("Library") 

and 

The American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, 

and its Local Number 2802 ("AFSCME") 

  

91



Article I – Definitions 

As used in this agreement (as defined below), the following terms shall have the 

following meanings: 

 

Agreement means the understanding reached by the parties and approved by the Board of 

Trustees of the Monroe County Public Library. Nothing in this document, including the 

use of the term "agreement" shall be interpreted or construed to mean that this document 

is a binding contract of any kind or that either party has the right or authority to enforce 

this document by way of legal action or proceeding in any court or administrative agency 

(local, state, or federal). The parties recognize and agree that the sole and final authority 

with regard to this document is the Board of Trustees of the Monroe County Public 

Library and that no court or agency (local, state, or federal) shall have any jurisdiction of 

any kind whatsoever over the relationship of the parties or the terms of this document. It 

is understood that this document is not intended to, and shall not, serve to diminish, 

supersede or modify the authority or powers of the Board of Trustees of the Monroe 

County Public Library. It is also understood by the parties that this agreement does not 

waive any individual employee's right to seek redress of claims with the Equal 

Employment Opportunity Commission, the Indiana Civil Rights Commission or any 

other local, state or federal agency with jurisdiction over claims of discrimination 

covered by local, state or federal law. 

 

Confidential employee means any employee who works in the Monroe County Library's 

("Library") administrative office, security, and any other employee who, in the regular 

course of his or her duties, assists and acts in a confidential capacity to persons who 

formulate, determine, and effectuate management policies with regard to employee 

relations or who, in the regular course of his or her duties, has authorized access to 

information relating to the effectuation or review of the employer's employee relations or 

human resources policies. 

 

Employee means any regular employee of the Library, but the term "employee" does not 

include anyone who is: a confidential employee; or, a managerial employee; or, a 

supervisor; or, a part-time employee who is classified as working less than twenty (20) 

hours per week; or, a member of the Board of Trustees; or, a temporary employee. 

 

Managerial employee means any individual who: participates in the formulation of policy 

(nothing in this definition is intended to prohibit any bargaining unit employees from 

participating in authorized committees); or, is significantly engaged in executive or 

management functions; or, is charged with the responsibility of directing the 

implementation of management policies, procedures or practices, or, is involved in 

administration of human resources or personnel decisions, including, but not limited to, 

92



staffing, reductions, reorganizations, hiring, discipline, evaluations, pay, assignments, 

transfers, promotions or demotions. 

 

Personnel practices means wages, hours, fringe benefits, and the voluntary payment of 

dues. 

 

Resolution means the Resolution Establishing Policies Concerning Employee 

Organizations adopted by the Board of Trustees of the Monroe County Public Library on 

December 19, 2007. 

 

Supervisor means any individual who has authority to hire, transfer, suspend, lay off, 

recall, promote, demote, discharge, assign and schedule, reward or discipline other 

employees, or to adjust grievances, or effectively to recommend any such action. All 

facts and circumstances must be considered. Engaging in one or more of these activities, 

in and of itself, will not result in a finding of supervisory activity. 

 

 

 

Article II -- Union Recognition and Representation 

 

Section 1. The American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, 

AFL-CIO, Local 2802 ("AFSCME") is recognized as the representative of all regular 

full-time and part-time employees (who work twenty (20) hours per week or more) of the 

Monroe County Public Library ("Library"), specifically excluding all confidential, 

probationary, supervisory, managerial, and temporary employees, as well as part-time 

employees who work fewer than twenty (20) hours per week. Also excluded are all 

members of the Library Board, interns, and similar staff or employee positions. 

 

Section 2. With regard to those employees covered by this agreement, AFSCME 

shall be entitled: (i) to act on behalf of all the employees in the unit and shall be 

responsible for representing the interests of all the employees in the unit in a manner 

consistent with the Resolution, without discrimination and without regard to employee 

organization membership; (ii) to be given the opportunity, upon request of the employees, 

to be represented at discussions between administrative officials or their representatives 

and employees or employee representatives concerning grievances or personnel practices; 

and (iii) to call, and be represented on an equal representation committee meeting with 

administrative officials for the purpose of negotiating joint written recommendations to 

the Library Board on matters concerning grievances or personnel practices for employees 

in the unit. 

 

93



Section 3. AFSCME acknowledges the paramount interests of the people of the State 

of Indiana and the County of Monroe in the efficient and economical operation of the 

Library and hereby pledges to refrain from encouraging or participating in any acts or 

practices which are inconsistent with such paramount interests or with this agreement or 

the resolution. The privileges herein extended to AFSCME shall not be construed either 

directly or indirectly to extend to, without limitation, such areas of discretion and policy 

as: (i) the mission of the Library; (ii) the Library's budget; (iii) the organization and 

assignment of Library employees; (iv) the technology of performing work of the Library; 

(v) any matters governed by federal, state or local government law or regulation; or (vi) 

any of the rights or responsibilities retained by the Library as set forth in the Resolution 

or reserved to the Library by this agreement. 

 

Section 4. Neither AFSCME nor any employee shall have the right to participate in, 

conduct, threaten, or to induce or encourage others to participate in, conduct or threaten 

any strike, slowdown, work stoppage or other type of job action or interruption or 

interference with the activities of the Library, or to act in concert with other employees to 

abstain in whole or in part from the full, faithful and proper performance of their duties 

for the Library. The Library reserves the right to deal with any such activity by any 

lawful means, including discharge or suspension without pay of any participating 

employee. In addition, upon a finding by the Board that any of the actions prohibited 

herein have occurred: (i) a court of competent jurisdiction immediately shall restrain and 

enjoin all such employees and AFSCME from engaging in such actions and award to the 

Library its costs and reasonable attorneys' fees, and any and all other appropriate money 

damages and other relief; (ii) the Library may terminate immediately any employee who 

has violated this section. In the event that AFSCME is determined to have violated this 

Article, it shall cease to be accorded recognition under the Resolution for a period of not 

less than one (1) year. In the event recognition is withdrawn by the Library, all rights and 

privileges granted to AFSCME by the Resolution or this agreement shall terminate and 

this agreement shall be of no further force or effect. 

 

Section 5. In the event that a termination under this Article is made, subject to review 

under the Grievance Procedure of this agreement, the review of such termination must 

only determine whether an employee has violated this Article to properly uphold the 

termination. A person separated from employment for violating this Article may, 

subsequent to such violation, at the sole discretion of the Library Board, or its designated 

representatives, be appointed or reappointed, employed or reemployed, but only upon the 

following conditions: (i) such person shall be on probation for a period of two (2) years 

following such appointment or reappointment, employment or reemployment, during 

which period he or she shall serve at the pleasure of the Library without recourse to the 

grievance procedure; and (ii) such person shall be considered a completely new employee 

94



for purposes of vacation allowance, sick leave accrual, and all other benefits related to 

length of service, except retirement benefits as established from time to time by law. 

 

Section 6. The Library shall not participate in, threaten, conduct or induce a lockout 

of employees during the term of this agreement. 

 

 

 

Article III -- Employee Rights 

 

Section 1. Employees of the Library shall have the right freely and without fear of 

penalty or reprisal to form, join, and assist any lawful employee organization, or to 

refrain from any such activity. Such rights do not extend to participation in the 

management of an employee organization, or acting as a representative of any such 

organization, where such participation or activity would result in a conflict of interest or 

otherwise be incompatible with law or with the official duties of an employee. 

 

Section 2. The Library shall take appropriate action to advise all employees of the 

rights referred to in this Article and to assure such employees that they may exercise such 

rights without fear of penalty or reprisal and free of interference, restraint, coercion, or 

discrimination by the Library, or its officers or employees, or by any employee 

organization, or its officers or employees or members. 

 

Section 3. Nothing in this agreement shall be construed to require an employee to 

become or to remain a member of AFSCME or any employee organization. 

 

Section 4. Nothing in this agreement shall preclude any employee or group of 

employees, regardless of AFSCME membership, from bringing matters of personal 

concern to the attention of appropriate administrative officials of the Library in 

accordance with applicable rules, regulations or established policy, or from choosing his 

or her own representative in a grievance or appellate action. 

 

Section 5.  Balancing the Library’s operational needs in serving its patrons and the 

community, the Library seeks to maintain as regular and predictable a work schedule as 

conditions permit to minimize disruptions to the Library and to the employees. Any 

significant changes in hours of work shall be communicated with the employee. This 

provision shall not apply for short-term work schedule changes such as for the 

replacement of an absent employee. 

 

 

 

95



Article IV -- Management Rights 

 

Section 1. The Library retains the right and responsibility: (i) to direct employees of 

the Library; (ii) to hire, promote, transfer, assign and retain employees in positions; (iii) 

to suspend, demote, discharge, or take other disciplinary action against employees; (iv) to 

relieve employees from duties because of lack of work, financial exigency, 

discontinuance or curtailment of an activity or for other legitimate reasons; (v) to 

maintain the efficiency of the operations; (vi) to determine the methods, means and 

personnel by which such operations are to be conducted; (vii) to make and enforce work 

rules and policies; (viii) to take all actions consistent with this agreement; and (ix) to take 

whatever actions may be necessary to carry out the mission of the Library. 

 

Section 2. This enumeration of these examples of management rights shall not be 

deemed to exclude other rights not enumerated. It is agreed that all other rights not 

specifically restricted by the express terms of this agreement or Resolution are retained 

exclusively by the Library. 

 

 

 

Article V -- Union Security 

 

Section 1. Membership in the Union is not compulsory for any employee and is not a 

condition of employment with the Library. Employees have the right to join or not join 

the Union and neither the Union nor the Library shall exert any pressure on any employee 

to join or not join the Union. The Union will immediately recognize any revocation of 

Union membership by any Library employee. 

 

Section 2. Neither the Union nor the Library will discriminate against any employee 

based on membership in the Union. 

 

Section 3. The Library will not enter into any agreement or contract with any Union 

eligible employee that is in conflict with this agreement. 

 

Section 4. The Library shall share equally the cost of printing this agreement and the 

Resolution, which shall consist of one 8 ½ by 11 inch copy of the agreement and 

Resolution for each employee. At the discretion of the Library, the agreement and 

Resolution may be posted on the Library intranet rather than printed. 

 

Section 5. The Library agrees to provide AFSCME a comprehensive list of all 

eligible Members distinguished by employee name, job title, department, classification, 

96



and seniority date every six months, along with a current list of all union eligible job 

titles. The lists will be sent to the union president. 

 

Section 6. The Library also agrees to provide employees who have been hired into a 

union-eligible position new Library employees who are in the bargaining unit with the 

information about AFSCME supplied information packet as  to it by AFSCME as a part 

of the employee's orientation. The packet will contain an up to date list of and to provide 

new employees with the names of the AFSCME stewards. 

 

Section 7. Upon request, the Library shall provide to AFSCME job descriptions of 

positions covered by this agreement. The Library shall notify AFSCME of its decision to 

establish any new classifications for positions covered by this agreement. 

 

 

 

Article VI -- Union Dues Check-off 

 

Section 1. Deduction of Union dues from an employee paycheck will be a 

completely voluntary decision on the part of each individual employee. There shall be no 

solicitation of employees for Union membership or for the payment of Union dues 

conducted upon the premises of the Library during working time by the Union, its 

representatives or by any employee. 

 

Section 2. The amount of Union dues shall be fixed by the Union in accordance with 

the Constitution and applicable Bylaws of the Union and shall be certified to the Library 

by the Union in writing. The amount of Union dues shall not be modified more than once 

per year. Any modification to the amount of Union dues shall also be in writing. 

 

Section 3. Employees who wish to have Union dues deducted from their paychecks 

shall furnish the Library with written authorization to make such deductions, which 

authorization must be in full compliance with, and valid under, all applicable laws. The 

Library retains the right to reject any authorization that is not in compliance with law. An 

authorization will be deemed automatically revoked if an employee leaves the employ of 

the Library or no longer is working in a position covered by this agreement. In the event 

that any law is established or interpreted to prohibit deductions in accordance with this 

Article, the Library will no longer be obligated to make such deductions. 

 

Section 4. Upon receipt by the Library of a voluntary, lawful and duly authorized, 

written deduction authorization form, the Library shall deduct from the first pay period of 

each month, the authorizing employee's Union membership dues. The Library shall remit 

97



to the Union all such deductions by the twentieth (20th) day of the succeeding month for 

which the deduction is made, at an address supplied in writing to the Library. 

 

Section 5. The Union agrees to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Library 

against any lawsuit, claim, demand, proceeding, or other form of liability that might arise 

out of or by reason of action taken or not taken by the Library for the purpose of 

complying with any of the provisions of this Article. Such indemnification by the Union 

shall be without cost to the Library, including attorneys' fees. In the event of any lawsuit, 

claim, demand, or other proceeding against the Library, the Library shall have the right to 

choose its own defense counsel and all costs and fees will be charged to the Union. 

 

Section 6. The transmission of amounts to the Union by the Library pursuant to this 

Article shall constitute a complete release of the Library, and full waiver by the Union 

and each employee who has furnished an authorization for Union dues deduction, for all 

sums transmitted. 

 

Section 7. If an employee who has furnished a compliant Union dues deduction 

authorization does not have sufficient earnings for the period in which the deduction is to 

be made to allow for such deduction, such Union dues will not be deducted and the 

Library will have no obligation or responsibility to make any such deduction. 

 

 

 

Article VII -- Labor/Management Committee 

 

Section 1. The Library and AFSCME, recognizing the advantage of mutual 

cooperation, hereby agree to establish a joint Labor Management Committee to facilitate 

labor-management relations within the Library. The Committee shall consist of six (6) 

employees, three (3) of whom shall be appointed by the Library and three (3) of whom 

shall be appointed by AFSCME. All members of the Committee must be employed by 

the Library, unless mutually agreed otherwise by the parties, in advance. 

 

Section 2. The Library and AFSCME will meet no less often than once per quarter 

for the purpose of discussing issues important to both, unless the parties agree that there 

is no need for a meeting during a particular quarter. The authorized scope of these 

meetings will be to discuss personnel practices as defined in the Resolution. No personnel 

practices will be modified without discussing them with the Union. The Library will also 

give AFSCME reasonable notice to significant changes to job classifications, 

descriptions, or staffing levels within the bargaining unit. 

Formatted: Default, Adjust space between Latin and
Asian text, Adjust space between Asian text and
numbers

98



Section 3. Committee meetings shall, whenever practical, be conducted on paid time. 

Minutes of the Labor/Management meetings shall be published within ten (10) days of 

approval by the Union and Management. 

 

 

 

Article VIIIa. – Employee Conduct 

 

Employee job performance and personal conduct impact MCPL's ability to achieve its 

mission of providing a high quality of public service. It is always the hope that the 

working relationship between the employee and the Library will be long term and 

mutually satisfactory. However, when violations of policies occur or when observed job 

performance is deemed unsatisfactory, a supervisor is expected to work with the 

employee in order to improve the performance of that individual. 

 

Therefore, these rules and principles of job performance are adopted as guidelines for 

monitoring behavior, evaluating the performance of staff, seeking improvements in 

performance when problems arise, exercising progressive disciplinary procedures 

applicable to all staff, and providing a fair and consistent process of appeal for staff to 

follow. The spirit of this policy is to facilitate open discussion between supervisors and 

employees in order to resolve issues in an environment of mutual respect and objectivity 

without retaliation. 

 

a. Counseling 

 

Counseling and coaching of employees is a regular occurrence and desirable to achieve 

understanding and communication, without formal discipline where practical. Therefore, 

counseling and documentation of counseling will not be considered disciplinary in nature 

and will not be used for purposes of progressive discipline. Because counseling is not 

disciplinary in nature, it is not subject to the grievance procedure. 

  

99



Article VIIIb. – Discipline 

 

Section 1. Administration shall retain the right and responsibility to suspend, demote, 

discharge, or take other disciplinary action against employees. Any of the following 

actions may be taken when necessary to discipline an employee. Any disciplinary action 

taken for minor infractions shall be progressive. Transfers will not be used for 

disciplinary reasons. The Library shall have thirty (30) days from the date that the 

Library’s representative knew of an employee's infraction to impose discipline for any 

infraction that may have occurred. 

 

For purposes of progressive discipline, no disciplinary action taken against an employee 

may be considered except those issued within the preceding three (3) years. 

If a final decision is made to impose discipline, the employee and the Union, with the 

employee's permission, shall be notified in writing within fourteen (14) calendar days of 

the action being taken, unless a mutually agreed upon extension is granted. 

 

a. Disciplinary Warnings/Corrective Action 

 

When infractions of rules or policies or performance concerns are more serious, 

where there are repeated minor infractions, where coaching/counseling has been 

ineffective, or for any other reason the Library deems appropriate or necessary, an 

employee may be issued a written warning/corrective action. The Union will be 

given a copy of such warnings, so long as the employee consents, and the warning 

will be placed in the employee's personnel file. The employee may grieve a 

written warning/corrective action through the Grievance Procedure in this 

agreement. 

 

b. Suspension 

 

The Library Director or his/her designee may suspend employees with or without 

pay for serious infractions of rules or policies, where there are repeated minor 

infractions, where less severe corrective action/warning has been ineffective, 

where there are performance concerns, or for any other reason the Library deems 

appropriate or necessary. The length of suspension will be determined by the 

Library and communicated to the employee. The employee may grieve a 

suspension through the Grievance Procedure in this agreement. 

 

c. Dismissal/Discharge 

 

100



The Library may discharge employees for serious infractions of rules or policies, 

where there are repeated minor infractions, where less severe corrective 

action/warning has been ineffective, where there are performance concerns or for 

any other reason the Library deems appropriate or necessary. The employee may 

grieve a discharge through the Grievance Procedure in this agreement. 

 

Section 2. An employee shall have the right, upon request, to have one AFSCME 

representative, either a steward or an officer, with him/her at any disciplinary meeting. 

The employee will have the right to choose a particular Union representative, so long as it 

is not disruptive to operations. The presence or absence of a Union representative will not 

be grounds for seeking to grieve the outcome of the investigation on the merits. 

Section 3. If a grievance of a disciplinary action results in a withdrawal or change of 

such disciplinary action, the record of the disciplinary action shall be changed or removed 

from the employee's file to reflect the results of the grievance. 

 

  

101



Article IX -- Grievance Procedure 

 

Section 1. This procedure shall extend only to: (i) the interpretation or application of 

this agreement; or (ii) the interpretation or application of Library policy, and not to 

changes in or proposed changes in Library policy. 

 

STEP 1. Within ten (10) days of the aggrieved event, the employee and an 

AFSCME steward or employee-officer shall meet with the employee's immediate 

supervisor and department manager during the employee's regularly scheduled work 

period and attempt to resolve the grievance. 

 

STEP 2. If the grievance is not satisfactorily resolved at the first step, then within 

ten (10) additional days, the employee and the AFSCME steward or employee-officer 

may request, in writing, a meeting with the Human Resources Manager and the 

Department Manager or designee. Within ten (10) days of this request, a meeting 

shall be held during the employee’s regularly scheduled work time. Within ten (10) 

days after this meeting, the Department Manager or designee shall give a written 

answer to the employee and the local AFSCME representative. The employee's 

AFSCME representation at this step shall be limited to one (1) steward or employee-

officer. 

STEP 3. If the grievance is not resolved at the second step, then within ten (10) 

days, the employee and the AFSCME representative may forward the written 

grievance to the Associate Director or, in his/her absence, to the Library Director. To 

assist in resolving the grievance, the Associate Director and/or Library Director may 

schedule a meeting with the aggrieved employee and the AFSCME steward or 

employee-officer. This meeting shall be held during the employee's regularly 

scheduled work time. The employee’s AFSCME representation at this and all 

subsequent steps in this grievance is limited to one (1) AFSCME steward or 

employee-officer and one (1) non-employee AFSCME staff representative. Within 

thirty (30) days of the receipt of the grievance, the Associate Director or Library 

Director will make a written determination and advise the employee and Union of the 

decision. 

 

STEP 4. If the employee is still aggrieved after the decision in step three, then 

within ten (10) days, the employee may request mediation by a mutually agreeable 

mediator. If the parties cannot agree, then the Union may submit a request to the 

American Arbitration Association for a panel of five (5) mediators from which the 

parties will strike, in alternating fashion after the flip of a coin, one mediator from the 

list. The last remaining name will serve as the mediator. This step may be invoked 

only with the approval of the individual employee or employees concerned. These 

102



mediation procedures shall be advisory in nature with any decisions or 

recommendations subject to the approval of the Board of Trustees. 

 

Section 2. All costs of any mediation hereunder shall be shared equally by the 

parties. 

 

Section 3. The aggrieved employee or employees shall have the right to have a 

representative of his or her own choosing speak for the employee's interests, so long as 

such representative is also an employee or is a representative of AFSCME and is not an 

employee's personal attorney. The Library shall not retaliate or discriminate in any 

manner against any employee for initiating a grievance. 

 

Section 4. If management does not respond to a grievance within the specified time 

limits, unless prevented by good cause or when the time is extended by mutual agreement 

of the parties, the employee may advance the grievance to the next step. If an employee 

or the Union fails to file a grievance or the grievance is not appealed within the time 

limits provided in this Article, the grievance shall be considered withdrawn. 

 

Section 5. Grievances will be processed only when the occurrence on which the 

grievance is based occurs prior to the effective date of the termination of this agreement. 

 

Section 6. Employees who are required to attend hearings during the grievance 

procedure shall be compensated at their regular rate of pay. It is understood by the parties 

that overtime will not be paid to any employee for any of the above listed proceedings. 

 

Section 7. An employee who is suspended or terminated may bypass Step 1 and 

initiate a grievance at Step 2. 

  

103



Article X -- Personnel Files 

 

Section 1. The File. All library personnel files shall be maintained in the Human 

Resources department and made available for the employees' inspection upon request. 

Upon request, one copy of any material in an employee's personnel file shall be provided 

to the employee free of charge. If more than one copy is requested, additional copies will 

be provided at a standardized charge for duplication. The review of the file shall take 

place in an appropriate area of Human Resources and, if the employee so chooses, in the 

presence of an AFSCME representative (a steward or an employee-officer). The 

personnel file of each employee (date of hire, classification, performance appraisals, etc.) 

shall be held in strict confidence, with the exceptions noted below, for the employee and 

the Board. Authorized persons who may have access to this file are the employee, an 

authorized Union representative of the employee designated in writing by the employee, 

the employee's manager, the employee's supervisor, the administrative office, and the 

Board. 

 

Section 2. Additional Documents. Employees may submit documents for placement 

in their personnel file to the Human Resources Manager, to be forwarded to the Library 

Director or their designee if the documents relate to their job performance and relevant 

non-work accomplishments. 

 

Section 3. Employment References. References to prospective employers regarding a 

current or former employee will contain dates of employment, position held and whether 

the person is currently employed with the Library. Upon written request by the employee, 

the Human Resources Manager or the employee's immediate manager may supply a 

reference letter of the employee's job performance to the prospective employer with a 

copy also sent to the employee. 

 

Section 4. Credit Inquiries. The Library will verify the fact of employment upon 

request. If additional information is requested, the employee will be consulted. 

Informational requests from banks and other credit institutions shall not be answered, 

with the exception of dates of hire and salary, position held and whether the person is 

currently employed with the Library. 

 

Section 5. Notation of Duties Performed. Employees who have been assigned to 

temporary duties outside their job classification shall have that fact noted in their 

personnel file as evidence of their performance. 

 

 

 

104



Article XI -- Union Business and Union Stewards 

 

Section 1. The Union may select, and the Library will recognize, five (5) Union 

Stewards who must be regular employees of the Library, all of whom shall be recognized 

by the Library as the representative(s) of the bargaining unit employees for purposes of 

discussion of matters covered by this agreement. The Stewards must be identified in 

writing to the Library. 

 

Section 2. The duties of the Steward shall be limited to the investigation and/or 

presentation of grievances and the administration of this agreement. 

 

Section 3. There shall be no investigation or processing of employee complaints or 

grievances during scheduled working time. Conferences between the Union and the 

Library to discuss employee complaints and grievances shall take place at times and 

places mutually agreed upon by the Library and the Union, but in the event such 

discussions occur during the Steward’s non-work time, the Steward will not be 

compensated for such time. 

 

Section 4. Discussions regarding the renewal or modification of this agreement will 

take place at times and places mutually agreed upon by the Library and the Union. 

 

Section 5. AFSCME may select no more than three (3) employees to represent 

AFSCME in the negotiation of proposed modifications to this agreement during working 

hours without loss in compensation.  No overtime will be granted.  There shall be no 

more than one (1) employee from any branch and no more than one (1) employee from 

any department of the Main Library. units with less than ten (10) staff members and no 

more than two (2) employees from larger units. The names of such representatives of 

AFSCME shall be submitted to Human Resources at least two (2) weeks prior to the first 

scheduled meeting. The Library may select no more than three (3) employees to represent 

the Library in the negotiation of proposed modifications to this agreement. 

 

AFSCME may also be represented in negotiations by a non-employee union 

representative, and the library may be represented by legal counsel.  

 

Both the Library and Union may name one (1) substitute at least two (2) weeks prior to 

the first scheduled meeting. In the event of a negotiation team member’s absence for 

three (3) consecutive meetings or more, a predetermined substitute will replace the absent 

team member for a period of time specified by that team. The substitute will be not 

informed of the details of the negotiation proceedings until such time as their 

participation becomes necessary, and must adhere to the rules and protocol established by 

the negotiation team.  

 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Not Highlight

105



Section 6. The Library shall provide the Union with reasonable space on two (2) 

bulletin boards at the Main branch and one (1) at the Ellettsville each branch.  

 

The union will also be provided access to one (1) library email account for notification to 

union eligible staff for time sensitive information. This email account will be configured 

for outbound messaging only.  

 Notifications will direct recipients to their personal email accounts or other 

communications internal to the union.  

 Union represented employees may “opt-out” of the distribution list by contacting 

the union. 

The list of names of participating union-eligible staff will be maintained by the union with 

periodic updates sent to the Information Systems Technology Manager and copied to the 

Human Resources Manager. As with all MCPL computers and personal email usage 

guidelines, personal business may be conducted during breaks and unpaid time, providing 

such use does not negatively impact other employees' ability to perform their jobs. 

See Section 5.08: Use of Computers, Email, and Other Technologies 

No information displayed on the bulletin board or contained in the notification email may 

be partisan, political, defamatory, derogatory, or offensive. Neither the bulletin board nor 

the MCPL email account may be used for campaign purposes, Union or otherwise. 

 

Section 7. Union Access 

 

a. Access to work locations 

 

Stewards and the Local 2802 AFSCME President shall be allowed access to work 

locations with supervisor approval at reasonable times in order to represent 

employees. With reasonable notice to the Library Director or designee and with 

the approval of the Library Director or designee, a non-employee representative 

of AFSCME shall be allowed access to work locations not accessible to the 

general public. 

 

b. Meeting rooms 

 

The Library shall make available on Library premises conference and meeting 

rooms for Local 2802 union meetings upon prior notification by the designated 

Union representative and subject to prior commitments for space utilization by the 

Library, other governmental entities, or members of the general public. All 

meetings held under this section shall occur during normal Library operating 

hours and be consistent with Library meeting room policy.  The Union must 

reserve meeting rooms like all other public entities.  Employees shall not attend 

Union meetings pursuant to this Section during scheduled work times. 

 

Section 9. The Library will provide the Union with prior notice of significant 

changes to Library policy that conflict with this agreement. An The Board of Trustees 

agenda and board packet will be accessible to all parties on the Library’s public website.  

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

106



 

Section 10. The Library communicates employment changes (new hires, job changes, 

and terminations) via the MCPL weekly internal newsletter.  Should employment 

changes not be announced via this method, the library shall notify AFSCME five (5) days 

after the first pay period of the new hires/employment change, if any new or rehired 

employee is added to the payroll in a position covered by this agreement. 

 

 

 

Article XII -- Subcontracting Work 

 

Section 1. Employees covered by this agreement recognize and acknowledge that the 

nature of the work of the Library requires the utilization of seasonal, temporary, part-time 

or volunteer workers on occasion and such use shall not violate this Article. Further, it 

shall not be a violation of this Article for the Library to utilize interns and/or work-study 

employees, as it deems appropriate, in the sole discretion of management. 

 

Section 2. There shall be no limitation on the Library's right to subcontract, contract, or 

outsource bargaining unit work to outside firms, contractors, or subcontractors, if the 

Library deems such a relationship appropriate. However, the Library shall not 

subcontract bargaining unit work solely for the purpose of laying off members of the 

bargaining unit. 

 

 

 

Article XIII – Seniority 

 

Section 1. Seniority of an employee begins with the most recent date of employment 

with the Library and takes effect after any probationary period has expired. 

 

Section 2. Seniority shall be considered continuous unless the employee: 

a. Is discharged for cause; or 

b. Resigns voluntarily; or 

c. Is laid off for lack of work and not recalled within one (1) year of such layoff; or 

d. Fails to return to work by recall subsequent to a layoff within five (5) days after having 

been notified to do so by certified mail to last known address. 

When an employee is terminated for any of these reasons and is subsequently re-

employed, he/she shall be considered a new employee for all purposes. 

 

 

107



 

Article XIV -- Layoff and Recall 

 

Section 1. If a reduction in the workforce is necessary, the Library shall notify the 

affected employees and the AFSCME President within eight (8) work weeks. 

 

Section 2. Seasonal, temporary, and probationary employees shall be laid off first. 

Additional layoffs will take into consideration seniority, breadth of skills/knowledge, and 

job performance, in conjunction with current business needs. However, the Library may 

allow voluntary resignations, retirements, demotions, or changes to part-time status on 

the part of relevant employees in order to offset layoffs. 

 

Section 3. Employees laid off will retain and accumulate seniority rights during such 

layoff for a period up to one year. 

 

Section 4. Upon recall, former employees within a job classification who were laid 

off in accordance with this Article shall be offered recall in the reverse order in which 

they were laid off, provided, however, no more than one (1) year has elapsed since their 

layoff. 

 

Section 5. AFSCME will be furnished copies of all official layoff and recall notices 

to the affected employee(s) within five (5) work days of their announcement. 

 

 

 

Article XV -- Work on Higher Rated Jobs 

 

Section 1. In the event an employee is directed by the Library to temporarily perform 

all or substantially all the job functions and duties of another classification covered by 

this agreement which has a higher scheduled rate of pay, and the employee works in such 

classification for more than one (1) full week (of at least five (5) consecutive days) that 

employee shall receive the higher rate of pay which shall be retroactive to the first hour 

of said assignment and continue for the duration of such assignment. 

  

108



Article XVI -- Unauthorized Activities 

 

Section 1. Strikes and Other Acts Prohibited. 

 

a. No employee and no employee organization shall have the right to participate 

in, conduct, threaten, or to induce or encourage others to participate in, conduct or 

threaten any strike, slowdown, work stoppage or other type of job action or 

interruption or interference with the activities of the Library, or to act in concert 

with other employees to abstain in whole or in part from the full, faithful and 

proper performance of their duties for the Library. The Library reserves the right 

to deal with any such activity by any lawful means, including discharge or 

suspension without pay of any participating employee. 

 

b. Upon a finding by the Board that any of the actions prohibited in this section 

have occurred: 

 

(1) A court of competent jurisdiction immediately shall restrain and enjoin 

any individuals or organizations from engaging in such actions; and 

 

(2) Award to the Library its costs and reasonable attorneys' fees; and 

 

(3) Award any and all other appropriate money damages and other relief. 

 

c. The Library may terminate immediately any employee who has violated this 

section. In the event that such a termination is made subject to review under a 

dispute resolution procedure contained in this agreement, the Board of Trustees or 

its designee reviewing the termination must only determine whether an employee 

has violated this section to properly uphold the termination. A person separated 

from employment for violating the above conditions may, subsequent to such 

violation, at the sole discretion of the Board of Trustees, or its designated 

representatives, be appointed or reappointed, employed or reemployed, but only 

upon the following conditions: 

(1) Such person shall be on probation for a period of two (2) years 

following such appointment or reappointment, employment or 

reemployment, during which period he or she shall serve at the pleasure of 

the administrative officials of the Library without recourse to grievance 

procedures; 

(2) Such person shall be considered a completely new employee for 

purpose of vacation allowance, sick leave accrual, and all other benefits 

109



related to length of service, except retirement benefits as established from 

time to time by law. 

 

d. Any employee organization determined to have violated this section shall cease 

to be accorded recognition under the Resolution for a period of one (1) year. 

 

Section 2. Nothing in the Resolution or this agreement shall operate to limit or 

restrain the Library or Library administration from exercising its right to express or 

disseminate, whether in written, printed, graphic or visual form, any views, argument or 

opinion with respect to an employee organization or matters related thereto. 

 

 

 

Article XVII -- Entire Agreement 

 

Section 1. The Library and AFSCME shall not be bound by any requirement not 

specifically stated in this agreement. This agreement represents the complete agreement 

between the parties. 

 

Section 2. It is expressly understood that no provision of this agreement shall be 

waived or considered waived by any act, omission or communication, provided, however, 

that both parties shall have the right to mutually agree to waive a provision by express 

written authorization from the Library representative and the representative of AFSCME. 

 

Section 3. If any article or section of this agreement should become invalid by 

operation of law or be declared invalid or permanently enjoined by any court of 

competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this agreement shall not be affected and either 

party may request collective bargaining negotiations concerning the invalid provision 

within thirty (30) days of its invalidity. 

 

 

 

Article XVIII -- Employee Personnel Policies, Benefits, and Wages 

 

Section 1. All personnel policies contained in the Personnel Manual, and employee 

benefits, and wages, as approved by the Board of Trustees, shall be applicable to 

employees represented by the Union. The parties recognize that the Board of Trustees has 

the sole authority to modify such benefits, policies, and wages. 

 

110



Section 2. The Library will not propose any modifications to the personnel policies 

contained in the Personnel Manual, which affect the bargaining unit, without first 

engaging in good faith bargaining with the Union. 

 

Section 3. During the early stages in the budgetary process, the administration 

conducts analysis and considers various factors of the ensuing fiscal year’s budget. 

Estimates of possible wage adjustments will be shared with the library Board of Trustees 

as part of preliminary budgetary reporting. 

 

The Library will not propose any modifications to wages, which affect the bargaining 

unit, without first engaging in good faith bargaining with the Union. 

 

Section 4. The Wage and Salary Schedule, Pay Schedule and Holiday Closing 

Schedule will be posted annually on the library’s intranet following the annual approval 

by the Board of Trustees. 

 

 

 

Article XIX -- Term of Agreement 

 

Section 1. This agreement shall become effective on August 2117, 2013 2016 and 

shall remain in effect until August 1715, 20162019. If notice is provided by either party 

that it wishes to modify or amend this agreement at least 180 days in advance of its 

termination, the parties agree to commence bargaining on a subsequent agreement no 

later than 60 days before the expiration of this agreement. 

 

Section 2. If the parties are unable to conclude negotiations, if negotiations are 

broken off or if impasse occurs, then within ninety (90) days the parties agree to submit 

separate recommendations to the Board of Trustees. 

111



1 
 
 

Monroe County Public Library 

Employee Personnel Policy Manual 

All sections were approved by the boardBoard of Trustees December 20, 2006, unless otherwise noted. 

 

Section 1: Personnel Administration 

1.01    USE AND REVISION OF PERSONNEL EMPLOYEE POLICIES HANDBOOK  

This Monroe County Public Library Personnel Employee Policies Handbook is designed to provide you 
with information about working conditions, employee benefits, and some of the policies affecting your 
employment. You should read, understand, and comply with all provisions of the handbook. It describes 
many of your responsibilities as an employee and outlines the programs developed by Monroe County 
Public Library (MCPL) to benefit our employees. One of our objectives is to provide a work 
environment that is conducive to both personal and professional growth.   

Nothing in this handbook is intended in any sense to constitute a contract of employment. Pursuant to 
Indiana law, MCPL is an "At-Will" employer. "At-Will" means the employee may resign at any time and 
that the employer may discharge an employee at any time with or without cause.    

No employee handbook can anticipate every circumstance or question about policy. As the library 
continues to grow and change, the need may arise to change policies described in the handbook. The 
MCPL Board of Trustees, therefore, reserves the right to revise, supplement, or rescind any policies or 
portion of the handbook from time to time as it deems appropriate, in its sole and absolute discretion. 
Employees will, of course, be notified of such changes as they occur.   

While MCPL believes these policies are accurate, they are only summaries, and any discrepancies 
between these summaries shall be governed by the actual terms of the underlying, more detailed plans 
(e.g., insurance plans).   

This MCPL Personnel Policies Handbook was adopted by the MCPL Board of Trustees on December 
20, 2006; and shall be in full force and effect upon January 1, 2007; and shall supersede and repeal 
existing oral or written policies. 

 

Section 1.02: Management Rights 

1.02 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS  

MCPL retains the responsibility and authority to manage and direct on behalf of the public the 
operations and activities of MCPL to the full extent authorized by law. Such responsibility and authority 
shall include but not be limited to:   

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

112



2 
 
 

1. The right to direct the work of its employees. 
2. The right to establish policy. 
3. The right to maintain the efficiency of public operations. 
4. The right to design and implement safety programs for employees. 
5. The right to design and implement job training for employees. 
6. The right to determine what services shall be rendered to the public and the maintenance 

procedures, materials, facilities, and equipment to be used. 
7. The right to determine job responsibilities. 
8. The right to determine, effectuate and implement the objectives and goals of MCPL. 
9. The right to establish, allocate, schedule , assign, modify, change and discontinue MCPL 

operations, work shifts and working hours. 
10. The right to establish, modify, change and discontinue work standards. 
11. The right to hire, examine, classify, train, transfer, assign and retain employees; suspend, 

discharge or take other disciplinary action against employees in accordance with applicable law 
and to relieve employees from duties due to disciplinary reasons or other legitimate reasons; and 
make promotions and demotions. 

12. The right to change, modify, determine the size, and alter the composition of the work force.  
13. The right to determine, establish, and implement policies for the selection, training and 

promotion of employees in accordance with applicable law. 
14. The right to establish, implement, and modify procedures and policies for the safety, health and 

protection of MCPL property and personnel. 
15. The right to adopt, modify, enforce or discontinue any existing rules, regulations, procedures 

and policies. 
16. The right to establish, select, modify or discontinue equipment, materials and the layout and 

arrangement of equipment. 
17. The right to determine the size and character of inventories and their disposal. 
18. The right to control the use of property, machinery inventories, and equipment owned, leased or 

borrowed by MCPL. 
19. The right to locate, establish, and organize new departments, divisions, subdivisions, or facilities 

thereof, and the right to relocate departments, subdivisions, locate and the close and/or 
discontinue same. 

20. The above enumeration of management rights is not inclusive of all rights granted MCPL by 
constitution, statute, charter, ordinance or in any manner are retained by MCPL. 

 

1.03 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT 

Section 1.03 PROPOSED to the Board of Trustees August 17, 2016 

It is the policy of the Monroe County Public Library that, as required by law, equal employment 
opportunities be available to all persons without regard to race, sex, age, color, religion, national origin, 
disability, citizenship status, or any other category protected under federal, state, or local law. This policy 
applies to employees and applicants and to all phases of employment, including hiring, promotion, 
demotion, and treatment during employment, rates of pay or other forms of compensation and benefits, 
and termination of employment.   

Irrespective of whether gender identity and/or sexual orientation is a legally protected status, MCPL is 
committed to providing and to maintaining a workplace free of discrimination based on an individual's 
gender identity and/or sexual orientation.   

113



3 
 
 

Monroe County Public Library will take appropriate steps to provide reasonable accommodations upon 
request to qualified individuals with disabilities so long as doing so does not cause undue hardship. 
Monroe County Public Library will also take appropriate steps to provide reasonable accommodations 
upon request to employees whose religious beliefs or restrictions create a conflict with the Library's 
policies, practices, or procedures, so long as doing so does not cause an undue hardship. If you need 
accommodation, please contact the Human Resources Manager to discuss your situation and your needs.   

All position notices, postings, advertisements, and recruiting literature shall contain the phrase "An 
Equal Opportunity Employer." 

 

Section 2: Employment Policies 

Sections 2.01, 2.02, 2.06 and 2.11 were approved by the board Board of Trustees May 18, 2011 

2.01      RECRUITMENT AND HIRING  

When Monroe County Public Library has an employment vacancy, the position will  be filled in a fair and 
equitable manner and in accordance with all applicable laws. The library Board of Trustees  hires the 
director of the library. The Library Director is responsible for all other hiring, though responsibility is 
delegated as noted in the procedures. 

It is the policy of MCPL to fill all positions with the best-qualified people whose skills and abilities best 
match the needs of the department.  Generally, positions will be posted for application by internal 
and/or external candidates.  However, as positions become available, the administration, at its discretion, 
will either directly promote or transfer a qualified internal employee of the Library or will open the 
position to internal and/or external candidates.  

All posted positions will be published for at least seven calendar days. A job notice will contain the title 
of the open position, a summary of duties and responsibilities, minimum education and experience, and 
the current pay range.  Applicant materials will be taken until the position is filled. 

Job announcements for all union-eligible posted positions in the Library shall be posted for a minimum 
of seven (7) calendar days. 

If a position is vacated within three months after being filled, permission to  select a candidate from the 
most recent pool of applicants for this position without re-posting the opening may be obtained at the 
discretion of the Library Director. For certain positions a recruitment list may be developed for use in 
hiring new employees over a period of six months. 

A position shall be determined to be open and subject to the posting requirements under the following 
conditions: 

a. If the position is a vacant, budgeted position, and 

b. The administration has designated the position as open to internal and/or external  candidates. 

114



4 
 
 

A current employee promoted to fill a position vacancy within the bargaining unit shall be subject to a 
three (3) month trial service period in such new position. In the event the employee does not 
successfully pass the orientation and training period as determined by the Library or at the employee's 
discretion, such employee shall be assigned to their former position and pay if such is available or to 
another position in their same classification for which the employee is qualified by reason o f skill, ability 
and seniority. 

 

Section 2.02: Nepotism  

Section 2.02 PROPOSED to the Board of Trustees August 17, 2016 

2.02 NEPOTISM 

MCPL's policy is to hire, promote, and transfer employees on the basis of individual merit and to avoid 
any hint of favoritism or discrimination in making such decisions. The employment of relatives in 
positions where one might have influence over the other's status or job security is regarded as a violation 
of this policy.   

Persons related to any MCPL Board of Trustees member or to the Library Director as father, mother, 
brother, sister, uncle, aunt, husband, wife, son, daughter, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, niece, or nephew, 
or domestic partner, or a person living in the same household shall not be eligible to hold any paid 
position with MCPL. Nor shall any such relative or person be entitled to receive any compensation for 
his or her services out of any appropriation.   

Persons related to MCPL employees as father, mother, brother, sister, uncle, aunt, husband, wife, son, 
daughter, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, nephewniece, or  niecenephew, or domestic partner person living 
in the same household of the employee, may not be hired or transferred to a position that causes a direct 
supervisory-subordinate relationship.   

If marriage of employees creates these kinds of relationships, one of the employees affected must give 
up that position by the end of the current year or within six months from the date the relationship was 
established, whichever is the greater period of time. The employee may be re-employed elsewhere in the 
library if there is an opening in another department. 

The Library does not prohibit employment of immediate family in the same department or 
administrative unit, provided that one family member is not under the direct chain of command of 
another family member. 

 

Section 2.03: Employment Applications 

2.03 EMPLOYMENT APPLICATIONS  

115



5 
 
 

All applicants are required to complete an MCPL Employment Application form in its entirety. This 
standardized job application form shall be maintained by the Human Resources Manager. Applications 
for MCPL employment shall request only that information necessary for hiring decision-making. Only 
questions specifically related to occupational standards shall be asked.    

Applicants must account for periods of employment and unemployment.    

MCPL relies upon the accuracy of information contained in the employment application, as well as the 
accuracy of other data presented throughout the hiring process and employment. Any 
misrepresentations, falsifications or material omissions in any of this information or data shall result in 
MCPL's exclusion of the individual from further consideration for employment or, if the person has 
been hired, termination of employment.   

Placement of an employment application with MCPL does not mean that all applicants will be 
interviewed. Equal consideration will be given to all applicants based on qualifications of the job.   

Applications will be retained in active files until job openings are filled.  

 

Section 2.04: Pre-Employment Interviews 

Section 2.04 PROPOSED to the Board of Trustees August 17, 2016 

2.04   PRE-EMPLOYMENT INTERVIEWS  

Pre-employment interviews may be used to gather information and screen applicants for MCPL employment. 
Initial iI Interviews may are be conducted by a team of peers of the position being filled. 
the manager and/or the assistant manager, and others as appropriate. The final interview decision is reserved 
for the departmental representative unit leader making the employment decision. 

 

Section 2.05: Moving and Interview Expenses 

2.05   MOVING AND INTERVIEW EXPENSES  

The Monroe County Public Library strives to recruit the best possible candidates for all employment 
positions. In conjunction with recruitment activities for management team positions, MCPL may 
reimburse reasonable moving and interview expenses.   

Generally, the Monroe County Public Library will coordinate and make payment arrangements for 
prospective managerial employee recruitment expenses. Additionally, MCPL may reimburse prospective 
managerial employees for any additional expenses reasonably incurred while interviewing as determined 
by the MCPL Board of Trustees or the Library Director.   

Formatted: Space Before:  Auto

Formatted: Space Before:  Auto, After:  Auto

Formatted: Font: (Default) Garamond, Strikethrough

116



6 
 
 

For both prospective employees and new employees the determination of reasonable expense 
reimbursements will be made by the MCPL administration. 

 

Section 2.06: Orientation 

2.06   ORIENTATION 

All new employees must meet with the Human Resources Department before beginning employment. 
All new employees will be shown how to access the MCPL Personnel Manual, which outlines the 
organization of MCPL, working conditions and policies. All new employees will acknowledge in writing 
their responsibility to read and to understand the policies contained in the personnel manual and any 
subsequent revisions. Department managers will oversee their new employees' on-the-job orientation to 
their department. All new employees will attend the General Team Orientation offered by the Library 
within two months of hire. 

For additional notification requirements for newly hired bargaining unit employees, see Joint 
Agreement, Article XVI, Section 10. 

  

Section 2.07: Employee ID badge 

2.07    EMPLOYEE ID BADGE 

While at work, all employees are required to wear an MCPL ID badge  as provided by the library. A 
library-logo shirt may be substituted for the badge. 

 

Section 2.08: Medical Examinations 

2.08    MEDICAL EXAMINATIONS  

To help ensure that employees are able to perform their duties safely, medical examinations may be 
required. After a conditional offer of employment has been extended during the hiring process, 
applicants may be required to undergo a pre-employment medical examination by a health professional 
of MCPL's choice, at MCPL's expense.   

Applicants may be required to submit to a drug test prior to being hired by MCPL.    

Employees shall be required to submit to fitness for duty medical or psychological evaluations prior to  
returning from military leave or employee illness or injury leave under FMLA, or to meet terms and 
conditions associated with performing job duties.   

117



7 
 
 

Information on an employee's medical condition or history shall be kept in a confidential file that is 
separate from other employee information by the Human Resources Department. Access to this 
information will be limited to the employee, supervisor, Human Resources Department and persons 
designated by the Library Director on a need-to-know basis. 

 

Section 2.09: Employment Categories 

2.09    EMPLOYMENT CATEGORIES  

It is the intent of MCPL to clarify the definitions of employment classifications so that employees 
understand their employment status and benefit eligibility. Any changes in employment category sta tus 
shall be conveyed in writing. No change in employment status is to be construed or inferred without 
written notification. Each employee is assigned to one of the following employment categories:    

REGULAR FULL-TIME employees are those who work a 37 ½ hour work week and are not in a part-
time or temporary status and who are regularly scheduled to work MCPL's full -time schedule. Such 
employees are eligible for the employer's benefit package subject to the terms, conditions, and 
limitations of each benefit program.  In addition, employees hired prior 01/01/2005 who maintained 30 
hour work week status as of 12/31/2004 and are not in a temporary status are Grandfathered and 
remain classified as regular full time MCPL employees.  Any such Grandfathered employees are eligible 
for the same benefits as 37 ½  hour work week employees, so long as they continue to maintain a 30 
hour work week status or are on MCPL approved paid leave and return to work under their 30 hour 
employment category status. 

REGULAR PART-TIME employees are those who are not assigned to a temporary status and who are 
scheduled to work less than MCPL's full-time schedule. Part-time employees are eligible for partial and 
prorated benefits.    

TEMPORARY employees are those who are hired as interim replacements, to temporarily supplement 
the work force, or to assist in the completion of a specific project. Employment assignments in this 
category are of a limited duration. Employment beyond any initially stated period does not in any way 
imply a change in employment status. Temporary employees retain that status unless and until notified in 
writing of a change. While temporary employees receive certain benefits (such as worker's compensation 
and Social Security), they are ineligible for all of MCPL's other benefit programs. 

 

Section 2.10: Personnel Files 

2.10    PERSONNEL FILES  

The employment selection procedure shall be documented and recorded and shall remain strictly 
confidential. Accurate personnel records shall be kept on file for each employee for a period of not less 
than seven (7) years and should be used to substantiate and support the employment decision in the 
event of inquiry.   

118



8 
 
 

MCPL maintains four separate personnel records concerning the employee's employment history.    

1. Administrative File: The employee's personnel file shall contain the employee's employment 
application, Form I-9: Employment Eligibility Verification, salary, emergency information sheet, 
insurance enrollment and beneficiary forms, retirement forms, educational accomplishments, 
change of address forms. This file shall be maintained by the Human Resources Department. 
Documents in this file shall be deemed confidential, and released only to persons on a need-to-
know basis.  

2. Performance File: This file shall contain documentation of performance such as performance 
evaluations, disciplinary records, and other documentation concerning disciplinary actions 
including employee complaints, absences, tardiness, disciplinary leaves, and other related 
information.  This file shall contain documentation of records of training and the Personnel 
Manual Acknowledgement Form.  This confidential file shall be deemed as exempt under the 
Indiana Public Records Law. This file shall be maintained by the Human Resources Department 
and released only to persons on a need-to-know basis. 

3. Medical File: The employee's medical file shall contain all medical information, including health 
insurance, FMLA leave, disability information, ADA accommodations, worker's compensation 
documents, results of alcohol and drug tests and other medically related information. This 
confidential file shall be deemed as exempt under the Indiana Public Records Law. This file shall 
be maintained by the Human Resources Department and released only to persons on a need-to-
know basis. 

4. Form I-9, Employment Eligibility Verification: Form I-9 shall be maintained in a separate 
confidential file.  This file shall be maintained by the Human Resources Department and 
released only to persons on a need-to-know basis. 

 

Section 2.11: Access to Personnel Files 

2.11    ACCESS TO PERSONNEL FILES 

Bargaining unit employees see Joint Agreement, Article X.  

Managerial/supervisory/confidential employees. 

The only official file kept on employees will be located in the HR Office. Access to confidential personnel 
files shall be limited to the employee, or former employee, the Human Resources Department and other 
persons authorized by the Library Director on a need-to-know basis.   

Personnel files are property of MCPL and access to the information they contain is restricted. Only 
officials or representatives of MCPL who have a legitimate reason to review information in a file are 
allowed to do so. With reasonable advance notice, an employee or former employee may review material 
in his/her file. Upon request MCPL will provide the employee copies of any documents contained in 
his/her personnel file. 

The file may be reviewed in the HR Office or a written request for copies of documents to be removed 
from the file can be made.  A fee of ten cents per page will be charged to former employees for copies 
that they request from their files. 

119



9 
 
 

No information shall be provided to any person concerning the employment of current employees other 
than job title, department, date of hire, date of termination, and wages.  

 

 

Section 2.12: Personal Information Changes 

2.12    PERSONAL INFORMATION CHANGES  

It is the responsibility of each employee to promptly notify the Human Resources Department and 
supervisor of any changes in personal data. Personal mailing addresses, telephone numbers, number and 
names of dependents, individuals to be contacted in the event of an emergency, educational 
accomplishment and other such status reports should be accurate and current at all times. Any 
unreported changes in personal status may impact eligibility under MCPL's benefits plans.  

 

Section 2.13: Outside Employment/Conflict of Interest 

2.13    OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT/CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

An employee may hold a job with another organization as long as he/she satisfactorily performs his/her 
job responsibilities with MCPL. All employees will be judged by the same performance standards and 
will be subject to the employer's scheduling demands, regardless of any existing outside work 
requirements. Employees who are provided Family and Medical Leave Act leave for their personal illness 
or injury under MCPL's FMLA policy shall not be employed by outside employers when on FMLA leave; 
any exceptions shall be presented in writing for authorization by the Library Director.    

If MCPL determines that an employee's outside work interferes with performance or the ability to meet 
the requirements of MCPL as they are modified from time to time, the employee may be asked to 
terminate the outside employment if he/she wishes to remain employed with MCPL.   

Outside employment will present a conflict of interest if it has an actual or potential adverse  impact on 
MCPL. MCPL employees are to file a conflict of interest statement (Indiana Code 35-44-1-3) with the 
Monroe County Clerk and Human Resources Manager whenever an employee's outside business 
activities are directly or indirectly linked to MCPL in a business relationship such as vendor, supplier, 
contractor or independent subcontractor. 

 

Section 2.14: Performance Evaluation 

2.14    PERFORMANCE EVALUATION  

120



10 
 
 

It is an expectation of MCPL that supervisors and employees will  discuss job performance and goals on 
an informal day-to-day basis.  Further, it is an expectation of MCPL that supervisors will meet with each 
employee to plan the employee's work plan for the year. Annual performance evaluations may be 
conducted to provide both supervisors and employees the opportunity to discuss job tasks, identify and 
correct weaknesses, encourage and recognize strengths, and discuss positive, purposeful approaches for 
meeting goals. Performance Evaluation Forms are available from the Human Resources Department.  

 

Section 3: Salary Administration 

Section 3.10 was approved by the board Board of Trustees March 19, 2008. 
Sections 3.10 was approved by the board Board of Trustees March 19, 2008. 
Sections 3.03, 3.05, 3.06, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 3.13, 3.15, 3.18 were approved by the boardBoard of Trustees May 18, 
2011. 
Section 3.21was approved by the board Board of Trustees on 09-17-2014 
Sections 3.20 was approved by the board Board of Trustees September 17, 2014 

 

3.01    WORK HOURS  

Regular work hours are established for each position based on staffing requirements for  MCPL. 

 

3.02   WORK WEEK 

A standard work week starts at 12:01 a.m. on Monday and ends at 12:00 midnight on Sunday.    

 

3.03   EVENING AND WEEKEND HOURS 

All employees will be expected to be available for work evenings and weekends. No overtime 
compensation is paid for evenings and weekends unless a non-exempt employee works over 40 hours in 
a work week. 

Staff may be required to be available at specific times and to change their schedules to accommodate 
variations in work demands. Administration and supervisors will provide advanced notice, whenever 
possible, while retaining the flexibility to respond to unanticipated situations.  

 

3.04    PAY SCHEDULE  

Formatted: Left, Level 1, Space Before:  Auto, After:  Auto

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

121



11 
 
 

Paychecks are issued bi-weekly.  

 

3.05   OVERTIME 

 Section 3.05 PROPOSED to the Board of Trustees August 17, 2016 

Each MCPL employee holds a position that is designated as either NON-EXEMPT or EXEMPT from 
federal and state wage and hour laws. 

NON-EXEMPT employees are entitled to overtime pay at the rate of 1 ½ or compensation time off at 
the rate of 1 ½ under the specific provisions of federal and state laws. For purposes of calculation of 
overtime, sick leave, personal leave, and holidays shall not be included as time worked.   Overtime work 
must be approved in advance by the employee's supervisor, the department manager, and the Library 
Director. 

Overtime Pay: Overtime pay is based on 1 ½ times the regular hourly rate which shall include the base 
rate plus any other pay above the base rate for all time worked above forty (40) hours in a work week. 

EXEMPT employees are not eligible for overtime under the Fair Labor Standards Act and are exempt 
from specific provisions of federal and state wage and hour laws.   They therefore do not receive pay or 
additional time off for working beyond the regular workday/workweek and are not entitled to overtime 
compensation or compensatory time off under specific provisions of federal and state laws.  

 Work performed in addition to the regular work hours is customary with professional, exempt 
employee responsibilities. This applies to all full-time and part-time exempt staff. 

 Departments may allow alternate or flexible work schedules that support operational needs.  

 In recognition that the responsibilities of professional exempt staff may require work outside of 
regular work hours, periods of absence that are less than a day (per hours status)  should not be charged 
to accumulated Personal or Sick Leave, or taken without pay, except as provided under the 
Family Medical Leave Act [7] (FMLA). 

 To be considered exempt, a position must comply with federal regulations and laws regarding 
exempt status. 

  

Section 3.06: Work Records 

3.06     WORK RECORDS 

Falsification of time sheets, timecards, or attendance records is a serious violation of work 
rules.  Violation may subject an employee to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of 
employment. All employees must maintain time keeping records to satisfy Indiana statutes governing 
public employers. 

NON-EXEMPT 

Formatted: Space After:  Auto

122

http://www.indiana.edu/~uhrs/policies/uwide/fmla.html


12 
 
 

It is each non-exempt employee's responsibility to accurately record all hours worked and benefit leave 
time/type taken using the library-provided time management system.  

EXEMPT 

It is each exempt employee's responsibility to  record days worked and benefit leave time/type taken 
using the library-provided time management system. 

 

 

Section 3.07: Work Time Restricted 

3.07    WORK TIME RESTRICTED  

Non-exempt employees shall not commence any work activities in behalf of MCPL before seven (7) 
minutes preceding the start of the work shift, or continue work activities more than seven (7) minutes 
after completion of the work shift, unless specifically authorized by their supervisor.  

 

Section 3.08: Additional Hours 

3.08    ADDITIONAL HOURS 

Additional hours are defined as hours added to the planned staffing pattern of  a department at the 
discretion of the Library Director. Upon approval, the hours may be assigned within the department by 
the manager (i.e. adding hours to part-time employees) according to the needs of the department, the 
tasks covered by the additional funding, and budgetary limitations.  

 

Section 3.09: Job Descriptions/Classifications 

3.09    JOB DESCRIPTIONS/CLASSIFICATIONS  

MCPL installed and adopted a job classification system for all MCPL jobs. It is regularly monitored and 
revised to reflect changes in job duties as they occur.   

All MCPL positions have been described in job descriptions and systematically grouped into job clas ses 
based on their fundamental similarities.   

New job descriptions or any modifications to existing job descriptions shall be approved by the Library 
Director. 

123



13 
 
 

 

Section 3.10: Job Classification/Pay System Maintenance 

3.10   JOB CLASSIFICATION/PAY SYSTEM MAINTENANCE  

Decisions related to the job classification system are based on planning priorities, organizational 
consistency, workflow changes, needs of individual departments, budget considerations, and other 
factors that may arise in the on-going assessment of staffing at MCPL.  

When MCPL needs to add a position not currently classified, or reclassify, eliminate, or substantially 
modify the hours of an existing position, Library management will take action to ensure taht that the 
employee, department, and otyhers others are included in decision making processes as necessary.  The 
changes will be reviewed by the department manager, the human resources manager, and the director.  

A system-wide evaluation of all positions, job descriptions, and salaries may also be conducted 
periodically by an outside firm designated by the Library Board of Trustees.   Reports from any outside 
firm will be shared with the Labor-Management Committee for their input.  The Board of Trustees 
approves/rejects any recommendations as required by Indiana Code 36-12-2-24. 

For positions covering by the bargaining unit, see also the Joint Agreement, Article V, Section 7.  

 

Section 3.11: Compensation 

3.11    COMPENSATION  

The MCPL Board of Trustees sets the minimum and maximum pay rates for all positions annually. 
These annual pay increases are authorized by the MCPL Board of Trustees as funding is available.     

Pay increases may take any form chosen by the MCPL Board of Trustees.  Possible types of pay 
increases include, but are not limited to:  

 Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA): Approved COLA pay rates become effective at the 
beginning of the next budget year, unless otherwise indicated. 

 Seniority increments are pay increases authorized by the MCPL Board of Trustees annually as 
funding is available. Seniority increments are not given to employees at the cap of the pay grade. 
Seniority increments are paid according to employee anniversary month [except for those 
employees hired into their current positions prior to July 1, 1987]. An upward change in 
classification changes the anniversary month. All appropriate MCPL documentation must be 
provided to the Human Resources Department prior to an employee being compensated.  

 Stipends: Stipends are pay increases that occur as a one-time payment to staff. 

Stipends may also be granted by the Library Director for work above and beyond the employee's regular 
job responsibilities and scheduled work time, such as special projects/assignments-i.e., strategic planning 
process, drafting policies and/or procedures, etc. 

124



14 
 
 

Non-exempt employees may not volunteer, without compensation, additional time to do the same work 
for which they are employed. 

For temporary reassignment of a bargaining unit employee to duties of another bargaining unit 
classification with a higher scheduled rate of pay, see also Joint Agreement, Article XV. 

  

 

 

Section 3.12: Rounding 

3.12     ROUNDING 

NON-EXEMPT employee work time is to be recorded to the quarter hour, using the seven (7) minute 
rule (i.e. leeway of seven (7) minutes before and seven (7) minutes after scheduled start and stop times). 
All non-exempt employee work commenced more than seven (7) minutes before the start time work 
hour will be rounded to the next later quarter hour; all non-exempt employee work continued more than 
seven (7) minutes after the end of last work hour will be rounded to the next later quarter hour.  

 

Section 3.13: Multiple Positions 

3.13     MULTIPLE POSITIONS 

Non-exempt employees working in more than one MCPL position shall count the combined hours 
worked in more than one position in determining overtime obligations under the FLSA If this situation 
occurs, the staff member's pay rate for the overtime hours will be that of the position being performed 
during those hours.   

In general, employees may not hold more than one MCPL position because of budgetary impact with 
benefits provided. Temporary positions may be held with regular positions.  

For temporary reassignment of a bargaining unit employee to duties of another bargaining unit 
classification with a higher scheduled rate of pay, see also Joint Agreement, Article XV. 

 

Section 3.14: Pay Corrections 

3.14    PAY CORRECTIONS  

125



15 
 
 

MCPL takes all reasonable steps to ensure that employees receive the correct amount of pay in each 
paycheck and that employees are paid promptly on the scheduled payday. In the unlikely event there is 
an error in the amount of pay, the employee should promptly bring the discrepancy to the attention of 
the Human Resources Department so corrections can be made as quickly as possible.  Failure to notify 
MCPL of an overpayment may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of 
employment.  

Employees should notify the Human Resources Department promptly if a check is lost or becomes 
damaged so that it is not negotiable.  

 

 

Section 3.15: Pay Deductions/Garnishments 

3.15    PAY DEDUCTIONS/GARNISHMENTS   

MCPL is legally required to make certain deductions from each employee's paycheck, including federal, 
state and local income taxes. MCPL must also deduct social security taxes on each employee's earnings.   

MCPL offers programs and benefits authorized by the MCPL Board of Trustees. Eligible employees may 
voluntarily authorize deductions from their paychecks to cover costs to participate in these programs.  

MCPL will comply with federal law or applicable state laws that regulate garnishments. 

Questions concerning paycheck deductions and/or methods of calculation should be directed to the 
Human Resources Department. 

Bargaining unit employees - See also Joint Agreement, Article VI. 

 

3.15.1 FRINGE BENEFITS 

MCPL will comply with all federal law and applicable state laws that regulate fringe benefits, including 
but not limited to meal reimbursements, group term life insurance, and other benefits.  

 

Section 3.16: Employment Termination 

3.16    EMPLOYMENT TERMINATION 

126



16 
 
 

Termination of employment is an inevitable part of personnel activity within any organization, and many 
of the reasons for termination are routine. Below are examples of some of the most common 
circumstances under which employment is terminated.   

Resignation:    Voluntary employment termination initiated by the employee. Although advance notice is 
not required, MCPL requests at least two (2) weeks’ notice from the employee. For professional 
positions, a four (4) week notice is requested.   

Discharge: Involuntary employment termination initiated by MCPL.   

Retirement: Voluntary employment termination initiated by the employee meeting state and/or MCPL 
retirement criteria, such as age and length of service. Employees will receive their final pay in accordance 
with applicable law. 

 

 

Section 3.17: Resignation and Retirement 

 3.17    RESIGNATION AND RETIREMENT   

Resignations and retirement shall be submitted in writing to the employee's supervisor and to the Library 
Director. Professional employees are expected to give a minimum of four week notice; all are expected 
to give a minimum of two weeks’ notice 

Retirement for employees will be consistent with Federal law and provisions under PERF. Employees 
who retire under PERF may receive benefits for sick days.   

The Human Resources Department will request an exit interview with employees who are terminating 
employment. (Data from these interviews will be anonymous and can provide the library important 
information on policies and practices that should be revised.) Employees are required to complete a 
Final Checklist with the Human Resources Department before receiving their final pay checks and other 
compensation. 

 

Section 3.18: Layoffs and Recall 

3.18   LAYOFFS AND RECALL 

Bargaining unit employees: See Joint Agreement, Article XIII, Seniority, and XIV, Layoff and 
Recall. 

Managerial/supervisory/confidential employees.   

Under some circumstances, MCPL may need to restructure its operations or reduce its work force. 

127



17 
 
 

If this becomes necessary, MCPL will attempt to provide advance notice to employees so as to minimize 
the impact on those affected. If possible, employees subject to layoff will be informed of the nature of 
the layoff and the foreseeable duration of the layoff.   

In determining which employees will be subject to layoff, MCPL will consider, among other things, 
operational requirements; the skill, productivity, past performance, and attendance of those involved ; 
and length of service.   

All MCPL benefits will terminate at the time of layoff.  Insurance coverage, though not provided, will 
remain available under the provisions of COBRA.  Information concerning employee rights under 
COBRA will be provided to affected employees by the Human Resources Manager.   

If an employee on layoff is recalled and does not accept the recall within three workdays, the employee 
will be terminated, and will be considered to have voluntarily quit.  If an employee on layoff is not 
recalled by MCPL within 90 calendar days, the employee will be terminated and will be considered to 
have been terminated due to lack of work. 

 

Section 3.19: Return of Property 

3.19    RETURN OF PROPERTY 

Employees are responsible for all MCPL property, materials or written information issued to them or in 
their possession or control. All MCPL property must be returned by employees on or before their last 
day of work. This includes, but is not limited to, l ibrary cell phones, access cards, and 
keys.  FacilitiesBuilding Services and Security staff who are provided uniforms at the Library's expense 
are required to return those uniforms on or before their last day of work.   Written documentation shall 
be provided to the Human Resources Department. Where permitted by applicable laws , MCPL may 
withhold from the employee's check or final paycheck the cost of any items that are not returned when 
required. MCPL may also take any and all action deemed appropriate to recover or protect its property. 

 

Section 3.20: Emergency Closing 

3.20    EMERGENCY CLOSING  

Periodic emergencies, such as severe weather, power failures, or public health concerns can disrupt 
MCPL operations, sometimes requiring closing of a work facility. When such emergencies occur, staff is 
responsible for seeking information from emergency closing notification channels as identified by the 
library. When a MCPL work facility is officially closed by the Library Director for emergency conditions, 
before the beginning of the workday, the time off from scheduled work will be paid to regular full-time 
and regular part-time employees affected by the facility closing. If the employee is on paid leave, they 
will use the benefit time as requested and not be paid for the emergency closing.   

128



18 
 
 

Employees who report to work before a facility is closed due to an emergency shall be paid for time 
scheduled to be worked on that work day without being penalized by using personal leave or by making 
up this time within the pay period. 

 

 Section 3.21: Premium Pay for Critical and Essential Staff 

– (regular, non-exempt staff)  

3.21     Premium Pay for Critical and Essential Staff – (regular, non-exempt staff)  

The library recognizes the extra effort and responsibility of employees who must respond to emergency 
situations outside of standard operations and therefore should receive additional compensation in the 
form of premium pay. 

Premium pay is a special pay rate provided to hourly employees who are required to work hours on the 
day of a library scheduled holiday and/or in response to emergency situations.  The premium pay rate is 
1 ½ times an employee’s regular rate.  Premium pay converts to the overtime pay category when the 40 
hours/week threshold is met by the employee as defined by library policy and the Department of Labor 
(DOL). 

Premium pay must be approved in advance by the employee's supervisor, the department manager, and 
the Library Director and clearly communicated to the employee.  The employee is responsible for 
documenting premium pay hours.  (See 3.05 Overtime and 3.06 Work Records for related information). 

Definitions 

Emergency Conditions – An Emergency Condition is defined as an unexpected or serious situation that 
requires an immediate response.  Examples include heavy snowfall/ice, utility outages/damage, flood, 
fire, security breaches, or similar events.  A standard workday response to any of the above does not 
constitute a requirement for premium pay. Emergency conditions do not include situations such as 
scheduled overtime or other conditions not described below.  

Critical Function – A Critical Function is an activity, service, or department so vital to the library that the 
incapacity to provide or delay delivery of services has a debilitating impact on the physical infrastructure, 
operations, and/or public safety of the library. 

Critical Staff – Critical Staff are employees who are responsible for the delivery of Critical Functions. 

Alternative Critical Staff – Alternative Critical Staff are employees identified by the library director 
and/or associate director who possess the requisite knowledge, skill, or ability to perform Critical 
Functions in the absence of formally designated Critical Staff. 

In the event a formally designated Critical Staff member is unable to report to work, the Alternative 
Critical Staff shall assume the duties and responsibilities for the delivery of Critical Functions.  

Essential Function – Essential Functions are those functions that are absolutely essential to provide for 
the consistency of operations and services. Essential Functions may also include operations essential to the 

129



19 
 
 

library but not critical for the sustainment or protection of infrastructure and/or public safety of the 
library. 

Essential Staff – Essential Staff are those staff identified by an individual department’s and/or the 
library’s emergency plan, whose services is required to provide and/or maintain said essential function.  

The above designations, as applicable, will be included in the employee’s job description.  

Willful Failure – Willful Failure is the intentional and deliberate neglect of duties and/or responsibilities 
for which a person has been tasked. 

Process and Procedures 

The following list includes departments and groups that perform Critical Functions, including hourly 
employees identified as Critical Staff; however, this list is not inclusive and could be added to, depending 
upon emergency situation and conditions. 

 CATS 

 FacilitiesBuilding Services 

 Finance 

 Information ServicesInformation Technology 

 Human Resources 

Identified critical or essential hourly employees who are called in, asked to remain, or called back to 
work for purposes of responding to an emergency, are compensated at the premium rate (1 ½ times 
their regular hourly rate) for a minimum of two hours.  Should the employee exceed the two hour 
minimum, they will be compensated at premium pay for actual hours worked, until regular or delayed 
library operating hours commence, as identified by the Library Director or Associate Director.   

 While exempt staff may be asked to remain at work or to respond to an emergency situation when the library is closed, 
they are not eligible for Premium Pay.  (See 3.05 Overtime and 3.20 Emergency Closing for further 
information.) 

An employee may also be instructed not to report to work, or to leave before completing a shift,  as 
determined by the manager and/or supervisor.  The employee will be paid for time previously scheduled 
to be worked on that work day without being penalized by using personal leave or by making up this 
time within the pay period. 

Non-exempt employees designated as Critical Staff, Alternative Critical Staff, and Essential Staff shall be 
notified of any and all specific job related requirements, expectations, and duties to be performed in an 
emergency situation. Such designation will be included in the position’s job description. 

Designated employees must make every reasonable effort to fulfill Critical and/or Essential Functions 
during applicable emergencies. Immediate notification during an emergency situation must be given to 
the employee’s supervisor should any reason result in the employee’s inability to fulfill the designated 
functions. Willful Failure to fulfill responsibilities of critical/essential functions is subject to disciplinary 
action, up to and including termination of employment. (See 6.02 Attendance and Punctuality and 
6.10 Employment Termination for further information.) 

130



20 
 
 

Non-Exempt Volunteers 

 The decision to make a request for voluntary assistance from non-critical/essential staff is made in 
consultation between library director/associate director and the manager/supervisor on a case-by-case 
basis. Hourly employees, who are specifically invited to volunteer by providing assistance at the time of 
an emergency, will be provided direct instructions and approval from their department 
manager/supervisor or designee. 

 Adequate Rest 

In rare instances, emergency conditions occasionally require employees to work continuously beyond 
normal work assignments. When these conditions occur, the employee will be expected to obtain 
“adequate rest", which is defined as six or more hours free from work, before reporting to their next 
scheduled work hours. 

MCPL reserves the right, by ordinance or resolution, to designate specified persons under contract with 
MCPL, as eligible for certain MCPL sponsored benefits as authorized by the MCPL Board of Trustees.  

The cost of MCPL benefits for grant or special fund employees shall be included in the grant or special 
fund.   

Eligibility for benefits depends on a variety of factors many of which are described in benefits plans.   

The MCPL Board of Trustees has the discretionary authority to interpret and to construe plan or 
program provisions and to determine the status of employees, participants, and beneficiaries for the 
purposes of such plans or programs.  MCPL also retains the authority to determine the rights of 
employees, participants, and beneficiaries to benefits under the plans or programs, the amount thereof, 
and the method and time or times of payment.  MCPL reserves the right to amend or to terminate any or 
all of the Employee Benefit Plans described in this Personnel Manual at any time and for any reason.  

 

Section 4: Employee Benefits 

Sections 4.2 and 4.9.3 were approved by the board Board of Trustees on July 19, 2006. 
Section 4.09.3 was approved by the board Board of Trustees September 12, 2007; effective January 1, 2008 
Section 4.04 and 4.05 were approved by the board Board of Trustees November 11, 2009 
Sections 4.11, 4.13, were approved by the board Board of Trustees May 18, 2011. 
Section 4.03 Sick Bank was removed as approved by the board Board of Trustees January 16, 2013 
Section 4.19 Family and Medical Leave as approved by the board Board of Trustees January 16, 2013 
Sections 4.02, 4.04, 4.05, 4.06, 4.09.2 were approved by the board Board of Trustees February 06, 2013 
Section 4.20 was approved by the board Board of Trustees September 16, 2015 

4. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

MCPL provides a wide range of benefits to eligible employees.   MCPL has designed its benefit plans to 
assist employees in meeting their need for security, both for themselves and for their families .  Some 
benefit programs, such as social security, worker's compensation, and unemployment insurance are 

131



21 
 
 

required by law and are administered according to the applicable statutes. Other benefits are awarded 
based on the belief that providing employee benefits is a positive force in attracting and retaining the 
best-qualified personnel. 

It is the express intent of MCPL to provide an employee benefit program to satisfy the primary needs of 
MCPL employees. In a continuing effort, MCPL will attempt to offer employees a benefit package that is 
attractive to its employees. However, benefits provided that are not required by law must be consistent 
with available resources.   

MCPL reserves the right, by ordinance or resolution, to designate specified persons under contract with 
MCPL, as eligible for certain MCPL sponsored benefits as authorized by the MCPL Board of Trustees.   

The cost of MCPL benefits for grant or special fund employees shall be included in the grant or special 
fund.   

Eligibility for benefits depends on a variety of factors many of which are described in benefits plans.    

The MCPL Board of Trustees has the discretionary authority to interpret and to construe plan or 
program provisions and to determine the status of employees, participants, and beneficiaries for the 
purposes of such plans or programs.  MCPL also retains the authority to determine the rights of 
employees, participants, and beneficiaries to benefits under the plans or programs, the amount thereof, 
and the method and time or times of payment.  MCPL reserves the right to amend or to terminate any or 
all of the Employee Benefit Plans described in this Personnel Manual at any time and for any reason. 

Section 4.01: Personal Leave 

Section 4.01 PROPOSED to the Board of Trustees August 17, 2016 

MCPL provides a wide range of benefits to eligible employees.   MCPL has designed its benefit plans to 
assist employees in meeting their need for security, both for themselves and for their families.  Some 
benefit programs, such as social security, worker's compensation, and unemployment insurance are 
required by law and are administered according to the applicable statutes. Other benefits are awarded 
based on the belief that providing employee benefits is a positive force in attracting and retaining the 
best-qualified personnel. 

It is the express intent of MCPL to provide an employee benefit program to satisfy the primary needs of 
MCPL employees. In a continuing effort, MCPL will attempt to offer employees a benefit package that is 
attractive to its employees. However, benefits provided that are not required by law must be consistent 
with available resources.  

MCPL reserves the right, by ordinance or resolution, to designate specified persons under contract with 
MCPL, as eligible for certain MCPL sponsored benefits as authorized by the MCPL Board of Trustees.  

 

Section 4.01 PERSONAL LEAVE (regular staff working 20 or more hours/week)  

Formatted: Font: Italic

132



22 
 
 

Personal leave is paid time off which may be used by regular full-time or part-time employees who work 
at least 20 hours per week  for vacations, personal business or use of the employees' choice.     

Eligibility for personal leave is accrued at the end of each calendar month and is pos ted to employees' 
service records in hourly segments. Time will be prorated for beginning employees and those employees 
terminating employment from the library.   

Personal leave may be taken as accrued or saved up to a cap of one and one half times the emp loyees 
annual accrued time (18 months). An employee cannot accrue more personal leave in excess of their cap. 
Any personal leave which would have been accrued above an employee's cap will be lost. Only under 
extraordinary circumstances may extensions be granted with the approval of the department manager 
and administration. The amount of accrued time can change as an employee accumulates seniority in the 
organization and accrues more days per year. Employees changing from full -time status to part-time will 
not be penalized for personal leave above their new cap.   

Personal leave is granted according to the following schedule:   

PERSONAL Leave – HOURLY; Pay Grades 1 - 7 

  20 hrs/wk 25 hrs/wk 30 hrs/wk 37.5 hrs/wk     

Months 
Worked 

Hours 
Earned 
Per 
Month  

CAP   Hours 
Earned 
Per 
Month  

CAP   Hours 
Earned 
Per 
Month 

CAP   Hours 
Earned 
Per 
Month 

CAP   Based On 

1-47 

(3.9 
yrs) 

4.67 84.00   5.83 105.00   7 126   8.75 157.50   14 days/yr 

48-59 
(4 yrs) 

6.33 114.00   7.92 142.50   9.5 171   11.88 213.75   19 days/yr 

60-71 
(5 yrs) 

6.67 120.00   8.33 150.00   10 180   12.50 225.00   20 days/yr 

72-83 
(6 yrs) 

7.00 126.00   8.75 157.50   10.5 189   13.13 236.25   21 days/yr 

84-95 
(7 yrs) 

7.33 

  

132.00   9.17 165.00   11 198   13.75 247.50   22 days/yr 

96-107 
(8 yrs) 

7.67 

  

138.00   9.58 172.50   11.5 207   14.38 258.75   23 days/yr 

> 108 
(9yrs +) 

8.00 

  

144.00   10.00 180.00   12.0 216   15.00 270.00   24 days/yr 

 Formatted: Font: 14 pt

133



23 
 
 

PERSONAL Leave – EXEMPT; Pay Grades 8 – 11 

    20 hrs/wk 25 hrs/wk 30 hrs/wk 37.5 hrs/wk   

Months 
Worked 

  Hours 
Earned 
Per 
Month 

CAP   Hours 
Earned 
Per 
Month 

CAP   Hours 
Earned 
Per 
Month 

CAP   Hours 
Earned 
Per 
Month 

CAP Based On 

After 1   8 144   10 180   12 216   15 270 24 
days/yr 

  

Employees will be paid for unused personal leave upon termination of employment, whether voluntary 
or involuntary.  After the employee has tendered his or her resignation and a termination date has been 
established, requests to use Personal Leave must be approved by the Library Director.   

Employees are responsible to verify that sufficient benefit leave time has been accrued to cover the 
requested leave. If benefit leave time is taken without sufficient time accrued, that time will be treated as 
unpaid leave and is subject to disciplinary action. 

 

Section 4.02: Sick Leave 

Section 4.02    SICK LEAVE (regular staff working 20 or more hours/week)  

_____________________________ 

 See 4.19 Family and Medical Leave; I. Military Leave  

Staff working fewer than 20 hours/week do not receive paid sick leave and are encouraged to schedule 
medical appointments on non-working hours when possible. If this is not possible, staff will need to 
work with their supervisor or department manager to make necessary arrangements to cover or 
reschedule shifts.  

Paid sick leave may be used in minimum increments one quarter (1/4) hour for hourly employees. The 
quarter (1/4) hour leave increment also applies to any employee using sick leave under FMLA leave, as 
approved by the Human Resources Manager, especially as it pertains to intermittent/reduced schedule 
FMLA leave. Otherwise, exempt employees use sick days in full-day increments.   See 3.05 Overtime policy 
regarding exempt employees.  

Employees must notify the library at the earliest possible moment when they are incapacitated by illness 
or injury. This means that every day of a short-term illness (less than three (3) work days) must be 
reported via a phone call to the supervisor or designated staff member of the department. The 
designated supervisor must also be contacted on each additional day of absence. Failure to report illness 
is cause for disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.  

Formatted: Font: 14 pt

134



24 
 
 

See 4.19 FMLA Leave for illness/injury extending beyond three (3) work days.   

If there is a pattern observed in the use of sick leave, or the illness or injury is prolonged beyond three 
(3) work days, a doctor's statement or certificate will be required and may replace the daily phone call.  
The certification should include the nature of the illness and the earliest date at which the emplo yee can 
return to work. The library may require certificates from more than one doctor. The library reserves the 
right to determine if extensive non-FMLA leaves can be accommodated. 

 

Fitness for Duty  

If sick leave is used while on FMLA leave, the Department of Labor certification of health care provider 
form shall be completed and submitted to the Human Resources Manager.   

Before returning to work from a sick leave absence of thirty (30) calendar days or more, an employee 
shall be required to provide a physician's verification that he or she is fit-for-duty, taking into account 
the essential duties of the job.    

A physician’s statement may also be required for shorter periods of absence.   Indicated restrictions as 
related to the employee’s job duties will be fully considered in determining the library’s ability to 
accommodate short-term medical restrictions and/or absences.  

 

Section 4.03: Section removed  

4.03    Section removed as approved by the boardBoard of Trustees January 16, 2013 

 

Section 4.04: Health Insurance (Full-Time) 

Section 4.04 PROPOSED to the Board of Trustees August 17, 2016 

4.04    INSURANCE (Full-Time)  

MCPL offers group health and dental insurance for full-time employees. Specific coverage, limitations, 
and amounts are available from the Human Resources Department. Specific terms and coverages will 
vary over a period of time and employees with specific concerns may contact the Human Resources 
Department with any questions about current information. 

Enrollment in the Group Health Benefits Plan: The terms, conditions, individual eligibility and specific 
coverages are determined by, subject to and controlled by, the insurance companies and the policies, not 
by MCPL. During the first thirty-one (31) days of employment, eligible full-time employees may apply 
for coverage under the group health benefit plan. An employee is eligible for coverage on the first day of 
the calendar month following thirty (30) days of employment. Dependent documentation is requir ed at 
the time of enrollment. 

135



25 
 
 

In the event that an employee is eligible for the group health benefits plan and does not elect to 
participate, then the employee will be considered a late applicant if the employee subsequently wishes to 
apply for coverage. There are restrictions as to when and under what circumstances the employee will be 
able to participate in the group health benefits plan. This is a requirement of the Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA). Employees or dependents who were eligible for insurance, 
but waived the coverage, will only be allowed to enroll in the plan during an open enrollment or by 
meeting one of the following qualifying events: marriage, birth, death of a spouse, divorce, adoption, loss 
of insurance coverage due to job termination or layoff. As with any change in circumstance, the 
employee is responsible for notifying the Human Resources Department. 

Dependent health and dental care, including Domestic Partner coverage, is available for the employee at 
the group rate. 

Employees who are eligible for the group health insurance plan can pay for their premiums on a pre -tax 
basis. 

The library participates in the cost of the full-time employee's coverage, and MCPL's contribution 
toward the cost of the employee’s insurance is determined every year by the MCPL Board of Trustees. 

The specifics of the employee's health insurance benefit will change as the library works with renewal 
periods, changes in insurance carriers, changes in the area of health services and the cost of the coverage. 
Any questions about the changes in coverage or benefits should be directed to the Human Resources 
Department. 

Upon termination of employment, whether voluntary or involuntary, group health benefits will continue 
until the end of the calendar month in which the termination occurs. Full-time employees become 
eligible for COBRA continuation of coverage the first day of the month following termination of 
employment. 

 

Section 4.05: Insurance (Part-Time) 

4.05    INSURANCE (Part-Time)   

MCPL may offers group insurance options such as dental and vision plans for eligible regular part -time 
employees who work at least 20 hours per week but less than 37.5 hours per week. Specific terms and 
coverages will vary over a period of time and employees may contact the Human Resources Department 
with any questions about current information. 

Enrollment in a Group Benefits Plan: The terms, conditions, individual eligibility and specific 
coverages, are determined by, subject to and controlled by the insurance companies and the policies, not 
by MCPL. During the first thirty (30) days of employment, eligible part-time employees may apply for 
optional insurance coverage. An employee is eligible for coverage on the first day of the calendar month 
following thirty (30) days of employment. Dependent documentation is required at the time of 
enrollment. 

Formatted: Strikethrough

136



26 
 
 

In the event that an employee is eligible for a group insurance plan and does not elect to participate, 
then the employee will be considered a late applicant if the employee subsequently wishes to apply for 
coverage. There are restrictions as to when and under what circumstances the employee will be able to 
participate in the group insurance plan. This is a requirement of the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act (HIPAA). Employees or dependents who were eligible for insurance, but waived the 
coverage, will only be allowed to enroll in the plan during an open enrollment or by meeting one of the 
following qualifying events: marriage, birth, death of a spouse, divorce, adoption, loss of insurance 
coverage due to job termination or layoff. As with any change in circumstance, the employee is 
responsible for notifying the Human Resources Department. 

Dependent care, including Domestic Partner coverage, is available for the employee at the group rate. 
Similar enrollment restrictions apply. Dependent coverage does not include life, accidental death and 
dismemberment, short or long-term disability. 

Employees who are eligible for group insurance plan can pay for their premiums on a pre-tax basis. 
Other voluntary insurance programs are available to an eligible employee. More information can be 
obtained through the Human Resources Department. 

The library participates in the cost of the part-time employee's dental insurance coverage, and MCPL's 
contribution toward the cost of the employee's dental insurance is determined every year by the MCPL  
Board of Trustees. The library’s contribution is pro-rated, according to the number of hours the 
employee works: 

30 hours/week: 80% 

25 hours/week: 66.7% 

20 hours/week: 53.3% 

The specifics of the employee's insurance benefit will change as the library works with renewal periods, 
changes in insurance carriers, changes in the area of health services and the cost of the coverage. Any 
questions about the changes in coverage or benefits should be directed to the Human Resources 
Manager. 

Upon termination of employment, whether voluntary or involuntary, group benefits will continue until 
the end of the calendar month in which the termination occurs. 

 

Section 4.06: Group Insurance 

4.06         Section 4.06 Group Insurance 

As amended by the Library Board of Trustees July 19, 2006, and February 6, 2013.  

Employer-Paid 

137



27 
 
 

MCPL provides group insurance coverage for 37.5 hour per week employees which includes term life, 
accidental death and dismemberment, and long term disability. 

Coverage benefits are determined by the terms of the library’s contract with the insurance provider. The 
benefits, eligibility terms, and conditions of the insurance will change from time to time as the library 
works with contract renewals, changes in insurance carriers, changes in the area of services and the cost 
of the coverage. 

The provision of specific coverage benefits are determined by, subject to, and controlled by, th e 
insurance companies and the policies, not by MCPL. 

Any questions about the changes in coverage, eligibility, or benefits should be directed to the Human 
Resources Department. 

Voluntary 

Shared Cost 

Regular employees working 25 hours or more per week are eligible for voluntary short-term disability 
(STD) insurance. The library may participate in the cost of the employee's coverage. MCPL's 
contribution, if any, toward the cost of the employee’s insurance is determined every year by the MCPL 
Board of Trustees. 

Employee-Paid 

Employees working 37.5 hours per week and part-time employees may be eligible for certain other types 
of employee-paid insurance coverage. 

Voluntary insurance programs for 37.5 hours per week employees may include options to purchase 
additional term life and accidental death and dismemberment coverage. 

Both 37.5 hours per week and part time employees may be eligible for voluntary coverage such as vision, 
dependent life, and other insurance offerings.   

Eligibility requirements will vary for 37.5 hours per week and part-time staff. Details are available 
through the Human Resources Department. 

 

Section 4.07: Tax Deferred Annuity Retirement Plan 

4.07    TAX DEFERRED ANNUITY RETIREMENT PLAN  

Employees are eligible to participate in a tax deferred annuity retirement program. See the Human 
Resources Department for more information. 

 

138



28 
 
 

Section 4.08: Public Employees' Retirement Fund (PERF) 
and Other Retirement Benefits 

4.08    PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND (PERF) AND OTHER RETIREMENT 
BENEFITS  

Public Employees' Retirement Fund:  

Monroe County Public Library is a member of the Public Employees' Retirement Fund of Indiana 
(PERF) and is subject to any changes made by PERF. PERF is a retirement fund set up for the purpose 
of providing retirement, disability and survivor benefits for i ts members. Staff working 37 ½ hrs. per 
week are required to enroll into the PERF program. Staff working fewer  than 37 ½ hrs. per week are not 
eligible to enroll in PERF. Grandfathered MCPL employees working at least 30 hrs. per week and 
enrolled in PERF as of 1/1/2005 and who maintained a 30 hour work week status as of 12/31/2004, 
shall be eligible to continue in the program pursuant to the requirements found in Employment 
Categories, Section 2.9.   Further explanation regarding the PERF program is available by contacting the 
Human Resources Manager or visiting PERF's website at http://www.in.gov/perf/. [11] 

 

  

139

http://www.in.gov/perf/


29 
 
 

Section 4.09: Retirement Benefits-Insurance-Sick Leave 
Credit 

4.09    RETIREMENT BENEFITS-INSURANCE-SICK LEAVE CREDIT  

   

4.09.1    Retirement Definition:   

To receive the additional library retirement benefits of sick leave credit and insurance continuation 
explained below, the library's definition of a retirement is when a full-time staff member who is vested 
and who is eligible to retire under PERF regulations submits an application for retirement benefits with 
PERF and has completed a minimum of ten (10 years) of full-time service with the Monroe County 
Public Library. 

 

Section 4.09.2: Credit for Unused Accrued Sick Leave 

4.09.2    Credit for Unused Accrued Sick Leave:  

The MCPL Board of Trustees agrees to compensate employees who retire from MCPL under PERF for 
one (1) unused accrued sick day for every full year credited to PERF.  See 4.09.1 Retirement Definition. 

 

Section 4.09.3: Continuation of Health Insurance 

Coverage 

4.09.3    Continuation of Health Insurance Coverage:  

 As amended by the MCPL Board of Trustees September 12, 2007; effective January 1, 2008   

 Indiana law states that public employers providing group insurance to its employees must provide 
continuation of health insurance coverage for retirees who have reached fifty -five (55) years of age on or 
before the employees retirement date but who will: 1) not be eligible for Medicare coverage as prescribed 
by 42 U.S.C. 1395 et seq.; 2) have completed twenty (20) years of creditable employment with a public 
employer on or before the employee's retirement date, ten (10) years of which must have been 
completed immediately preceding the retirement date; and 3) have completed at least fifteen (15) years of 
participation in the retirement plan of which the employee is a member on or before the employee's 
retirement date.  Retiree is responsible for 100% of premium payment.  Specific provisions of this state 
law can be found under Indiana Code 5-10-8-2.6.   

 The MCPL Board of Trustees agrees to provide the library's monthly contribution for health insurance 
coverage, the same amount as that of active employee or $416.67, whichever is less, for full-time 

140



30 
 
 

employees retiring after age sixty (60) who elect continuation of health benefits coverage and agree to 
pay the balance of the premium. 

Such retiree coverage and the MCPL Board of Trustees' contribution, ceases at age sixty-five (65), unless 
the retiree elects to discontinue such coverage earlier or retiree fails to pay employee's share of 
premium.   

 In order to be eligible for the library's contribution for continued health insurance coverage, the retiree 
must have completed ten (10) years of service with the Monroe County Public Library , must have been 
enrolled in the library's insurance plan for ten (10) years prior to the time of retirement , and must be 
eligible to retire under PERF regulations.  

 All retirees that elect the continuation health insurance coverage must pay their share of the premium 
and dependent coverage if applicable. Each retiree's share of the premium payment will be paid one (1) 
month in advance and deposited in an individual "Retired Employee's Insurance Fund". A negative 
balance in a Retired Employee's Insurance Fund will cause an automatic cancellation of that retiree's 
continuation of health insurance benefits.  The Human Resources Manager will notify retirees' thirty (30) 
days in advance of any increase in the employee's share of the insurance premium. 

  

Section 4.10: Holidays (Regular Staff Working 20+ 

hours/week) 

4.10    HOLIDAYS (regular staff working 20+ hours/week)  

Staff members are granted 9 paid holidays.  A benefit day is 4 hours for 20 hours per week employees, 5 
hours for 25 hours per week employees, 6 hours for 30 hours per week employees, and 7.5 hours for 
37.5 hours per week employees.   

The library will be closed on the following holidays:   

 New Year's Day                        

 Easter                                                                        

 Memorial Day                            

 Independence Day                      

 Labor Day   

 Thanksgiving Day 

 The day after Thanksgiving Day 

 Christmas Eve 

 Christmas Day                                     

Staff scheduled to work on a day that is a paid holiday will take that day as a holiday. Staff not scheduled 
to work on a paid holiday will receive a floating holiday. A floating holiday is time off during the week 
preceding or 30 calendar days after the holiday. If a floating holiday cannot be taken within 30 calendar 
days, an extension may be granted by the department manager up to a maximum of 90 calendar days. If a 
floating holiday is not taken within 30 calendar days and an extension is not granted, the holiday will be 

141



31 
 
 

lost. If an extension is granted and the holiday is not taken within 90 calendar days, the holiday will be 
lost.   

In order to receive pay for holidays, employees must be in active  pay status at least the day before and 
the day following the holiday. 

Section 4.11: Leave Without Pay (Staff Working 20+ 

hours/week) 

4.11    LEAVE WITHOUT PAY (staff working 20+ hours/week)   

Employees may request leave without pay for the purposes of education, travel, serious family need, or 
illness or injury for employees who do not qualify for Family Medical Leave (FMLA). All appropriate 
benefit time must be taken before requesting leave without pay.    

A request for a leave without pay may be approved or denied based on the business need of MCPL.   

The Library Director may elect to place an employee on leave without pay.    

All planned leave requests must be submitted in writing to department manager at least six (6) weeks 
prior to beginning of requested leave. The limit for a leave without pay is one (1) year. Leave without pay 
must be approved by the Library Director.   

Benefits will not accrue during leave without pay period. An employee's increment date will be adjusted 
according to the length of leave. 

Upon the approval of the Library Director or designee, and at the request of AFSCME, one 

employee per department who is elected or appointed to an officer or steward position with  

AFSCME may be granted leave without pay, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  

  

Section 4.12: Leave Without Pay (Staff Working Fewer 

than 20 hours/week) 

4.12    LEAVE WITHOUT PAY (staff working fewer than 20 hours/week)  

Employees working fewer than 20 hours per week are not eligible for paid time off. Instead, these 
employees may request leave without pay for personal time or sick leave. Request for leaves of fewer 
than four (4) work weeks should be submitted to the employee's department manager or other 
designated staff member for approval. All leave requests must be submitted in writing in advance.    

A request for a leave without pay may be approved or denied based on the business need of MCPL. An 
employee's increment date will be adjusted according to the length of leave.    

142



32 
 
 

The Library Director may elect to place an employee on leave without pay.   

Employees working fewer than 20 hours per week may also request leave without pay for four (4) work 
weeks to one (1) year. Such extended leave could be granted for the purposes of education, illness, travel 
or serious family need. Extended leave without pay may include student employees away from town for 
summer break. Requests for leave are submitted to the employee's supervisor/department manager for 
approval. All planned leaves must be submitted in writing in advance. The employee may be asked to 
include in writing a declaration of resignation by default if the employee fails to return to employment by 
the agreed date.   

The employee's supervisor/department manager is required to notify administration and the Human 
Resources Manager of approved leave exceeding four (4) work weeks. 

 

Section 4.13: Bereavement Leave (Staff Working 20+ 
hours/week) 

4.13    BEREAVEMENT LEAVE (staff working 20+ hours/week)  

Managerial/supervisory/confidential employees.  Up to five (5) work days leave of absence with pay 
is allowed in case of death within an employee's immediate family, not to exceed the number of hours 
the employee would ordinarily have worked during that pay period.  Immediate family is defined as 

1. Spouse 
2. Domestic partner 
3. Child (step) 
4. Parent (step) 
5. Current or former legal guardian 
6. Sibling (step) 
7. Grandparents (great) 
8. Grandchild 
9. Aunt/Uncle (great) 
10. Niece/Nephew 
11. any person living in the immediate household, or 
12. any of the above as they pertain to the employee's spouse or domestic partner.  

Up to two (2) work days leave of absence with pay is allowed for any other close relatives , not to exceed 
the number of hours the employee would ordinarily have worked during that pay period. Exceptions to 
bereavement days allowed, up to a maximum of five (5) work days, may be made with the approval of 
the Manager in consultation with Associate Director or Library Director and will be based on the 
employee's relationship to the deceased, travel time involved and how much responsibility the employee 
may have in planning/organizing the funeral or memorial service.   

If additional time is needed, sick leave of up to a maximum of 5 work days, personal leave or leave 
without pay may be requested in addition to the above bereavement leave with the approval of the 
Library Director or Associate Director.   

143



33 
 
 

Short leaves of a day or less with pay may be allowed for attending funerals or memorial services of non -
family members. Notification should be made to the employee's department manager/supervisor as soon 
as possible. 

Bargaining unit employees.  Employees will be compensated for a period up to three (3) days of bereavement 
leave in case of death within an employee's immediate family, not to exceed the number of hours the 
employee would ordinarily have worked during that pay period.  

If additional time is needed, sick leave of up to a maximum of 3 work days, personal leave or leave 
without pay may be requested in addition to the above bereavement leave with the approval of the 
Manager in consultation with Associate Director, or the Library Director.  The decision will be based on 
the employee's relationship to the deceased, travel time involved and how much responsibility the 
employee may have in planning/organizing the funeral or memorial service.   

Immediate family is defined as: 

1. Spouse 
2. Domestic partner 
3. Child (step) 
4. Parent (step) 
5. Current or former legal guardian 
6. Sibling (step) 
7. Grandparent (great) 
8. Grandchild 
9. Aunt/Uncle (great) 
10. Niece/Nephew 
11. Any person living in the immediate household 
12. Any of the above as they pertain to the employee's spouse or domestic partner 

Employees must notify their manager of the need to take bereavement leave in a timely fashion.  

 

Section 4.14: Training and Continuing Education 

4.14    TRAINING AND CONTINUING EDUCATION  

MCPL encourages employees to take advantage of formal and informal opportunities for continuing 
their education or training in their work-related field. Because continuing education benefits both the 
employee and the employer, MCPL views participation in continuing education activities to be the 
shared responsibility of the employee and the employer (MCPL).   

As scheduling and funding permit, MCPL supports employees who choose to attend conferences and 
workshops, visit other libraries, or participate in other job-training or professional development pursuits. 
If funding is not available to pay staff for actual expenses, staff may request to use work time to attend 
training events at the staff's expense. As scheduling and funding permit, MCPL will provide in-house 
continuing education on matters that will directly affect the work of many staff members (e.g., new 
automation software).  

144



34 
 
 

While MCPL supports employees in their continuing education and professional development activities, 
employees who complete a degree program, or receive special certification or training, will not 
automatically be eligible for a change in job classification or pay scale.  

 

  

145



35 
 
 

Section 4.15: Military Leave 

4.15    MILITARY LEAVE    

4.15.1    Annual Training  

MCPL provides compensation for two weeks during annual reserve and National Guard military training 
for regular full-time employees.  Regular part-time and temporary employees do not qualify for military 
leave compensation.  

Employees with appropriate military orders will be granted paid leave for annual train ing for Reserve or 
National Guard for a period of up to fifteen (15) days per year; and are entitled to civilian (MCPL) and 
military pay up to fifteen (15) days per year.   

Time spent on military leave will not be counted as vacation time used, and seniori ty will continue to 
accrue in the same manner as for employees not on military leave.   

Subject to the terms, conditions and limitations of the applicable plans for which the employee is 
otherwise eligible, the employer will continue to provide health insurance benefits for the full term of 
the annual training period.   

Employees on two-week active duty training assignments or inactive duty training drills are required to 
return to work for the first regularly scheduled shift after the end of training, allow ing reasonable travel 
time and an eight (8) hour rest period.  

  

4.15.2    Active Duty/Enlistment   

The Uniformed Services Employment and Re-employment Rights Act (USERRA) of 1994 grants special 
considerations and rights to employees that are either called to active military status or enlist in the 
armed forces. Active duty military leave will be unpaid.   

USERRA requires employers to grant such employees reinstatement of the position held at the time of 
departure for military service, or in some cases to a position of equivalent or equal stature and pay 
provided the employee is discharged from service honorably. The cumulative length of service that 
causes an absence from a position may not exceed five (5) years, except where provided by law.    

USERRA also requires that returning eligible employees be granted seniority and benefits at the same 
level as if the employee had not left employment for service. Benefit time will continue to accrue while 
an employee is on military leave. Additionally, service members are able (but are not required) to use 
accrued vacation or annual leave while performing military duty.    

If an employee's health plan coverage would terminate because of an absence due to uniformed service, 
the person may elect at his/her own cost to continue the health plan coverage for up to 18 months after 
the absence begins, or the period of service, whichever is shorter.    

146



36 
 
 

Upon returning from military leave of absence an employee will be reinstated to a MCPL position 
provided the employee is discharged from military status under honorable conditions, and makes a 
request for reinstatement within thirty (30) days after release from active duty, or one year after release 
from hospitalization due to military accident. The employee must also be qualified to perform the 
essential functions of the position for which he/she is being reinstated, and shall be required to undergo 
a medical examination by medical provider(s) paid for by MCPL.   

Employees on such leave must notify MCPL of the intent to return to employment in accordance with 
all applicable state and federal laws. 

 

Section 4.16: Jury Duty 

4.16    JURY DUTY   

MCPL encourages employees to fulfill their civic responsibilities by serving jury duty when required. 
MCPL will compensate an employee for scheduled hours not worked but spent on jury duty so that 
employees are not penalized financially for serving the community .  Staff members are encouraged to 
give as much time to regular work duties as jury service will permit. Jury duty is considered separat e 
from other earned benefit time and does not affect how other benefit time is earned or used.    

Regular employees shall receive regular pay for jury duty. The employee will be paid for his or her 
normally scheduled hours for each work day spend spent on jury duty.  If the employee desires to 
receive the pay earned from the court for jury duty instead of his or her regular work pay, he or she can 
choose to take Leave Without Pay, to use Personal Leave if available or, when possible, to reschedule his 
or her work time.   

If staff member chooses leave with pay, money received from court will be deducted from paychecks. 
Employees will submit a copy of the check received from the court to the Human Resources Manager. If 
the staff member wishes to use personal leave, or with the approval of their supervisor/department 
manager, to reschedule work time, employee retains reimbursement from court.    

Employees must provide a copy of the jury duty summons to their supervisor as soon as possible so that 
the supervisor may make arrangements to accommodate the employee's absence. Of course, the 
employee is expected to report for work whenever the court schedule permits.    

Ordinarily, MCPL will not request exemption from jury duty for its staff members.   However, either 
MCPL or the employee may request an excuse from jury duty if, in the employer's judgment, the 
employee's absence would create serious operational difficulties.    

MCPL will continue to provide health insurance benefits for the full term of the jury duty 
absence.  Employees will continue to accrue benefits during jury duty leave.   Holiday pay will not be paid 
in addition to jury duty leave pay. 

 

147



37 
 
 

 

 

Section 4.17: Worker's Compensation 

4.17    WORKER'S COMPENSATION  

MCPL provides a comprehensive worker's compensation insurance program at no cost to employees for 
the benefit of all employees.  Under this plan, employees may receive compensation for lost time and for 
physician or hospital costs related to injuries that occur on the job.   This program covers any injury or 
illness sustained in the course of employment that requires medical, surgical, or hospital treatment. 
Subject to applicable legal requirements, worker's compensation insurance provides benefits after a short 
waiting period. While on worker's compensation disability, employee benefits shall accrue. Employee 
income received while on leave under this policy shall not exceed wages the employee would have 
normally received pre-major illness in-line-of-duty leave.   

Any employee who sustains a work-related injury or illness should inform his/her department manager 
immediately and the Human Resources Manager within 24 hours. No matter how minor an on-the-job 
injury may appear, it is important that it be reported immediately. This will enable an eligib le employee 
to qualify for coverage as quickly as possible.    

If the employee has a life threatening condition, he/she should proceed directly to the nearest hospital 
or medical facility.   

Employees should contact the Human Resources Department to obtain information and forms 
regarding filing worker's compensation claims. Medical certifications are required. Once completed, 
all such forms are to be filed directly with the Human Resources  Department, NOT with the insurance 
carrier.   

As specified by Indiana worker's compensation statutes, when a compensable injury renders an employee 
unable to work, compensation for lost wages is paid starting on the eighth (8th) day. However, on the 
twenty-second (22nd) day of disability the employee will receive compensation for the first seven (7) 
days.   

The first weekly installment of compensation is due fourteen (14) days after the disability begins. Not 
later than fifteen (15) days from the date that the first installment is due, the employer/carrier must 
tender to the employee an Agreement of Compensation, along with compensation due.    

If however, the employer/carrier denies liability, a written notice of denial must be mailed within twenty -
nine (29) days after the employer's knowledge of the alleged injury. The employer may obtain an 
additional thirty (30) day period if it establishes that the delay is due to an inability to obtain the medical 
information necessary to make a determination as to liability.    

Certain injuries are excluded from worker's compensation coverage (e.g. employee intoxication, self-
inflicted injuries, failure to use safety appliances, committing a violation of work rules, failing to obey a 
reasonable written or printed safety rule, knowing failure to perform a statutory duty). Neither MCPL or  
the insurance carrier will be liable for the payment of worker's compensation benefits or major 

148



38 
 
 

illness/injury in-line-of-duty leave pay for off-duty injuries or illnesses that occur during an employee's 
voluntary participation in any off-duty recreational, social or athletic activity sponsored or not-sponsored 
by MCPL.   

While an employee is on worker's compensation leave, he/she shall not be engaged in outside 
employment.   

Holiday pay will not be paid in addition to major illness/injury in-line-of-duty leave pay.   

During worker's compensation leave employees may be required to submit periodic medical 
certifications on their serious health condition. Before returning to work, the employee shall provide 
medical certification from a health care provider verifying that he/she may safely return to work.   

Worker's compensation leave is designated as Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) leave beginning 
with the first day of leave. All such leave time used counts against the employee's twelve (12) week 
FMLA entitlement. 

 

Section 4.18: Benefits Continuation (COBRA) 

4.18    BENEFITS CONTINUATION (COBRA)  

The Federal Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) gives employees and their 
qualified beneficiaries the opportunity to continue health insurance coverage under the employer's health 
plan when a "qualifying event" would normally result in the loss of eligibility. Some common qualifying 
events are resignation, termination of employment, or death of an employee; a reduction in an 
employee's hours or a leave of absence; an employee's divorce or legal separation; and a dependent child 
no longer meeting eligibility requirements.    

Under COBRA, the employee or beneficiary pays the full cost of coverage at the employer's group rates 
plus an administration fee.   

MCPL or agents acting in on behalf of MCPL provides each eligible employee with a written notice 
describing rights granted under COBRA when the employee becomes eligible for coverage under the 
employer's health insurance plan. The notice contains important information about the employee's rights 
and obligations. 

 

Section 4.19: Family and Medical Leave 

4.19    FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE  

As approved by the MCPL Board of Trustees January 19, 2013 

149



39 
 
 

It is the policy of the Library to comply with the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 ("FMLA").  The 
Library posts the mandatory FMLA Notice and, upon hire, provides all new employees with notices 
required by the U.S. Department of Labor ("DOL") on Employee Rights and Responsibilities under the 
FMLA. 

The Family Medical Leave Act of 1993, as amended, is a lengthy, complex law with over a hundred pages 
of federal regulations written to explain and aid in the application of the act. The FMLA can often 
overlap with other federal laws and regulations and Library policies. The function of this policy is to 
provide Library employees with a general description of their FMLA rights. This information is only a 
general summary of the steps to follow when considering a request or need for family or medical leave. 
For questions about the applicability of the following provisions and/or assistance with the required 
forms, please contact the Human Resources office. 

The intent of the FMLA and of this policy is to allow an eligible employee to take job-protected, leave 
because of a serious health condition that results in the employee being unable to perform the functions 
of the employee's position, to attend to serious illnesses affecting an employee's immediate family 
members, to have time to participate in child rearing, and to attend to a qualifying exigency related to 
military service of certain family members, as described under the Military Leave section of this policy.  

Under this policy, the Library will grant up to a total of 12 weeks of leave during a 12 -month period to 
eligible employees. For purposes of calculating employee entitlement for subsequent FMLA leaves, the 
"12-month period" is measured forward from the date when the employee's previous FMLA leave began. 
For example, under this method an employee would be entitled to twelve (12) weeks of leave during the 
year beginning on the first date FMLA is taken (e.g., June 5, 2013); the next 12-month period would 
begin the first time leave is taken after completion of that 12-month period ending (e.g., June 5, 2014). 

If the leave is to take care of a covered servicemember (as discussed in the Military Leave section), then 
the Library will grant up to a total of 26 weeks of leave during the 12-month period measured forward 
from the date the employee first uses FMLA leave to care for the covered servicemember. The leave may 
be paid, unpaid or a combination of paid and unpaid leave, depending on the circumstances of the leave 
and as specified in this policy. 

The Library will not discriminate or retaliate against employees as a  result of, or interfere with, the 
approved use of FMLA leave or a proper request for such leave. Request for FMLA leave will be 
considered without regard to race, color, citizenship status, national origin, ancestry, gender, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, age, religion, physical or mental disability, veteran status, or any other 
classification protected by local, state, or federal law. Employees should report any conduct they believe 
violates this policy to Human Resources or any member of management. 

A. ELIGIBILITY 

To qualify to take family or medical leave, an employee must meet all of the following conditions:  

1. The employee must have been employed by the Library for at least 12 months (52 weeks).  
1. Any portion of a week that the employee is on the payroll counts as a full week for 

FMLA eligibility.  
2. Separate periods of employment will be counted toward the 12 months of employment 

requirement. The cumulative employment time need not have been consecutive, 

150



40 
 
 

provided that the break in service does not exceed seven years, except as provided by 
the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Act of 1994 (USERRA). 

2. For the 12 months immediately preceding the first day of the FMLA leave, the employee must 
have worked at least 1,250 hours.  

1. These hours must be actual hours worked, not hours for which the employee is 
compensated.  Hours using any type of paid time off benefits or holiday time do not 
count toward this requirement. The principles established under the Fair Labor 
Standards Act ("FLSA") determine the number of hours worked by an employee.  

3. The employee must work at a site where at least 50 employees are employed or within 75 miles 
of the site. 

 

B. TYPES OF LEAVE COVERED 

To qualify as FMLA leave under this policy, the employee must be taking leave for  one of the reasons 
listed below: 

1. for the birth of a son or daughter, and to care for the newborn child;  
2. for the placement with the employee of a child for adoption or foster care, and to care for the 

newly placed child;  
3. to care for an immediate family member (spouse, child, or parent — but not a parent "in-law") 

with a serious health condition;  
4. when the employee is unable to work because of his or her own serious health condition, 

including injuries covered as part of a Worker’s Compensation leave, if such injury meets the 
definition of "serious health condition" described below;  

5. to care for an immediate family member (spouse, child, parent, or nearest blood relative) in the 
military, who has suffered a serious injury or illness. See Military Leave, below, Section I; 

6. a qualifying exigency which occurs while the employee’s spouse, child, or parent is on covered 
military active duty or has been notified of an impending call or order to covered active duty in 
the Armed Forces. See Military Leave, below, Section I. 

Time and Other Limits on Use of Leave 

Leave to care for a newborn child or for a newly placed child must conclude within 12 months after the 
birth or placement. 

A husband and wife that are both employed by the Library are limited in the combined amount of 
FMLA leave they may take for the birth and care of a newborn child, placement of a child for adoption 
or foster care, or to care for a parent who has a serious health condition. They may only take up to a 
combined total of 12 work weeks of FMLA leave for these events. If the leave is to care for a covered 
servicemember (as defined below) with a serious injury or illness, then the husband and wife may take a 
combined total of 26 workweeks of FMLA leave. 

Definition of Serious Health Condition 

"Serious health condition" means an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition that 
involves: 

151



41 
 
 

1. An illness or injury that involves an overnight stay in a health care facility and any subsequent 
treatment in connection with such stay; or 

2. Continuing treatment by a health care provider involving any one or more of the following:  
1. a period of incapacity of more than three (3) full, consecutive calendar days that also 

involves:  
1. in-person treatment by a health care provider two or more times within thirty 

(30) days of the first day of incapacity; or 
2. in-person treatment by a health care provider, on at least one occasion within 

the first seven (7) days of incapacity, which results in a regimen of continuing 
treatment; or 

2. pregnancy and prenatal care; or 
3. a chronic condition which requires visits at least twice a year for treatment by a health 

care provider over an extended period of time, and may cause episodic rather than a 
continuing period of incapacity; or  

4. permanent or long-term conditions; or 
5. conditions requiring multiple treatments by a health care provider, including recovery 

time, either for restorative surgery after an accident or other injury, or for a condition 
that will likely result in a period of incapacity of more than 3 consecutive calendar days  
in the absence of medical intervention or treatment. 

"Incapacity" means an inability to work, attend school, or perform other regular daily activities due to 
the serious health condition, treatment for that condition, or recovery from that condition.  

Employees with questions about what illnesses are covered under this FMLA policy or under the 
Library's Sick Leave policy are encouraged to consult with the Human Resource Manager.   

C. REQUESTING FMLA LEAVE COVERAGE 

All requests for FMLA leave must be submitted in writing, using the Library’s FMLA request form, to 
the Human Resources representative to make a determination, unless doing so would be impossible due 
to an emergency. The form is available from the Human Resources office.  

An FMLA leave may be initiated by the employee or the manager of the employee’s department. An 
employee may request a leave, or he/she may provide a supervisor with sufficient information to make 
the supervisor aware of an absence that may be eligible for FMLA protection. In consu ltation with the 
Human Resources representative, the supervisor may seek additional information from the employee to 
determine whether FMLA applies. If a supervisor is aware that the reason for an absence from work 
qualifies under FMLA, the absence must be designated as FMLA leave, even if the employee does not 
request it.  

When the need for an FMLA leave is foreseeable, the employee is required to give the Library at least 
thirty (30) days written notice or, if this is not possible, as much notice as is practical. Usually, it will be 
practical to notify the Library on the same day or the next business day after the employee becomes 
aware of a need for leave.  If an employee fails to give 30 days' notice for leave which was foreseeable, 
the Library reserves the right to deny the leave request until 30 days after the employee gives the 
required notice. 

If the need for FMLA leave (including leave for a qualifying exigency, as defined below) is not 
foreseeable, the employee must comply with the Library's absence-reporting procedures; unless unusual 
circumstances exist that prevent the employee from using those procedures.   An employee who fails to 

152



42 
 
 

comply with the Library's absence-reporting procedures may be subject to appropriate disciplinary 
action, up to and including termination.   
If an employee requests leave for a planned medical procedure or treatment, the employee must make a 
reasonable effort to schedule the procedure or treatment to avoid disrupting the Library's operations.  

If an employee seeks leave for a FMLA-qualifying reason for which the Library has previously provided 
FMLA leave, the employee must specifically reference the qualifying reason for leave or the need for 
FMLA leave when reporting the absence.  

Leave determined to be covered under FMLA shall be supported by the employee’s health care provider 
providing a signed FMLA certification form. Employees should contact the Human Resources office to 
secure such forms and receive assistance with procedures. A determination for granting or denying an 
FMLA leave may be delayed until medical statements/certifications are provided by the employee.  

Within five business days after the employee has submitted the appropriate certification form, the 
Human Resources office will complete and provide the employee with a written response to the 
employee’s request for FMLA leave. 

D. CERTIFICATION/MEDICAL STATEMENT FOR AN EMPLOYEE’S OR FAMILY 
MEMBERS SERIOUS HEALTH CONDITION  

Employees granted family or medical leave for reasons other than parental leave after the  birth, adoption 
or foster placement of a child are required to obtain a medical certification from a health care provider 
describing the circumstances requiring the employee's absence. The Library requires medical certification 
to support a claim for leave for an employee's serious illness or injury, or the serious illness or injury of a 
child, spouse, or employee's parent. The medical certification must be COMPLETE  and include the 
anticipated begin and end date for the leave. In the event that a physician does not complete all 
applicable portions of the certification, the certification will not be accepted by the Library until it is 
complete. 

E. USE OF PAID LEAVE AND UNPAID LEAVE  

Employees that have been approved for the FMLA job protection benefit shall use any accrued sick 
and/or personal paid leave time, or any other type of income protection leave such as Short Term 
Disability or Worker’s Compensation, while on approved leave. All paid leave shall run concurrently 
with FMLA leave, and the time on paid leave will be counted against the employee's FMLA 
entitlement.  Additionally, if the employee's absence is for the employee's own serious health condition 
and it qualifies for Short Term Disability Leave or as a Worker's Compensation absence, those leaves 
will run concurrently with the FMLA leave. While on paid leave, the Library will require the employee to 
comply with the requirements for taking such leaves under the Library's policies. Please refer to the 
Library's paid leave policies for those requirements. 

Beginning on the first day of the leave, staff must use their time-off accruals as part of the 12-week 
FMLA leave. Time off accruals that must be used during FMLA leave include holidays, sick, and 
personal and vacation leave. This also applies to FMLA leave that is taken either intermittently or 
through a reduced work schedule.   

F. EMPLOYEE AND BENEFITS STATUS DURING LEAVE  

153



43 
 
 

During FMLA, the employee will retain his or her employment status and the benefits he or she has 
accrued.  Benefits such as paid leave or holidays will continue to accrue during FMLA leave, and existing 
medical, dental, and vision coverage will remain in effect during FMLA leave, as long as the employee 
makes any required contributions, if applicable, during this period according to the procedures set forth 
below.   If those procedures are followed, the employee will receive health plan coverage at the same 
level and under the same conditions as if the employee had continued to work. The employee must have 
been enrolled in the benefit plan prior to taking FMLA leave for the health plan coverage to continue.   

If health coverage or other benefits have lapsed during an employee's FMLA leave, the employee will be 
reinstated to benefit coverage on the same terms as existed prior to the taking of FMLA leave, without 
any qualifying period, physical examination, or pre-existing condition limitation. If the Library makes any 
changes to employee contributions for health coverage or other benefits, those changes will likewise 
apply to employees on FMLA leave.  

While on paid leave running concurrently with FMLA leave, payroll deductions will continue to collect 
the employee's share of the premium costs for benefits in which the employee is actively enrolled while 
on leave. While on unpaid FMLA leave, the employee must continue to make payment for the 
employee’s share of the premium costs, either in person or by mail. The payment must be received in the 
Library's Finance office by the 22nd day of each month. If the payment is more than 30 days late , the 
employee's coverage may be dropped for the duration of the leave. The Library will provide fifteen (15) 
days' notification prior to the employee's loss of coverage.  

If the employee chooses not to return to work for reasons other than a continued ser ious health 
condition, a serious injury or illness of a covered servicemember, or another circumstance beyond the 
employee's control, the Library will require the employee to reimburse the Library for the share the 
Library paid for the employee's benefit(s) premium during the leave period, as permitted by law.  If the 
employee asserts that the serious health condition or serious illness/injury of a covered servicemember 
caused the failure to return, the Library can require medical certification, which the employee must 
provide within 30 days of the Library's request.  An employee will not be considered to have "returned 
to work" under this policy unless the employee works for at least 30 calendar days following the 
employee's latest return from FMLA leave.  

G. INTERMITTENT LEAVE OR A REDUCED WORK SCHEDULE  

Employees may take FMLA leave in twelve (12) consecutive weeks; they may use the leave intermittently 
(take a day periodically when needed over the year); or, under certain circumstances, they may use the 
leave to reduce the workweek or workday, resulting in a reduced hour schedule. In all cases, the total 
amount leave may not exceed a total of twelve (12) work weeks (or twenty-six (26) work weeks to care 
for an injured or ill servicemember) over the 12-month period.  The 12-month period is measured 
forward 12 months from the date when the employee’s previous FMLA leave began.  
 
For the birth, adoption, or foster care of a child, the Library and the employee must mutually agree to 
the schedule before the employee may take the leave intermittently or work a reduced hour schedule. 
The Library will consider each request for intermittent or reduced hour schedule leave for these 
purposes on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration the employee's position and the Library's 
current business needs. In such cases, if the mother has a serious health condition in connection with the 
child's birth or the child has a serious health condition, the employee can certify the intermittent or 
reduced work schedule leave as medically necessary by obtaining certification from a health care 
provider. In these cases, the leave must conclude within one year of the birth or placement of the child.  

154



44 
 
 

If the employee is taking leave for a serious health condition, because of the ser ious health condition of 
a family member, or to care for a covered servicemember, the employee should try to reach agreement 
with the Library before taking intermittent leave or working a reduced hour schedule. If this is not 
possible, then the employee must prove that the use of the leave is medically necessary by submitting 
medical certification issued by a health care provider.  As provided above, the Library reserves the right 
to obtain a second or third opinion of the medical necessity for intermittent  or reduced hour schedule 
leave for a serious health condition (either the employee's own or that of a family member).   
In instances when leave for the employee or employee's family member is foreseeable and for planned 
medical treatment, including recovery from a serious health condition or to care for a child after birth, or 
placement for adoption or foster care, the Library may temporarily transfer an employee to an available 
alternative position with equivalent pay and benefits if the alternative posit ion would better 
accommodate the intermittent or reduced schedule.  

H. EMPLOYEE STATUS AFTER LEAVE  
 
Employees returning from FMLA leave must be able to assume all of the essential functions of their 
jobs, subject to compliance with all state and federal laws. An employee who takes FMLA leave for 
his/her own serious health condition may be asked to provide, at the employee's cost, a fitness for duty 
(FFD) clearance from the health care provider before returning to work. If so, this requirement is 
included in the Library’s response to the FMLA request along with the employee’s job description 
identifying the essential functions of the employee’s position.  The Library will not request fitness-for-
duty certifications for intermittent or reduced schedule FMLA leaves unless reasonable safety concerns 
exist regarding the employee's ability to perform his/her duties.   In such a case, the Library may request 
a fitness-for-duty certification once every thirty (30) days in connection with intermittent or reduced 
schedule leave.  

Generally, an employee who takes FMLA leave will be able to return to the same position the employee 
held when he/she went on leave, or to a position with equivalent status, pay, benefits, working 
conditions, and other employment terms. Employees on an FMLA leave are still subject to a reduction in 
force or reassignment that would have occurred otherwise had the employee been working. If an 
employee fails to report for work following the conclusion of FMLA leave, the Library may consider the 
employee to have voluntarily resigned his/her position.  
Very infrequently, the reinstatement of a "key employee" that would result in substantial and grievous 
economic injury to the Library may not be possible. The Library reserves the right, in accordance w ith 
the FMLA, to deny restoration of employment to a "key employee" after requesting FMLA leave.   If any 
possibility exists that the Library may deny reinstatement after leave, the Library will inform the key 
employee when he/she requests FMLA leave. All efforts will be made to notify the key employee in a 
timely manner once a determination, based on business need, is made regarding reinstatement.  

I. MILITARY LEAVE 

Exigency Leave 

An employee whose spouse, legal child or parent is a "covered military member" (as defined below) and 
has either been notified of an impending call or order to covered active military duty, or who is already 
on covered active duty, may take up to twelve (12) weeks of FMLA leave for reasons related to or 
affected by the family member’s call-up or service. The qualifying exigency must be one of the following:  

155



45 
 
 

1. Short-Notice Deployment – When a covered military member receives less than seven (7) days' 
notice of deployment to active duty, an eligible employee may take FMLA leave within the seven 
(7) days after notice is given to address any issue arising from such notice;  

2. Military Events and Activities – An eligible employee may take FMLA leave to attend any official 
ceremony, program, or event sponsored by the covered military member's military entity, or to 
attend family support or assistance programs and informational briefings sponsored or 
promoted by the military entity or the American Red Cross;  

3. Child Care and School Activities – An eligible employee may take FMLA leave to arrange for 
alternative childcare for a covered military member's existing childcare arrangement, or to 
provide childcare on an urgent, immediate basis arising from the covered military member's 
active duty or call to active duty status, or to enroll or transfer the covered military member's 
child to a new school, or to attend required meetings at the covered military member's child's 
school or daycare facility due to the covered military member's call to duty or active duty;   

4. Financial and Legal Arrangements – An eligible employee may take FMLA leave to make or 
update financial or legal arrangements associated with the covered military member's absence or 
call to active duty status, or to act as the covered military member's representative during active 
duty or within 90 days after active duty, before a federal, state, or local agency for purposes of 
obtaining, arranging, or appealing military service benefits;  

5. Counseling  - An eligible employee may take FMLA leave to attend counseling for the employee, 
the covered military member, or the covered military member's child, if the need for counseling 
arises from the covered military member's active duty or call to active duty status;   

6. Rest and Recuperation – An eligible employee may take up to five (5) days of FMLA leave for 
each instance that he or she desires to spend time with a covered military member who is on 
short-term, temporary, rest and recuperation leave during the period of deployment;   

7. Post-Deployment Activities – An eligible employee  may take FMLA leave to attend any official 
ceremony or program sponsored by the military for a period of ninety (90) days following the 
termination of the covered military member's active duty status, or to address issues that arise 
from a covered military member's death while on active duty status; and  

8. Additional Activities – The Library may grant FMLA leave to address any other issue that arises 
out of active duty,  provided that the Library and employee agree on the timing and duration of 
the leave. 

"Covered military member" means an employee's spouse, son, daughter, or parent on active duty or call 
to active duty status (or who has been notified of an impending call to active duty).   "Active duty or call 
to active duty status" means duty during the deployment of the member with the Armed Forces to a 
foreign country, if the individual is a member of the regular Armed Forces; or for members of the 
reserve components of the Armed Forces, it means duty during the deployment of the member with the 
Armed Forces to a foreign country under a call or order to active duty under certain statutes that 
authorize ordering certain retired members of the Regular Armed Forces and Reserve to active duty, 
ordering certain reserve component members to active duty, and cal ling the National Guard into federal 
service.  

If an employee takes this form of leave, any leave taken under the Indiana Military Family Leave Act or 
other applicable state military family leave law will run concurrently with the above leave.  

The leave may commence as soon as the covered military member receives the call-up notice. (For this 
type of FMLA leave, the child does not have to be a minor.) 

Certification of Qualifying Exigency for Military Family Leave   

156



46 
 
 

The library requires certification of the qualifying exigency for military family leave. The employee must 
respond to such a request within 15 days of the request or provide a reasonable explanation for the 
delay. Failure to provide certification may result in a denial of continuation of leave.  

Servicemember Caregivers Leave 

In addition, An employee whose spouse, legal child, parent or nearest blood relative ("next of kin"),   is a 
covered servicemember (as defined below) may take up to twenty-six (26) weeks of leave in a single 12-
The term “covered servicemember” means: 

 a member of the Armed Forces (including a member of the National Guard or Reserves) who is 
undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy; is otherwise in "outpatient status" (as 
defined below); or is otherwise on the temporary disability retired list, for a "serious injury or 
illness" (as defined below); or 

 a "veteran" (as defined below) who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy, 
for a serious injury or illness and who was a member of the Armed Forces (including a member 
of the National Guard or Reserves) at any time during the period of five (5) years preceding the 
date on which the veteran undergoes that medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy. 

The term “serious injury or illness” means: 

 an injury or illness that was incurred while in the line of active duty for the Armed Forces, 
National Guard, or Reserves 

 an injury or illness which existed before the beginning of active duty and was aggravated by 
service in line of duty on active duty in the Armed Forces) and that may render the member 
medically unfit to perform the duties of the member’s office, grade, rank, or rating; or  

 in the case of a veteran who was on active duty at any time during a period described above, 
incurs a qualifying injury or illness (as defined by the Secretary of Labor) that existed before the 
beginning of active duty and was aggravated by his/her military service and that manifested it self 
before or after the member became a veteran.  

The term "veteran" means a person who service in the active military, naval, or air service and who was 
released or discharged under conditions that were not dishonorable. 

The term "outpatient status" means a covered servicemember is assigned to a military medical treatment 
facility as an outpatient, or to a unit established for the purpose of providing command and control of 
members of the Armed Forces received medical care as outpatients.  
For purposes of this form of leave only, the 12-month period begins on the first day an eligible 
employee takes FMLA leave to care for a covered servicemember and ends exactly 12 months after that 
date.  If an eligible employee does not exhaust 26 weeks of leave during the 12-month period, the 
remaining portion of the leave entitlement will be lost.  If an eligible employee needs additional leave to 
care for a different covered servicemember, or for the same servicemember with a subsequent serious 
injury or illness, the employee will have another single 12-month period during which he or she can use 
26 weeks of leave. However, all eligible employees are limited to a total of 26 weeks of leave in each 
single 12-month period for any combination of servicemember caregiver leaves or other FMLA leaves 
under this policy.  

If an employee takes this form of leave, any leave taken under the Indiana Military Family Leave Act or 
other applicable state military family leave law will run concurrently with the above leave.  

157



47 
 
 

Certification for Serious Injury or Illness of Covered Servicemember for Military Family Leave  

The Library requires certification for the serious injury or illness of the covered servicemember. The 
employee must respond to such a request within 15 days of the request or provide a reasonable 
explanation for the delay. Failure to provide certification may result in a denial of continuation of leave.  

J. EMPLOYMENT 

While an employee is on FMLA leave, he/she shall not be engaged in outside employment; any 
exceptions shall be approved in advance of taking FMLA by the Library Director. 

 

 

 

 

Section 4.20: Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 

Section 4.20 PROPOSED to the Board of Trustees August 17, 2016 

4.20    AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT ( ADA )  

It is the policy of MCPL that qualified individuals with disabilities not be excluded from participation in 
or benefit from the services, programs or activities of MCPL. It is the policy of MCPL not to 
discriminate against a qualified individual with a disability in: job application procedures; the hiring, 
advancement or discharge of employees; employee compensation; job training; and other terms, 
conditions and privileges of employment. It is the intent of this organization to comply with all 
applicable requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). 

If a person is not able to perform the essential functions of a job, even with reasonable accommodation, 
then the person is not qualified for the position.   

MCPL will reasonably accommodate persons with a disability. Such reasonable accommodation may 
include: making facilities readily accessible to individuals with a disability, restructuring jobs, modifying 
work schedules, modifying equipment, or other similar accommodations.    

Accommodations may not create an undue hardship for MCPL or other employees.   

An individual who cannot be reasonably accommodated for a job, without undue hardship, will not be 
selected or retained in the position. A Conditional Offer of Employment form is available for use in 
the Human Resources Manager's office.   

All employees are required to comply with safety standards. Applicants who pose a direct threat to the 
health or safety of other individuals in the workplace, which threat cannot be eliminated by reasonable 

158



48 
 
 

accommodation, will not be hired. Current employees who pose a direct threat to the health or safety of 
the other individuals in the workplace will be placed on appropriate leave.    

Disabled individuals cannot pose a direct threat to the safety of themselves or others. Generally, a 
"direct threat" means a significant risk to the health or safety of others that cannot be eliminated by 
reasonable accommodation.   

Benefits provided to disabled individuals who are qualified to perform the work are not different from 
the benefits provided to other employees.   

Employees and mMembers of the public, including individuals with disabilities and groups representing 
individuals with disabilities, are encouraged to submit suggestions on how MCPL might better meet the 
needs of individuals with disabilities pursuant to this policy to the MCPL ADA Coordinator or to the 
director. The ADA Coordinator is designated by the Library Director.on how MCPL might better meet 
the needs of individuals with disabilities pursuant to this policy.   

Employee requests for an accommodation under MCPL's ADA shall be submitted in writing on ADA 
forms (Reasonable Accommodation Request form) available from the Human Resources Manager. 
MCPL requires medical certification to support a request of reasonable accommodation on the 
organization's Medical Certification Review Form available from the Human Resources Manager. It 
shall be the responsibility of the employee to submit such forms in a timely manner.   

MCPL reserves the right to require a second medical opinion from an independent medical provider. 
MCPL must pay for the second opinion. If the two opinions conflict, MCPL may seek and pay for a  
third medical opinion that will be final and binding on both MCPL and the employee.    

Based on the medical information provided, MCPL will evaluate what, if any, reasonable accommodation 
may be extended to the employee. A determination for granting or denying a reasonable accommodation 
will be delayed until medical certifications are provided by the employee.    

Any employee who believes he/she has received treatment inconsistent with the policies set forth above 
or any other requirement of the "Americans with Disabilities Act" (ADA), can file a complaint within 
ninety (90) days of the date of the alleged discriminatory act or practice with the MCPL ADA 
Coordinator, the Library Director. 

Benefits provided to disabled individuals who are qualified to perform the work are not different from 
the benefits provided to other employees.   

 

Section 4.21: HIPAA 

4.21    HIPAA  

The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) has four major administrative 
requirements for private and government sponsored health plans: portability, nondiscrimination, fraud 
and abuse, and administration simplification.   

159



49 
 
 

MCPL is compliant with applicable HIPAA requirements and standards and has established guidelines 
regarding the privacy of individually identifiable health information accordingly. MCPL has designated 
the Human Resources Manager as MCPL's "privacy official" who is responsible for developing and 
implementing privacy policies and procedures; and is the contact person who is responsible for receiving 
complaints regarding compliance.   

All MCPL HIPAA inquiries shall be directed to the Human Resources Manager located in 
Administration. 

  

160



50 
 
 

Section 5: Working Conditions      

Section 5.5 was approved by the board Board of Trustees June 18, 2008. 
Section 5.8 was approved by the board Board of Trustees February 18, 2009.  
Sections 5.01, 5.13 were approved by the board Board of Trustees May 18, 2011. 
Sections 5.17 was approved by the board Board of Trustees August 17, 2011 

 

5. WORKING CONDITIONS     

5.01    SAFETY  

Establishment and maintenance of a safe work environment is the shared responsibility of MCPL and 
employees from all levels of the organization. MCPL will take all reasonable steps to assure a safe 
environment and compliance with federal, state, and local safety regulations. All employees should 
report for work in an alert, fit condition and able to effectively perform assigned position duties.    

Employees are expected to obey safety rules and to exercise caution in all their work activities . 
Employees shall immediately report any unsafe conditions to their supervisor. Whenever possible, steps 
must be taken to correct the unsafe condition immediately.   If the condition cannot be corrected, steps 
must be taken to warn others and to limit access to the unsafe condition.  Employees are not to 
endanger themselves to correct an unsafe condition.  Employees need not fear retaliation for reporting 
safety hazards. Not only supervisors, but employees at all levels of the organization are expected to 
correct unsafe conditions as promptly as possible. Employees who engage in unsafe work habits, or 
violate safety standards may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  

Occurrence of Accidents or Injuries 

All accidents that result in injury must be reported immediately to their department manager 
and to the Human Resources Department within twenty-four (24) hours or less regardless of 
how insignificant the injury may appear. Such reports are necessary to comply with laws and to 
initiate insurance and worker's compensation procedures.  If there is any question about the seriousness 
of an injury, employees should see a physician for medical attention as soon as possible.  

Upon learning of a recordable injury or illness, the Injury and Il lness Report (OSHA Form 301) must be 
completed within seven (7) days.  In addition, within the same seven (7) day period, the information 
from the Injury and Illness Incident Report must be transferred to the Log of Work-Related Injuries and 
Illnesses (OSHA Form 300), which must be kept on file for five (5) years. 

Clothing, Tools, Vehicles, and Equipment 

The Library will provide five (5) Library shirts for each staff employee in FacilitiesBuilding Services and 
Security and any other employee required, by management, to wear them.  A combination of shirts 
and/or jackets may be substituted without exceeding the customary budgeted amount for each staff 
member per year. 

Formatted: Strikethrough

161



51 
 
 

The Library shall furnish and maintain in good condition tools and equipment as determined by the 
Library as necessary to perform the job. Each Employee is responsible for the return of such equipment 
or tools as per the directions of the supervisor. The Library shall train employees whom it designates in 
the safe use of equipment. 

If an Employee believes that a vehicle or other equipment is unsafe and does not meet the requirements 
of any federal, state, or local law, the employee shall report that fact to  the employee's immediate 
supervisor who shall then determine the status of the vehicle or equipment, and confirm such status in 
writing to the employee.  If the supervisor determines the vehicle or equipment meets the requirements 
of federal, state or local law, the employee shall operate the vehicle or equipment. An employee may 
grieve the supervisor's determination. 

 

Section 5.02: Staff Parking 

5.02    STAFF PARKING  

MCPL strives to maintain high levels of patron access to all library facilities. To assi st in these efforts, 
staff who are on duty shall not park in the library parking lot when the library is open to the public.    

Staff working at or calling at the Ellettsville facility while on duty shall park in the lot north of the 
branch library.   

MCPL may subsidize parking for regular employees as the annual budget permits.  

 

Section 5.03: Unpaid Meal Breaks 

5.03    UNPAID MEAL BREAKS   

Employees who are scheduled over six (6) consecutive hours per day must take an unpaid meal break of 
at least one half hour.  Exceptions are to be determined on a case-by-case basis by the employee's 
supervisor.  Exceptions are listed in the procedures, but this list is not exclusive.   

Breaks are not to be taken back-to-back, added to the lunch period, or used to reduce the work day 
either at the beginning or at the end of the day. 

 

Section 5.04: Food and Drink 

5.04    FOOD AND DRINK  

Public-Covered drinks are permitted in all areas of MCPL.  Food is permitted in designated areas only.  

162



52 
 
 

Staff- Staff should eat in non-public areas only. 

Section 5.05: Breaks 

5.05    BREAKS  

Although not required by law, breaks are offered to staff for the purpose of enhancing work conditions 
and job performance. Staff may arrange a break for every 3-6 consecutive hours worked provided there 
is adequate coverage. Breaks are paid library time and can be up to 15 minutes in length. A quick trip to 
the restroom is not considered a break.   

Managers and/or supervisors will structure staffing to facilitate breaks. Likewise, staff should 
communicate with managers about their need for a break. Staff members must coordinate breaks with 
coworkers to ensure adequate coverage for all functions. Breaks are not generally taken during times 
when patron service would suffer. 

 

Section 5.06: Smoking 

Section 5.06 PROPOSED to the Board of Trustees August 17, 2016 

5.06    SMOKING  

In the interest of health, safety, and the comfort of all employees and patrons, smoking, vaping 
cigarettes, or the use of any tobacco products is strictly prohibited in library buildings, in library vehicles 
and on library grounds.  The library is 100% tobacco free, both inside and out. 

 

Section 5.07: Use of Telephones, Fax Machines, and MCPL 
Mail 

Section 5.07 PROPOSED to the Board of Trustees August 17, 2016 

5.07    USE OF TELEPHONES, FAX MACHINES, AND MCPL MAIL 

Personal telephone calls should be limited in frequency and duration. Personal use of telephones , 
cellphones and other personal electronic devices, and FAX machines for long-distance and toll calls is  
are not permitted, except for emergencies. For any emergency personal use, employees shall reimburse 
MCPL for all library expenses. long-distance and/or toll charges.   

To ensure effective telephone interpersonal communications, employees should always use the approved 
appropriate greetings and speak in a courteous and professional manner.   

Formatted: Space Before:  Auto, After:  Auto

Formatted: None

Formatted: None

Formatted: Strikethrough

163



53 
 
 

The mail system is reserved for business purposes only. Employees should refrain from sending or 
receiving personal mail or other delivery packages at the workplace. 

 

Section 5.08: Use of Computers, Email, and Other 
Technologies 

Section 5.08 PROPOSED to the Board of Trustees August 17, 2016 

5.08    USE OF COMPUTERS, EMAIL AND OTHER TECHNOLOGIES  

Section 5.8 was approved February 18, 2009 

MCPL staff computers, laptops, e-readers and other electronic devices, software, electronic files, and 
email accounts are library property, intended for business use.  

E-mail from or to in-house counsel or attorney representing MCPL must include the following header 
on each page: "ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGED/DO NOT FORWARD WITHOUT 
PERMISSION." 

Employees may use staff computers and non-MCPL email accounts for personal business during breaks 
and unpaid time, providing such use does not negatively impact other employees' ability to perform their 
jobs, does not incur additional expense to the Library, and complies with the Library's Internet and 
Computer Use Policy. 

MCPL email is public record and officially represents MCPL.  As such, library email accounts should 
only be used for official library business.  While it is not possible to control messages received, 
employees are expected to make a good faith effort to keep their MCPL accounts free of personal and 
other non-MCPL communications. 

Employees must abide by software license agreements.  Only authorized software may be installed on 
MCPL computers.  Employees who make, acquire, or use unauthorized copies of computer software 
may be subject to disciplinary and legal action.  

While MCPL does not routinely monitor email and computer use, monitoring may be employed  when 
there are indications of illegal use or violations of policy. 

 

Section 5.09: Internet Policy 

5.09    INTERNET POLICY  

Employees are provided access to the Internet to assist them in the performance of their duties. The 
computer and other media of electronic and telephonic communications, including, but not limited to, 

Formatted: None

Formatted: Font: Garamond, 11 pt, Not Bold, Italic

164



54 
 
 

host computers, file servers, work stations, stand-alone computers, laptops, software, and internal and 
external communication networks, are the property of MCPL. Personal use of such equipment and 
software should be limited to non-work hours.   

The electronic mail system may be monitored when MCPL deems it necessary to ensure its legitimate 
business interest in the proper utilization of its property and to ensure that this policy is b eing 
followed.   

Employees must follow the library's Internet and Computer Use Policy, as updated each year by the 
MCPL Board of Trustees.    

In addition: 

A. Employees are notified that they are responsible for the material they review and download on 
the Internet. 

B. Sending, receiving, displaying , printing, or otherwise disseminating material that is fraudulent, 
harassing, illegal, embarrassing, sexually explicit, obscene, intimidating or defamatory is 
prohibited. Employees encountering such material should report it to their department manager. 

C. Employees may not use MCPL internet resources for commercial or personal advertisements, 
solicitations, promotions, viruses, political material, or any other unauthorized personal use.  

D. Employees may not disseminate MCPL property or confidential information via the internet. 
E. All material downloaded from the Internet or from computers or networks that do not belong to 

MCPL MUST be scanned for viruses and other destructive programs before being placed onto 
the computer system. All employees will be expected to follow the instructions from their 
supervisor for its scanning process. Any questions should be referred to the IS staff and resolved 
prior to being placed on the computer system or being used. 

F. Because of export restrictions, programs, or files containing encryption technology are not to be 
placed on the Internet or transmitted in any way outside the United States without prior written 
authorization from MCPL. 

G. MCPL will not be responsible for any damages, direct or indirect, arising out of the use of its 
Internet resources. 

H. MCPL maintains the right to monitor any and all aspects of its computer system, including, but 
not limited to, monitoring sites employees visit on the Internet, monitoring chat groups and 
news groups, reviewing material downloaded or uploaded by employees and reviewing E-mail 
sent and received by employees. 

I. Employees do not retain any right to privacy in any documents, messages, or images they create, 
store, send, or received on the computer or the Internet under the Electronic Communications 
Privacy Act, and any other state or federal law regarding E-mail and Internet use. Employees do 
not have a personal privacy right in any matter created, received, or sent from the MCPL E-mail 
system. 

J. Employees must comply with all software licenses, copyrights, and all other state and federal 
laws governing intellectual property and online activity.  

 

Section 5.10: Use of Equipment and Vehicles 

5.10    USE OF EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLES  

165



55 
 
 

MCPL equipment and vehicles essential in accomplishing job duties are expensive and may be difficult 
to replace. When using property, including MCPL telephones, employees are expected to exercise care, 
perform required maintenance, and follow all operating instructions, safety standards , and guidelines.   

Please notify the supervisor if any equipment, machines, tools, or vehicles appear to be damaged, 
defective, or in need of repair. Prompt reporting of damages, defects, and the need for repairs could 
prevent deterioration of equipment and possible injury to employees or others. Contact your supervisor 
with any questions about an employee's responsibility for maintenance and care of equipment or vehicles 
used on the job.   

MCPL vehicles are to be driven for MCPL purposes only.  Employees operating MCPL vehicles shall 
maintain the ability to legally operate assigned vehicles. Employees who operate MCPL vehicles are 
required to notify their department manager in the event that their driver's license is suspended or 
revoked. An employee's failure to notify his or her department manager of a driver's license suspension 
or revocation is subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  

Drivers are expected to drive safely and to obey all traffic laws, including speed limits.   The use of 
tobacco in any form is not allowed in MCPL vehicles.  Driving under the influence of alcohol or drugs 
in MCPL vehicles is prohibited.  Violation of traffic laws may result in disciplinary action, up to and 
including termination.  The employee who is driving the vehicle, and not the Library, is responsible for 
tickets, fines, or other consequences when traffic laws are violated.    

All employees who use an MCPL vehicle or their private vehicle for MCPL business shall have on file in 
the Human Resources Department a copy of a valid driver's license and proof of liability insurance 
coverage. An employee's failure to comply with this policy is subject to disciplinary action, up to and 
including discharge.   

Each occupant of an MCPL or personal vehicle while on MCPL business must wear appropriate seat 
belts at all times.  In addition, no employee is permitted, under any circumstances, to operate an MCPL 
vehicle or personal vehicle for MCPL business when any physical or mental impairment causes the 
employee to be unable to drive safely. This prohibition includes, but is not limited to, circumstances in 
which the employee is temporarily unable to operate a vehicle safely or legally because of illness, 
medication, or intoxication.   

Improper, careless, negligent, destructive, or unsafe use or operation of equipment or vehicles, as well as 
excessive or avoidable traffic and parking violations, can result in disciplinary action, up to and  including 
termination. 

 

Section 5.11: Drug Free Workplace 

Section 5.011 PROPOSED to the Board of Trustees August 17, 2016 

5.11    DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE  

The unlawful manufacture, use, possession, distribution, and sale of alcohol, illegal drugs, or other 

intoxicants by employees is strictly prohibited at all MCPL facilities, at any time employees are on duty 

Formatted: None

166



56 
 
 

or in the presence of people served by the Library, and at any time the employee is operating a vehicle 

owned or leased by MCPL.  Exceptions may be made for certain authorized events as determined by the 

director.  Employees charged with providing security, maintenance, or other support service for an event 

is prohibited from the use of intoxicants while on duty.  

Employees are required to report to work in a sober and reliable state, free of the influence of alcoholic 
beverages, illegal drugs, or other intoxicants.  Employees are not to use any such intoxicants while on 
duty.  Drug and alcohol use is highly detrimental to the safety and productivity of employees in the 
workplace.  Whether or not an employee is on duty, consumption or possession of alcoholic beverages, 
illegal drugs, or other intoxicants is not allowed on Library property, at any facilities used by t he Library, 
or in Library vehicles.  Violations of this policy will result in discipline, up to and including termination 
of employment.  When appropriate, MCPL may refer the employee to approved counseling or 
rehabilitation programs.  

MCPL maintains a drug-free workplace in accordance with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 and 
the State of Indiana Drug-Free Workplace Executive Order No. 90-5 of 1990. Failure to comply with 
this law could jeopardize government funds received by MCPL. Any employee who is convicted of a 
drug or alcohol related crime arising out of conduct while on official MCPL business, or when serving as 
a representative of MCPL, must notify MCPL within five (5) days of the conviction. MCPL is required 
to notify the appropriate government-funding agency within ten (10) days of the conviction.   

If employees voluntarily seek professional assistance in overcoming drug or alcohol problems, please 
contact the Human Resources Manager for more information about the benefits potentially available 
under the employee medical benefit plans and any possible referral sources.    

Employees may use physician-prescribed medications, provided the use of such drugs do not adversely 
affect job performance or the safety of the employee or other individuals in the workplace. Employees 
may keep prescription drugs and over-the-counter medications on MCPL premises when prescribed by a 
medical physician or as needed for over-the-counter medications. Employees who operate vehicles or 
equipment in the course of their employment shall notify their supervisor of such drugs and 
prescriptions which may impair judgment in the performance of job duties and responsibilities.    

MCPL is committed to providing a safe, efficient, and productive work environment for all employees. 
In keeping with this commitment, employees and job applicants may be requested to provide body 
substance samples (e.g., blood, urine, hair, or other body substances) to determine the prohibited use of 
marijuana, cocaine, opiates, amphetamines, alcohol, barbiturates, and phencyclidine (PCP). Results of 
any drug testing shall remain in the employee's confidential medical file.  

5.11.1    Reasonable Suspicion   

An employee will only be requested to submit to a drug or alcohol test when the supervisor has 
reasonable suspicion that the employee has used alcohol or drugs or is impaired from the use of alcohol 
or drugs during his/her employment with MCPL. In the event that an employee is requested to submit 
to a drug test, the supervisor shall complete the appropriate form to be provided by the Human 
Resources Manager setting forth the observations leading to the determination of reasonable suspicion 
including the following: 

a. Observation of drug or alcohol use 
b. Observation of drugs, alcohol, or containers traditionally used for drugs or alcohol; 

167



57 
 
 

c. Observations of behavior of the employee, including balance, speech, reactions, and other 
characteristics supporting reasonable suspicion of use of drugs or alcohol or impairment by 
drugs and alcohol;    

d. A pattern of abnormal or erratic behavior by the employee; or, 
e. Information provided by reliable or credible sources of the above. 

5.11.2    Post-Accident Testing  

Post-accident testing shall be required when an employee is involved in an accident on MCPL property 
or while operating MCPL and/or personal equipment or vehicles in pursuit of MCPL business which 
results in either: 1) the death or injury of a MCPL employees or member of the general public; or 2) 
damage to public or private property and/or equipment to the extent that it  must be towed from the 
accident scene or operating a vehicle or equipment owned by or leased by MCPL if the driver receives a 
citation for a moving violation. MCPL reserves the right to order post accident tests as it deems 
appropriate based on the totality of the circumstances surrounding the accident. Post-accident tests may 
include screens for both drugs and alcohol. 

 

Section 5.12: Appearance of Work Areas 

5.12    APPEARANCE OF WORK AREAS  

MCPL expects the work areas of all employees to be well organized, clean, and attractive. These qualities 
promote health, productivity, safety, good morale, and patron respect. Employees are responsible for 
maintaining the cleanliness of non-work areas such as meal and break areas. 

 

Section 5.13: Business Travel  

5.13 BUSINESS TRAVEL 

 
MCPL recognizes our employees may need to travel while conducting Library business and furthering 
the mission of the organization. Employees are also encouraged to participate in professional meetings, 
training, seminars, and other professional development activities requiring involving travel and related 
accommodations. See 4.14 Training and Continuing Education for scheduling and funding  
  
The purpose of this policy is to ensure that adequate cost controls are in place; travel and  other 
expenditures are appropriate and reasonable; and reimbursements are handled in a consistent and timely 
manner. Employees are also expected to use discretion and good judgement with respect to 
expenditures, to be cost conscious (i.e. early-bird registration fees, advance planning for airline and 
lodging arrangements), and to submit expense receipts according to the finance office procedures.  
  
Whenever possible, employees traveling on Library business should use Library vehicles in order to 
minimize library and employee expenses and time-consuming paperwork. 
  

168



58 
 
 

If an MCPL vehicle is not available and a personal vehicle must be used to conduct local business; or to 
attend training, conferences, or workshops; the employee shall be compensated at the rate set by the 
Indiana State Budget Agency (“SBA”) and Department of Administration (“DOA”) for mileage 
reimbursement. 
  
Employee pay for travel time shall be determined according to applicable provisions of the Fair Labor 
Standards Act. See http://www.dol.gov/, search on Hours Worked and Travel. 
  
Employees choosing to use their own vehicle when a Library vehicle is readily available will not be 
compensated for mileage. 
  
The unit manager of an employee is responsible for prior authorization of employee business travel and 
associated reimbursements of travel expenses. Recurring travel to local destinations may be approved by 
the manager as part of the employee’s job assignments. 
  
Employees must request and submit itemized receipts for every expense for which they are seeking 
reimbursement. Failure to submit an itemized receipt may result in the Library denying reimbursement.  
  
In the event an employee has to cancel a trip or registered event due to circumstances outside of the 
employee’s control, the employee is required to immediately notify their manager or supervisor, the 
Director/Associate Director, or the Human Resources Manager. A situation outside of the employee’s 
control is described as the employee being physically unable to attend, an illness or death in the family, 
or other bona-fied emergency situations as determined by the manager in consultation with the library 
Associate Director or Director. Measures should be taken to either assign a substitute or to cancel the 
arrangements to minimize penalties or loss of fees. 
  
Should an employee choose to cancel or not attend a pre-registered event, the employee will be held 
responsible for reimbursing the library for any fees, hotel, or travel expenses which were not  
refundable. Exceptions due to unusual circumstances may be made with the Library Director’s express  
consent. 
  

 

Section 5.14: Requests For Information 

Section 5.14 PROPOSED to the Board of Trustees August 17, 2016 

5.14     REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION  

In the event that MCPL employees are contacted for information regarding former or current 
employees, MCPL shall release information verifying employee position, hire date, and wages. Requests 
for the release of any additional information will not be considered without a written Release Form from 
the employee.   

Employees are not to provide letters of reference employment for former or current employees without 
the a signed and written Rrelease Fform provided by MCPL or by the potential employer.. 

 

Formatted: Font: Italic

169



59 
 
 

Section 5.15: Bloodborne Pathogens 

5.15   BLOODBORNE PATHOGENS 

The Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) has determined that certain employees in 
the workplace face a significant risk of exposure to bloodborne pathogens. Employees working in high -
risk jobs will be offered bloodborne pathogen training and a series of hepatitis B vaccinations for their 
protection at no cost to the employees. MCPL will provide such vaccinations for any employees wishing 
to participate in this program. 

 

 

Section 5.16: Solicitation and Distribution 

5.16  SOLICITATION AND DISTRIBUTION  

Staff may sell items to other staff members in the library if a) no solicitation (active selling) is involved; 
and b) the staff member is not using work time. Staff who are in supervisory roles may not sell items.  
[see also procedures] 

 

Section 5.17: Workplace Violence 

5.17    WORKPLACE VIOLENCE  

The safety and security of MCPL employees and customers is very important. It is the intent of MCPL 
to provide a workplace for all employees that is free of violence. Threats, threatening behavior, acts of 
violence, or any related conduct which disrupts another's work performance or the organization's ability 
to execute its mission will not be tolerated.  Employees are prohibited from carrying firearms and 
ammunition in the course of performing official duties (IC35-47-11.1), except as permitted under IC 34-
28-7-2. An employee brandishing a firearm, ammunition, or any object in a threatening manner during 
work hours will be subject to disciplinary action. (see also 6.10 EMPLOYMENT TERMINATION) 

Workplace violence includes, but is not limited to, intimidation, threats, physical attack or property 
damage. These terms are defined as follows:   

A. "Intimidation" includes, but is not limited to, stalking or engaging in actions intended to 
frighten, coerce, or induce duress. 

B. "Threat" is the expression of intent to cause physical or mental harm. An expression constitutes 
a threat without regard to whether the person communicating the threat has presented the ability 
to carry it out and without regard to whether expression is contingent, conditional, or future. 

C. "Physical attack" is unwanted or hostile physical contact such as hitting, fighting, pushing, 
shoving, throwing objects, firing a weapon, causing an explosion of hazardous materials, or 
discharge of hazardous substances. 

170



60 
 
 

D. "Property damage" is intentional damage to property which includes property owned or leased 
by MCPL, employees, visitors, or vendors.   

Any person who makes threats, exhibits threatening behavior, or engages in violent acts on MCPL-
owned or leased property may be removed from the premises.   

Threats, threatening behavior, or acts of violence executed off MCPL-owned or leased property but 
directed at MCPL employees or members of the public while conducting official MCPL business, is a 
violation of this policy. Off-site threats include, but are not limited to, threats made via the telephone, 
fax or electronic or conventional mail, or any other communication medium.    

Violations of this policy will lead to disciplinary action that may include dismissal, ar rest, and 
prosecution. In addition, if the source of such inappropriate behavior is a member of the public, the 
response may also include baring the person(s) from MCPL-owned or leased premises, termination of 
business relationships with the individual(s), arrest, and prosecution of the person(s) involved.   

Employees are responsible for notifying their supervisor of any use of an object in a threatening 

manner that they have witnessed, received, or have been told that another person has witnessed or received. 
Employees should also report any behavior they have witnessed that  they regard as threatening or 
violent when the behavior is job related or might be carried out on MCPL-owned or leased property or 
in connection with MCPL employment.   

Any employee who receives a protective or restraining order which lists MCPL-owned or leased 
premises as a protected area is required to provide their supervisor with a copy of such order.    

If an emergency exists, contact the police department at 911, and notify your supervisor.   

If not an emergency, employees should inform their supervisor. If the supervisor is unavailable or if the 
nature of the complaint is such that the employee does not believe he/she can discuss it with supervisor, 
the employee may bring concerns to the Library Director.   

Employees who act in good faith by reporting real or implied violent behavior violations of this policy 
need not fear retaliation. 

 

6. PERSONAL CONDUCT 

Section 6: Personal Conduct 

Sections 6.8, 6.9, 6.10, 6.11, 6.12 were approved by the board Board of Trustees April 20, 2005. 
Sections 6.01, 6.09, 6.10, 6.11, 6.12 were approved by the board Board of Trustees May 18, 2011.  
Sections 6.13 (Personnel File) was deleted, as approved by the board Board of Trustees approved May 18, 2011. 
Section 6.10 was approved by the board Board of Trustees August 17, 2011 

 

6.01 Employee Conduct and Work Rules  

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 14 pt

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 14 pt

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 14 pt

171



61 
 
 

 Employees are expected to maintain high standards of personal appearance, conduct, cooperation, 
efficiency and economy in their work. All employees should attempt to correct any faults in their 
performance that are called to their attention and should also avoid behavior and actions that  conflict 
with MCPL rules and regulations. 

For unauthorized activities of bargaining unit employees, see also Joint Agreement, Article XVI.  

  

Section 6.02: Attendance and Punctuality 

6.02    ATTENDANCE AND PUNCTUALITY  

To maintain a safe and productive work environment, MCPL expects employees to be reliable and to be 
punctual in reporting for scheduled work. Absenteeism and tardiness place a burden on other employees 
and on MCPL. Employees are expected to manage their leave accruals responsibly.   

Supervisors are to oversee employee timekeeping records on MCPL forms, including all employee 
absences and designation of whether supervisor notification was properly provided by the employee.    

Poor attendance and excessive tardiness are disruptive. For benefitted employees, absences resulting in 
insufficient accruals (unpaid status) may be categorized as unapproved time off. Such attendance issues 
may lead to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.  

In the rare instance when an employee cannot avoid being late to work or is unable  to work as 
scheduled, he or she should notify the supervisor at least one half (½) hour before the time the 
employee would normally begin the shift or work day. Exceptions to the notification requirement for 
verified emergencies will be considered by the department manager or supervisor in consultation with 
the Human Resources manager. 

 

Section 6.03: Personal Appearance 

6.03    PERSONAL APPEARANCE  

In order that it may provide the services it is required to provide in a neutral environment, any staff 
member or volunteer while performing services for MCPL shall not wear clothing or display a symbol or 
written statement, which represents a personal/political viewpoint or opinion. Each staff member should 
wear clothing that is appropriate to his or her particular job at the library. If a staff member is asked to 
return home and change clothes, the time away will not be counted as work time.    

MCPL furnishes shirts and/or caps to certain security and facilitiesBuilding Services employees. Such 
employees shall wear such furnished clothing while on duty.  [see also procedures] 

 

Formatted: Font: 14 pt

172



62 
 
 

Section 6.04: Commission of a Felony or Unlawful Act 

6.04    COMMISSION OF A FELONY OR UNLAWFUL ACT  

Any employee found guilty of a felony, if reasonably related to employee job duties or the public trust, is 
subject to immediate termination of employment. An employee charged with a felony or found 
participating in felonious activity either during work hours or while off duty will be subject to immediate 
termination of employment or an unpaid leave of absence from work until a court of law establishes 
innocence or guilt.   

Any employee found guilty of a misdemeanor, if reasonably related to employee job duties or the public 
trust, may be subject to suspension or termination of employment.   This provision includes not being 
legally qualified to operate assigned vehicles or equipment.    

Misdemeanors that involve MCPL vehicles/property, or in which the employee's behavior reflects 
poorly upon the employee and/or MCPL, will result in disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination of employment. 

Section 6.05: Gifts, Gratuities, or Honorariums 

6.05    GIFTS, GRATUITIES OR HONORARIUMS  

Employees shall not accept gifts, gratuities, or honorariums from firms, organizations, agents, or other 
individuals soliciting to conduct business with MCPL in furnishing materials, goods, or services to 
MCPL.  Gifts of nominal value, such as pens or notepads, may be accepted.  Social courtesies such as 
food offered generally to a large group may be accepted.  

Employees are encouraged to maintain good relations with suppliers and others with whom MCPL may 
have business dealings. However, the practice of accepting gifts, gratuities or honorariums may be 
contrary to the public interest.   

Employees shall not accept gifts, gratuities or honorariums from firms, organizations, agents, or other 
individuals soliciting to conduct business with MCPL in furnishing materials, goods, and services to 
MCPL. 

 

Section 6.06: Business Ethics/Conflict of Interest 

6.06    BUSINESS ETHICS/CONFLICT OF INTEREST  

The staff members of the Monroe County Public Library will be held to the highest level of professional 
and personal ethics.  We acknowledge that the public trust is fundamental to a productive and effective 
public agency.  Because the citizens of Monroe County place their confidence in us to be the guardians 
of public facilities and public funds, no actual or perceived conflict between that trust and private 
interest can exist.  Our staff members' continued integrity and honesty are key elements that sustain the 
public's confidence in MCPL. 

173



63 
 
 

MCPL has approved a policy to provide clarity and guidance for staff members when dealing with 
incidents that raise ethical questions.  Staff members must avoid making choices that pose, or give the 
appearance of posing, a conflict of interest.  This policy is intended to help staff members in applying 
their common sense and best judgment in these situations.  The American Library Association Statement 
on Professional Ethics and the Monroe County Public Library Ethics Policy establish standards that are 
consistent with other public agencies.  

The following list refers to statements in the Personnel Manual that offer guidance to staff with 
questions relating to professional ethics.  Other statements on ethics not expressly mentioned in the 
Personnel Manual are also listed below.  Specific topics relevant to the issue of ethics are discussed in 
this document at the given locations: 

 2.2         Nepotism 

 2.13       Outside Employment/Conflict of Interest 

 5.7         Use of Telephones, Fax Machines, and MCPL Mail 

 5.8         Use of Computer and Email 

 5.10       Use of Equipment and Vehicles 

 6.5         Gifts, Gratuities, or Honorariums 

 6.6.1      Personal Service Fees 

 6.6.2      Personal Financial Transactions 

MCPL recognizes and respects the right of individual employees to engage in private activities outside of 
the organization that do not in any way conflict with, or reflect poorly on MCPL.   

MCPL also recognizes its right and obligation to determine when an employee's activities present a 
conflict of interest with MCPL. At such times MCPL must take whatever action is necessary to resolve 
the situation, including but not limited to, terminating employment. This polic y applies to all employees, 
as well as to former employees, where applicable.   

Employees having financial interest in a company or substantial investments in a corporation that might 
benefit from their dealings with MCPL must file a conflict of interest s tatement with the Monroe County 
Clerk and the Human Resources Manager. If deemed by said official to be in the best interest of MCPL, 
those employees shall either divest themselves of such interest or investments or be ineligible for 
continued employment with MCPL.   

An employee who knowingly or intentionally obtains a pecuniary interest in or derives a profit from a 
contract or purchase connected with an action by the MCPL commits a Class D felony, unless a financial 
disclosure form is approved in advance and filed as required by Indiana Code (I.C.) 35-44-1-3. 

Failure to disclose conflict of interest of employee or member of employee's immediate family having a 
monetary interest/business interest or deriving a profit in any matter directly related to the employee's 
official duties and the discharge of those duties will subject the employee to disciplinary action, up to 
and including termination of employment. This includes having a personal interest in a business which 
supplies goods and services to the library. 

6.06.1  Personal Service Fees 

No fees for personal services will be accepted by an MCPL employee for any service to the public during 
working hours.  Lectures or workshops scheduled by MCPL and on library time are included in this 

174



64 
 
 

rule.  Lectures, workshops, etc. that are not sponsored by MCPL will be prepared and given on the 
employee's own time and under the employee's own terms. 

6.06.2  Personal Financial Transactions 

Employees will not cash personal checks from any MCPL cash drawer.   Employees will not borrow any 
money from any MCPL cash drawer.  Employees will not make change for themselves from any MCPL 
cash drawer. 

  

175



65 
 
 

Section 6.07: Harassment 

6.07    HARASSMENT  

MCPL is committed to providing and to maintaining a workplace free of inappropriate treatment of any 
employee because of the employee's race, sex, age, color, religion, national origin, disability, citizenship 
status, or any other category protected under federal, state, or local law.   Irrespective of whether sexual 
orientation is a legally protected status, MCPL is committed to providing and to maintaining a workplace 
free of inappropriate treatment based on an individual's sexual orientation.    

To be unlawful, conduct must be so severe and pervasive that it unreasonably interferes with an 
employee's ability to work.  MCPL does not, however, condone or tolerate any inappropriate conduct 
based on an employee's race, sex, age, color, religion, national origin, disability, citizenship status, or any 
other category protected under federal, state, or local law.  Irrespective of whether sexual orientation is a 
legally protected status, MCPL is committed to providing and to maintaining a workplace free of 
inappropriate conduct based on an individual's sexual orientation.   

MCPL is committed to protecting employees from inappropriate conduct whether from other employees 
or non-employees such as patrons, visitors, vendors, customers, contractors.   In appropriate conduct 
may include, among other things: 

 Epithets, slurs, stereotyping, or threatening, intimidating or hostile acts that relate to race, sex, 
age, religion, national origin, or disability 

 Written or graphic material that denigrates or shows hostility or aversion toward an individual or 
group because of race, sex, age, religion, national origin, or disability.  

 Statement of Principles: 

1. Everyone is entitled to a respectful workplace environment. 

2. Sexual harassment and harassment that is based race, sex, age, color, religion, national origin, disability, 
citizenship status, or any other category protected under federal, state, or local law is prohibited.  

3. Each employee has responsibility for preventing harassment and for maintaining a respectful workplace.  

4. Retaliation against employees for reporting suspected harassment or for participating in the investigation of 
harassment is prohibited. 

5. No employee, regardless of position, has the right to violate any of these principles.  

 

Section 6.07.01: Definition of Sexual Harassment 

6.07.01    Definition of Sexual Harassment  

Sexual harassment is one of the types of harassment prohibited by this policy.   Sexual harassment may 
include inappropriate conduct of a sexual nature that ranges from subtle to not-so-subtle.  Such conduct 
may involve individuals of the same or different sex.   

Examples of conduct that may constitute harassment and sexual harassment prohibited by this policy 
include, but are not limited to, the following:   

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", Outline numbered + Level:
1 + Numbering Style: Bullet + Aligned at:  -0.68" + Tab
after:  -0.43" + Indent at:  -0.43", Tab stops: Not at  0.5"

176



66 
 
 

 Unsolicited and unwelcome comments or conduct of a sexual nature or that are demeaning to 
women or to men as a group.  For example, this would include offensive or vulgar jokes, name-
calling, comments about one's body or sex life, stereotyping based on a person's sex, touching, 
leering, ogling, patting, pinching, indecent exposure, physical gestures, or displaying sexually 
explicit photographs or objects that interfere with a reasonable person's work.  

 Unsolicited and unwelcome demands or requests for sexual favors or social encounters.  

 An explicit or implicit promise of preferential treatment with regard to a person's employment in 
exchange for sexual favors or sexual activity; and 

 The use of an employee's or applicant's submission to or rejection of sexual conduct as the basis 
for making, influencing, or affecting an employment decision that has an impact on the terms 
and conditions of the individual's employment (for example, hiring, firing, promotion, demotion, 
compensation, benefits, or working conditions.) 

 

Section 6.07.02: Reporting a Complaint 

6.07.02    Reporting A Complaint  

While MCPL encourages individuals who believe they are being harassed to firmly and promptly notify 
the offender that his/her behavior is unwelcome, MCPL also recognizes that power and status disparities 
between an alleged harasser and a target may make such a confrontation impossible. In the event that 
such informal, direct communication between individuals is either ineffective or impossible, the 
following steps should be followed in reporting a harassment complaint.    

In order to take a corrective action, MCPL must be aware of harassment, sexual harassment or related 
retaliation. Therefore, anyone who believes that he/she has experienced or witnessed harassment , sexual 
harassment or related retaliation should immediately report such behavior to his or her supervisor, a 
manager, an Associate Director, the Library Director, or the Human Resources Manager.   

In the event the allegation of harassment is against the Library Director, the completed form is to be 
submitted to any MCPL Board of Trustees member.  The best time to register a complaint is 
immediately after the act occurs. 

Any supervisor who has witnessed or becomes aware of the alleged occurrence of sexual harassment or 
retaliation, or receives a complaint of sexual harassment involving a person within that supervisor's 
purview is required to take prompt corrective action and to report the incident to the Human Resources 
Manager.  Failure of a supervisor to immediately take corrective action or to report the incident shall 
constitute misconduct subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.   

Please help MCPL to maintain a comfortable and civil work environment, free from inappropriate and 
offensive conduct. see "Harassment Complaint Form" [14] 

 

 

177

http://lint.monroe.lib.in.us/drupal/sites/default/files/HarassmentComplaintForm_000.doc


67 
 
 

 

Section 6.07.03: Description of Misconduct 

6.07.03    Description of Misconduct  

An accurate record of objectionable behavior or misconduct is needed to resolve a formal complaint of 
harassment or of sexual harassment.   

Verbal reports of harassment or of sexual harassment must be recorded in written form by either the 
complainant or the individual(s) designated to receive complaints, and be signed by the complainant. 
Individuals who believe they have been or currently are being harassed should maintain a record of 
objectionable conduct to effectively prepare and corroborate their allegations.    

While MCPL encourages individuals to keep written notes in order to accurately record offensive 
conduct or behavior, it must be recognized that, in the event that a lawsuit develops from the reported 
incident, the confidentiality of the complainant's written notes may not be recognized under Indiana law, 
and the notes may have to be disclosed.      

MCPL department managers and the Human Resources Manager have copies of the MCPL harassment 
or of sexual harassment complaint form. Employees are directed to obtain, complete, and submit this 
form to initiate a formal complaint. 

 

Section 6.07.04: Time Frame for Reporting Complaints 

6.07.04    Time Frame for Reporting Complaints  

MCPL encourages a prompt reporting of complaints so that rapid response and appropriate action may 
be taken. However, due to the sensitivity of these problems and because of the emotional toll such 
misconduct may have on an individual, no limited time frame will be instituted for reporting harassment 
or of sexual harassment complaints. Late reporting of complaints will not in and of itself preclude MCPL 
from taking remedial action. 

 

Section 6.07.05: Protection Against Retaliation 

6.07.05    Protection Against Retaliation  

MCPL will not in any way retaliate against the individual who makes a report of harassment or of  sexual 
harassment nor permit any supervisor or employee to do so. Retaliation is a serious violation of this 
harassment and sexual harassment policy and should be reported immediately. Any person found to have 
retaliated against another individual for the good faith reporting of harassment or sexual harassment will 
be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.  

178



68 
 
 

 

Section 6.07.06: Investigating the Complaint 

6.07.06    Investigating the Complaint  

Any allegation of harassment or of sexual harassment that is reported will be promptly and thoroughly  
investigated in as discreet a manner possible to protect the privacy of persons involved. MCPL will use 
its best efforts to maintain confidentiality throughout the investigatory process to the extent practical 
and appropriate under the circumstances; however, confidentiality is not guaranteed. The alleged 
harasser will be notified of the nature of the complaint made against him/her.    

Upon completing the investigation of a harassment or of  sexual harassment complaint, MCPL will 
communicate its findings to the complainant and the alleged harasser. If the Library Director det ermines 
that harassment occurred, the Library Director will determine appropriate disciplinary action to be taken. 
In the event that the alleged harasser is the Library Director, the MCPL Board of Trustees will determine 
appropriate disciplinary action to be taken. The complainant will be informed of the disciplinary action 
to be taken.   

In determining whether alleged conduct constitutes harassment or sexual harassment, MCPL will look at 
the investigative file as a whole and the totality of the circumstances, such as the nature of the conduct 
and the context in which the alleged incidents occurred. The determination of whether disciplinary 
action is to be taken will be made from the facts, on a case-by-case basis. 

 

Section 6.07.07: Identification of Investigators  

6.07.07    Identification of Investigators  

Complaints will be investigated by the MCPL Library Director and/or the designees retained by the 
Library Director. In addition, other individuals may be included in reviewing the investigation. 

 

Section 6.07.08: False Accusations 

6.07.08    False Accusations  

MCPL also recognizes that careful consideration must be given to questions regarding whether a 
particular action or incident is purely personal or social without any discriminatory employment effect. 
False accusations of sexual harassment can have devastating effects on the lives and reputations of 
innocent women and men. Therefore, MCPL may discipline, up to and including termination of 
employment, those employees who after an investigation are found to have falsely accused others of 
sexual harassment, knowingly or in a malicious manner. 

179



69 
 
 

 

 

Section 6.07.09: Sanctions 

6.07.09    Sanctions  

Individuals found to have engaged in misconduct constituting harassment or sexual harassment, creating 
a hostile work environment, or related retaliation will be severely disciplined, up to and including 
termination of employment. Additional action may include: referral to counseling, withholding of a 
promotion, reassignment, demotion, temporary suspension without pay or termination.   

Although MCPL's ability to discipline a non-MCPL employee harasser is limited, any MCPL employee 
who has been subjected to harassment or sexual harassment by a non-MCPL employee at the workplace 
and work-related setting should file a complaint so that action may be taken. 

 

Section 6.07.10: Maintaining a Written Record of the 
Complaint 

6.07.10    Maintaining a Written Record of the Complaint  

MCPL will maintain a complete written record of each complaint and how it was investigated and 
resolved. Written records shall be maintained with the Human Resources Manager, and if disciplinary 
action was taken, a record shall be maintained in the offender's personnel file.  

 

Section 6.07.11: Prevention 

6.07.11    Prevention  

Prevention is the best policy for the elimination of sexual harassment. Employees shall remain cognizant 
of harassment to avoid contributing conditions that would encourage such activity. Sexual harassment 
and hostile work environment violations will result in disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination of employment. 

 

Section 6.08: Employee Conduct 

6.08    EMPLOYEE CONDUCT   

180



70 
 
 

By Indiana law, MCPL is an "at will" employer. Simply stated, a staff member's employment will 
continue only so long as the staff member is satisfied with the Library and the Library is satisfied with 
the staff member. Just as a staff member may resign at any time, he or she may be discharged at any 
time. The Library makes no promise of continued employment or employment for a specified period of 
time.   

Employee job performance and personal conduct impact MCPL's ability to achieve its mission of 
providing a high quality of public service. It is always the hope that the working relationship between the 
employee and the Library will be long term and mutually satisfactory. However, when violations of 
policies occur or when observed job performance is deemed unsatisfactory, a supervisor is expected to 
work with the employee in order to improve the performance of that individual.   

Therefore, these rules and principles of job performance are adopted as guidelines for monitoring 
behavior, evaluating the performance of staff, seeking improvements in performance when problems 
arise, exercising progressive disciplinary procedures applicable to all staff, and providing a fair and 
consistent process of appeal for staff to follow. The spirit of this policy is to facilitate open discussion 
between supervisors and employees in order to resolve issues in an environment of mutual respect and 
objectivity without retaliation. 

 

Section 6.09: Discipline Procedures 

6.09     DISCIPLINE PROCEDURES  

MCPL uses progressive disciplinary action in the event a staff member fails to perform his/her job 
satisfactorily or is found in violation of the Library's stated policies, procedures and/or practices. 
Because circumstances may vary with each infraction, each situation will be handled on an individual 
basis. In arriving at a decision for action, the following will be considered:    

 Seriousness of the infraction; 

 Past record of the employee; 

 Circumstances surrounding the matter; and 

 Evidence provided for decision-making. 

Bargaining unit employees, see Joint Agreement, Article VIII, Discipline.  

Managerial/supervisory/confidential employees. 

 The Library normally follows these steps in the disciplinary process. The Library reserves the right to 
skip steps in the disciplinary process in the event of extreme behavior.   

Coaching/Counseling    

When a supervisor identifies a performance issue or discipline problem, the supervisor should usually 
first address the issue informally with the employee. The appropriateness of the steps to be taken should 
be considered on a case-by-case basis. Except in the case of an egregious infraction meriting serious 
disciplinary action, the supervisor should consider steps such as:   

181



71 
 
 

 Providing counseling to the employee about the problem and the need to change.  

 Providing training to the employee to make sure the employee has the knowledge and skills 
needed to do the job properly. 

 Removing any obstacles or interference that prevents the employee from performing properly.  

 Providing consequences for good job performance. 

 Providing feedback to the employee. 

The supervisor should document these efforts on the Counseling Memorandum Form (attached), which 
will be signed by the employee and the supervisor. The form will be maintained in the employee's 
personnel file as a record of training.   

The meaning of "discipline" is training, and the purpose is to ensure optimal performance. Constructive 
criticism, coaching, and other informal teaching methods should be exhibited by supervisors as a means 
of training employees and setting expectations for continued employment. This ongoing training is not 
part of the progressive disciplinary process and is expected to be part of the normal, day-to-day 
interaction between all employees-supervisors and colleagues. [See "Counseling Memorandum"] [15] 

 The types of formal discipline that may be imposed include but are not limited to: verbal warnings, 
written reprimands, suspension (with or without pay), and/or termination.  [See "Corrective Action 
Plan"] [16] 

 Verbal Warning  

If a performance issue has been addressed and insufficient or no improvement has resulted, the first step 
of the progressive disciplinary process is a Verbal Warning. The Verbal Warning is a written document, 
signed by the employee, the supervisor, and the next level supervisor or the Human Resources (HR) 
Manager. The Verbal Warning is maintained in the employee's personnel file.   

This method should be used with the employee in a private area and as each infraction occurs rather 
than letting infractions build up over time. It should be stated to the employee that unless corrective 
action is taken, further disciplinary action could result, up to and including termination of employment. 
The date and time each infraction takes place should be noted on the Corrective Action Plan Form 
(attached). An employee may submit a written statement or rebuttal to a Verbal Warning which will be 
attached to the Form. The Form will be kept in the employee's personnel file in the Human Resources 
Office (HR).   

See section 6.11 for further clarification on appeals. 

 Written Reprimand   

The Written Reprimand is used if verbal warnings do not correct or improve employee behavior or 
performance. The written reprimand should be noted on the Corrective Action Plan Form (attached) 
and signed by both the supervisor and employee. It should be stated to the employee that unless 
corrective action is taken, further disciplinary action could result, up to and including termination of 
employment. This document will be kept in the employee's personnel file in HR.   

Any employee receiving what he/she feels to be an unwarranted written reprimand may respond in 
writing to the document and the response will be attached to the reprimand retained in the employee's 
personnel file.   

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

182

http://lint.monroe.lib.in.us/drupal/sites/default/files/CounselingMemorandum.pdf
http://lint.monroe.lib.in.us/drupal/sites/default/files/CorrectiveActionPlan.pdf
http://lint.monroe.lib.in.us/drupal/sites/default/files/CorrectiveActionPlan.pdf


72 
 
 

See section 6.11 for clarification on appeals. 

 Suspension    

Suspensions, with or without pay, may be issued to any employee who does not correct the behavior 
addressed in a written Reprimand or as a result of continued misconduct or documented poor 
performance. The suspension should be noted on the Corrective Action Plan Form (attached) and 
signed by the supervisor, the employee and the HR Manager or next level supervisor.    

It should be stated to the employee that unless corrective action is taken, further disciplinary action 
could result, up to and including termination of employment. This document will be added to the 
employee's personnel file in HR.   

A suspension can last from one to five working days at the discretion of the Director and taking into 
account the seriousness of the infraction cited. In addition, paid suspensions may be authorized by the 
Director while an investigation of wrongdoing is taking place.    

See section 6.11 for clarification on appeals. 

Termination   

Termination may result when any employee fails to correct behavior following a suspension, as a result 
of continued misconduct, documented poor performance, or any of the more serious infractions listed in 
Section 6.10. The Director or designee will give written notice to any employee being dismissed - either 
in person or via certified U.S. mail. The employee shall be given an opportunity to remove all personal 
belongings from his/her work area and will be escorted during this time by library security personnel. 
The employee will be given an opportunity to discuss his/her termination of employment at the 
Director's discretion.   

See section 6.11 for clarification on appeals.   

Formal written documentation must be kept in all phases of disciplinary action. Any/all documentation 
associated with disciplinary action will be retained in the employee's personnel file in HR. 

 

Section 6.10: Employment Termination 

6.10     EMPLOYMENT TERMINATION  

 The MCPL Library Board of Trustees delegates the discharge of any employee to the Library Director 
or his/her designee. The BoardBoard of Trustees is informed, in a timely manner, of any employees that 
are discharged. The progressive disciplinary steps listed above are expected to be followed in most 
instances, noting that there are some infractions designated serious enough for immediate termination of 
employment. These include but are not limited to the following infractions:    

 Falsification of information on the employment application or other job related forms or 
verbally to supervisors, other management, or administrative personnel.  

183



73 
 
 

 Ignoring, bypassing, or otherwise altering standard Library procedures or policies for personal 
gain or for the advantage of others without due cause or prior approval of the supervisor or 
administrative personnel. 

 False claims of injury or illness. 

 Theft. 

 Unlawful or negligent handling of public monies. 

 Absence from work for more than two days without notifying the Library.  

 Threatening or intimidating fellow employees or the public. 

 Misusing MCPL property. 

 Insubordination. 

 Altering another employee's records - i.e., time sheet. 

 Possessing firearms or other objects believed to be intended for use in an act of violence.  

 Reporting to duty under the influence of, use, possession, distribution, or sale of drugs or 
alcohol while on the Library's premises or while conducting Library business. 

 Failing to submit to a blood test, urinalysis, or breathalyzer examination pursuant to the Drug -
Free Workplace Policy. 

 Misusing or removing MCPL records, information, and/or equipment without prior 
authorization. 

 Disclosing confidential information or material to unauthorized personnel. 

 Excessive absenteeism or tardiness. 

 Conviction of a felony. 

 Use or threat of physical violence or abuse against other staff or the public during the 
performance of Library business or employment. 

 Violating MCPL's Sexual Harassment policy. 

 Violation of the MCPL Internet, computer, or email policies. 

Employees may be required at any time to submit to a medical exam, at the Library's expense and 
selection of physician, to determine if the employee is physically and/or mentally fit to perform the 
duties of his/her position.   

The Library will contest unemployment compensation claims filed by any staff member who was 
discharged for just cause under the unemployment compensation laws of the State.  

For termination of a bargaining unit employee following disciplinary action, see Joint 
Agreement, Article VIII. 

For impact on seniority of bargaining unit members who are terminated and then reemployed, 
see Joint Agreement, Article XIII, Section 2. 

For limited conditions of reemployment following termination for unauthorized activities by 
bargaining unit employees, see Joint Agreement, Article XVI, Section 1.  

 

Section 6.11: Problem Resolution 

6.11     PROBLEM RESOLUTION   

184



74 
 
 

Bargaining unit employees. See Joint Agreement, Article IX, Grievance Procedure.  

Managerial/supervisory/confidential employees only.   

The Library intends that all staff will be treated justly and considerately at all times.  

If at any time an employee feels that he/she has been treated unfairly, the employee should request a 
meeting within five working days of the incident to discuss the matter openly with his/her immediate 
supervisor. In most cases this is believed to be the most effective means of dealing with a problem and 
obtaining a resolution.   

The Supervisor should meet with the employee within five working days of his/her request. If, following the 
meeting, the employee does not feel there is an adequate resolution to the issue, he/she may then follow 
the same steps up the chain of command in seeking a resolution, utilizing the Employee Appeal Form. 
The Library Director is the final step in this process. 

 

Section 6.12: Appeal Process 

6.12     APPEAL PROCESS  

Bargaining unit employees.  See Joint Agreement, Article IX, Grievance Procedure. 

Managerial/supervisory/confidential employees only.  

MCPL also provides employees with a defined process for appealing certain disciplinary matters to 
ensure that a final resolution is reached in a timely and equitable manner. Again, the spirit of this policy 
is to facilitate open discussion between supervisors and employees in order to resolve issues in an 
environment of mutual respect and objectivity without retaliation.    

All employee appeals must be submitted on the Employee Appeal Form [19]. This form will be utilized 
throughout the appeal process and forwarded to HR upon completion of the process. All appeal 
documents will be maintained in the employee's personnel file in the Human Resources Office.   

Listed below are the methods available to employees to appeal the following types of disciplinary action.   

Verbal Counseling/Verbal Warning   

A written rebuttal of the infraction and/or incident for which the warning was issued may be submitted 
by the employee and received by the supervisor within five working days from the date the counseling/warning 
was issued. It will be placed in his/her personnel file in HR. The appeal process for verbal 
counseling/warnings stops with the submission of a written rebuttal by the employee.  

Written Reprimand   

A written rebuttal to the reprimand may be submitted to the supervisor within five working days from the date 
the reprimand is issued. It is then attached to the reprimand and stored in the employee's personnel file in 

185

http://lint.monroe.lib.in.us/drupal/sites/default/files/AppealForm.pdf


75 
 
 

HR. The employee may also request a hearing by completing the Employee Appeal Form with the HR 
Manager within five working days from the date the reprimand is issued.   

The next supervisor up the chain of command must then hold a hearing, conduct an investigation, and 
subsequently make a ruling on the initial reprimand within five working days after the appeal is filed in HR .   

Any disciplinary action that is ultimately overturned will be signed and dated accordingly in the 
employee's personnel file. The appeal process for a written reprimand stops with the appropriate 
Associate Director or Director. 

Suspension  

A suspension, with or without pay, may be appealed within five working days following the employee's return to 
work or immediately following the ruling for suspension if the appeal supervisor can arrange for a hearing to 
be conducted prior to the start of the suspension.   

If a suspension without pay is overturned and the appeal process takes place following a payroll period, 
the employee will be fully reimbursed for his/her time away as quickly as possible with the issuance of a 
separate check.   

Any disciplinary action that is ultimately overturned will be signed and dated accordingly in the 
employee's personnel file. The appeal process for a suspension stops with the appropriate Associate 
Director or Director. 

Termination   

The employee shall have the opportunity to appeal his/her termination of employment by the Library 
Director to the Library Board of Trustees in an Executive Session at its next regularly scheduled 
meeting. This appeal must be filed within five working days of the termination of employment.   

The Board of Trustees may request that certain staff members be made available to them as a resource 
during this meeting. The Board of Trustees will then present a written decision to the employee either 
overturning or reaffirming the termination of employment notice within five working days after the 
meeting takes place. 

Witnesses   

Requests for someone to sit in as a witness in disciplinary conferences will be allowed only during the 
appeal process. Only one person will be allowed to serve as a witness for the employee during an appeal 
conference and it must be an employee of the Library. A witness is allowed to speak only if he/she has 
direct knowledge of the issue at hand. Otherwise he/she serves merely as a witness to the event 
unfolding and will have no other obligation once the conference is declared over. (The witness will be 
required to sign a waiver stating he/she was in attendance and understands that this process is a 
confidential matter.)   

An HR staff member may be requested to serve as witness during an appeal hearing, or the HR Office 
will maintain a list of staff members who have volunteered to serve as witnesses, or staff members m ay 
select their own witness. Employee witnesses who participate in this process may do so on work time, or 

186



76 
 
 

may be paid for the time spent in the conference itself if it takes place when they are not scheduled for 
duty.   

The HR Manager should be notified (by the appealing employee) that a witness will be attending an 
appeal conference at least 48 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting and will coordinate a suitable 
meeting room for the conference and notify all parties involved of its date, time, and pla ce. 

  

187



77 
 
 

Section 7: Employee Acknowledgement Form 

7. EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGMENT FORM 

The Monroe Public Library Personnel Manual describes important information about employment 
with the Monroe Public Library, and I understand that I should consult the Library Board of Trustees 
regarding any question not answered in the handbook.   

Since the information, policies, and benefits described here are necessarily subject to change, I 
acknowledge that revisions to the personnel manual may occur. All such changes will be communicated 
through official notices, and I understand that revised information may supersede, modify, or eliminate 
existing policies.   

I understand the descriptive materials contained in this personnel manual are only summaries. Any 
discrepancies between these summaries and the terms of the actual plans will be governed by the terms 
of the underlying, more detailed policies and procedures. Any questions regarding summaries, their 
underlying policies and procedures and any discrepancies between them wi ll be directed to the 
department manager.   

Furthermore, I acknowledge that this personnel manual is not a contract of employment.  

I understand that the personnel manual is available on the MCPL website and that I may print a copy at 
any time.  I may also request a printed copy at any time from my department manager or from Human 
Resources.  I understand that it is my responsibility to read and understand the policies contained in the 
personnel manual and any subsequent revisions. 

  

_______________________________________                   _________________________________ 
Employee Signature                                                                Date         

  

 _______________________________________                  _________________________________ 
Employee's name (typed or printed)                                         Department 
  

188



78 
 
 

Section 8: Appendix A (Forms) 

Section 6.07.02: Harassment Complaint Form [14] 

Section 6.09: Counseling Memorandum [20] 

Section 6.09: Corrective Action Plan [21] 

Section 6.11 & 6.12: Employee Appeal Form [22] 

 

 

 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

189

http://lint.monroe.lib.in.us/drupal/sites/default/files/HarassmentComplaintForm_000.doc
http://lint.monroe.lib.in.us/drupal/sites/default/files/CounselingMemorandum.pdf
http://lint.monroe.lib.in.us/drupal/sites/default/files/CorrectiveActionPlan.pdf
http://lint.monroe.lib.in.us/drupal/sites/default/files/AppealForm.pdf

	02a minutes 2016-07-20
	02b 2016-08-10 Work Session Minutes
	02c monthly bills paid
	01MainSource Check Summary Register©
	02Board Report Check Register
	03 chase credit card

	02d monthly financials
	04Financial Report Comments 07-31-16
	05Budget
	06BudgetDetail
	07Operating Report
	08LIRF Report
	09Debt Service Report
	10Rainy Day Report
	11Special Revenue Report
	12 Gen
	13Expenditure Summary Report
	14Revenue Report
	15Cash Balances
	16ONB-Monroe Check Reconciliation©
	17German-Amer
	18German $ Mkt Reconciliation©
	19MainSource Check Reconciliation©
	20MainSource Savings Reconciliation©

	02e1 Personnel Report 08-17-2016
	02e2 2016-07-08 PEPP Report
	02e3 2016-07-22 PEPP Report
	02e4 2016-08-05 PEPP Report
	02f Revised 2016 Board Meeting Calendar
	03 Director's Report
	04a 2017 budget binder 8-11
	01 2017 Budget Overview gl 8-11
	2 2017 Budget revenue-exp-cash 8-11
	3  2017 budget summary 8-11
	4 2017 budget summary 8-11

	05a Form 3 advert 2017 bdgt
	05b Resolution Declaring Property Surplus 08-2016
	05c 2016 - 2019 Labor Management Agreement - Proposal for Board
	05d MCPL Policy Manual - Proposal for Board 08-17-2016



